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IN THE DISTRICT COGURT OF LEA COUNTY

STATE OF NEW MEX1CU

CONTINENTAL OIL COMPANY 16213
AMERADA PETROLEUM CORPORATION 16214
PANAMERICAN PETROLEUM (ORPORATION 16215
SHELL OIL COMPANY 16217
THE ATLANTIC REFINING COMPANY 16218
STANDARD OIL COMPANY OF TEXAS 16219
HUMBLE OIL 4 REFINING COMPANY 16220

Petitioners

-VE= Congolidated as
No. 16213
OIL CONSERVATICN COMMISSIUN OF
NEW MEXICU, Composed of John
Burrcughs, Member and Chairman,
Murray Morgan, Member, and A. L.
Porter, Secretary;
TEXAS PACIFIC COal & (1L CUMPANY,
a foreign corporation;
EL PFASO NATURAL GAS CCMPANY, a8
foreign corporation;
PERMIAN BASIN FPIFELINE CUMPANY,
a foreign corporation;
SOUTHERN UNION GAS CUMPANY, a
foreign corporation;

Respondents

TRANSCRIPT OF THE TESTIMONY AND PROCEEDINGS

BE IT REMEMBERt, That the above styled and numbered causes
consolidated came on for trial on July 21, 1%59, at Lovington,
Lea County, New Mexico, before the Honorgble John K. Brand, Juige
of the Fifth Judicial District in and for Lea County, New Mexico}

that the petiticner Continental Uil Company appeared by its



attorneys, Mr. Jason Kellahin, of Kellaghin & Fox, Santa Fe, New
Mexico, and Mr. Harry G. Dippel, Ft. Worth, Texas; that the
petitioner Amerada Petroleum Corporation appeared by and through
its attorneys, Mr. Jason Kellghin, of Kellghin & Fox, Santa Fe,
New Mexico, and Mr. H. D. Bushnell, Tulsa, Oklahdma; that the
petitioner Pan American Fetroleum Corporation appeared by and
through its attorneys, Messrs. Ross L. lalone and Kirk Newman,
of Atwood & Malone, Roswell, New Mexico, and Mr, J. K. Smith,
Ft. Worth, Texas; that petitioner Shell 0il Company appeared by
and through its attorneys, Mr. Howard C. Bratton, of Hervey, Dow
& Hinkle, Roswell, New Mexico, and Mr. James A. Lore, Midland,
Texas; that petitioner The Atlantic Refining Company appeared by
and through its attorney, Mr. Howard C. Bratton, cf Hervey, Dow
& Hinkle, Roswell, New Mexico; that petitioner Standard 011
Company of Texas appeared by and through its attorneys, Mr. Howard
C. Bratton, of Hervey, Dow & Hinkle, Roswell, New Mexico, and
Mr. Reed A. Elliott, Houston, Texas; that petitioner Humble 0il
& Refining Company appeared by and through its attorneys,
Mr. Howard C. Bratton, of Hervey, Dow & Hinkle, Roswell, New Mexico,
and Mr, Walter B. Morgan, Houston, Texas;

That respon&ent 011 Conservation Commisgsion of the State of
New Mexico appeared by and through its attormeys, Mr. William J.
Cooley and Mr. Oliver'E. Payne, Santa Fe, New Mexico; that

respondent Texas Pacific Coal & 0il Company appeared by and through



its attorney, Mr. Jack M., Campbell, of Campbell & Russell, Roswell,
New Mexico; that respondent El Paso Natural Gas Company appeared

by and through its attorneys, Mr. Ray C. Cowan, Hobbs, New Mexico,
and Mr. Morris Galatzan, of Hardie, Grambling, Sims & Galatzan,

El Paso, Texas; that respondent FPermian Basin Pipeline Company
appeared by and through its attorneys, Mr. Robert ¥. Ward,
Lovington, New Mexico, and Mr. Patrick J. McCarthy, Omaha, Nebrasgka;
that respondent Southern Union Gas Company appeared by and

through 1ts attorney, Mr. Manuel A, Sanchez, Santa Fe, New Mexico}

At which time and place the tfoliowing proceedings were had,

to-wit:



THE COURT: Are you gentlemen ready to proceed in this matter?

MR. MALORE: The appellants are regdy, your Honor.

MR. CAMPBELL: Respondents are ready, your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Have you decided on a method to proceed?
1 take it, Mr. Malone, you have the burden.

MR. MALONE: We recognige that, your Honor, and we are preapred
to proceed.

THE COURT: Very well, you may do 0.

MR. MALONE: At the outset of the hearing, how are we going to
get these parties referred to? As the respondents and the
petitioners, is that the denomination that has been followed?

MR. CAMPBELL: Yes.

MR, MALORE: At the outset of the hearing, the petitioners object
to the participation by the New Mexico 0il Conservation
Commigsion in the case as an adversary party. We recognize
they are proper parties under the statute in an appeal trom
the decision which was rendered by the Commission and that,
if there was a public interest tor which the Commission had
responsibility involved in the case, that they would be a
proper adversary party, but, in view of the fact that the
sole question in the case, as has been stated and stipulated, ~
is correlative rights in the interest of the variocus
petitioners in the pool itself, it is our view that the

Commisgsion's position should be as a nominal but not as an
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adversary party, and, we therefore object to their position

as an adversary party.

MR, FAYNE: 1If it please the Court, it has never been stipulated
that the only issue in this case is correlative rights. It
is our position that waste is also involved in this case.

It 18 our further position in this case that, at any time
an order of the Oil Conservation Comnission is appealed to
the District Court, we gre at that point an adversary party.

THE COURT: I could be mistaken but I think I remember a
stipulation ~-- at least a tacit understanding that waste
was not an issue in this matter.

MR. PAYNE: I don't believe that's correct, your Honor.

THE COURT: It does not seem proper to me tor the Uil Conservation
Commisgion to appear as an adversary party in a matter in
which an appeal has been taken on one of its decisions, and
Mr. Malone's motion will be sustained. You may proceed.

MR. MALONE: If it piease the Court, this i1z en appeal from two
orders of the Uil Consgervation Commission in New Mexico,
numbers R-1UY2-4 and R-1yy2-C, entered by the Cil Conservation
Commission in case No. 1327 on the docket of that Commission.
The parties appeaiing, who are the petitioners, and whose
several appeals have been consclidated tor hearing in this
proceeding are Amerada Petroleum ‘“orporation, The Atlantic

Refining Company, Continental Uil Company, Cities Service



01l Company, Humble Oil and Refining Company, Pan American
Petroleup Corporation, Standard 011 Company of Texas and
Shell 0il Company, all of which are the owners and operators
cf wells within the Jalmat Pool in Lea County, New Mexico.

Case No. 1327 originated before the Commission by the
filing of an application by Texas Pacific Coal & 0il Company,
and becguse the original application on which the original
hearing was held precipitated the entire proceeding, I would
like to refer briefly to some of its contents.

The application of T-P alleged first that it is the
owner of a number of non~marginal gas units and a number
of marginal gas units within the limits of the Jalmat Gas
Pool, what is four and sixty and six and 70/100ths marginal
units, and that there are & total of 389.13 gas units in
the Jalmat Gas Pool. It is further alleged that the El
Paso Natural Gas Company was connected to its pipeline as
to 336.23 of the gas units, or approximately 86% of the
total units in the field, and that El Paso Natural, as the
purchaser of gas from these wells, has exclusive control
over the rate of tgkes or the amount of gas which is taken
from each of the gas wells.

It further alleges that on January 1, 1954, gas pool

‘//rationing was instituted In the area which now comprises

the Jalmat Pool, and that for a period of two and a half



years after ges pool rationing started, that the allowables
and productions were maintained in reasonable balance and
that everything went along very well, but that during the
last six months of 1956 the El Paso Natural Gas Company
took from the applicant's wells, that is, from T-P's
wells, amounts of gas considersbly in excess of its
nominations and failed to file supplemental nominations to
adjust its nominations to its actual takes, resulting in
excessive over-production carryover into the first proration
period in 1957. It then alleges that the 0il Conservation
Commission, on the request of certain gas purchasers, had
failed to balance the production at the end of each of the
proration periods with the result that a large number of
wells in the Jalmat Pool, including those of T-P, were
over-produced, and that there was likewise a large amount
of accumulated under-production from wells that had not
made their allowable which the Commission had failed to
cancel and redistribute to those wells which could make it.
It further alleged that during 1957 the El Paso
Natural Gas Company, by reason of over-production, which had
accumulated to the wells on which it failed to supplement
its nominations, and due to the failure of the Commission
to balance the production at the end of 1956, or at the

end of the first six months of '57, that El1 Paso Natural had



drastically reduced its takes from the we.ls in the Jalmat
Pool, and that in some ingtances as a result marginal wells
which could not make the allowable were actually producing
more than the non~marginal wells which could make the
allowable.

It is further alleged that, if the El Pasc Natural Gas
Company is required by reason of present rules covering
the proration of gas in the Jalmat Pool to continue to
restrict production from the applicant's wells, that it
will continue to suffer drainage from those wells; that
certain of applicant's wells, even if shut in during the
months of 1957, will enter the next prorstion period with
over~-production and, if these wells, together with other
over~produced wells in the pool are shut in, it will
result in a negative allowable in the entire pool during the
next preoration period.

It is also alleged that during the period of gas
proration E1 Paso Natural Gas Company has consistently
run gas from the wells of high deliverability with the
result that the method of proration now established has
meant that during the year 1956 forty percent of the wells
in the pool produce sixty percent of the gas at an average
rate of 303,725 mcf per unit.

It is further alleged that El Paso Naturel Gas Company



has failed to keep individual wells of the applicent, T-P,
in reasonable balance with each other, and finaglly that the
continuation of gas prorationing in thig pool will res:lt
in drainage of the gpplicant's properties and the abuse of
ite correlative rights, and will render impossible
reasonable marketing of dry gas from this pool even though
El Paso Natural Gas Company desires to purchase agnd run
such gas to supply its market. The present rules as applied
by the Commission are lmpractical and unreasonsble and
result in economic loss to applicant and the State of New
Mexico as royalty owner.

Those are the allegations of the application which
precipitated this proceeding. The prayer is as follows:

"WHEREFORE, applicant requests the Commigssion to enter
its order immediately terminating gas prorationing in the
Jalmat Gas Pool. In the alternative applicant requests the
Commission to enter its order immediately cancelling all
accunmulative under-production and redistributing such
under-production to over-produced wells in Jalmaf Gas Pools
and requiring Jalmat gas purchasers to nominate sufficient
amount of gas from the pools to permit wells from which
purchasers are able to take gas to have an allowable equal
to their actual production, and upon this basis to thereafter
balance the pool production at the end cf each proration

period, and establishing deliverability of gas wells as a

S
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factor in the proration formula for the pool, and
establishing a maxfmm amount of gas which may be taken

from gny well in the pool during a specified period of time.
Applicant further requests that the Commission issue such
further order or orders as to bring the pool immediastely

into balance, and balance and maintein such balance without
waste and without abuse of applicant's or others' correlative
rights." |

That application of the petitioner, Texaes Pacific Coal
& 01l :ompany came on for its first hearing on October 18,
1957. At that time the applicant presented two witnesses
and some exhibits and offered to have the witnesses back
at the next monthly hearing of the Commission for cross
examination by other interested parties to afford the
parties an opportunity to consider their testimony and
prepare cross examination.

On November 14, the matter came up at the regular
November hearing of the Commission and at that time com~
panies opposing the application of Texas Pacific “oal &

011 Company, some thirteen in number, were afforded an
opportunity to cross examine their witnesses who had been
presented. That cross examination -- no perhaps I'm
getting into the record a bit and I intended not to do that

until we determined the status of the record here g0 I'm

48
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going to go back and pick up the actual progress of the
case after 1 get the record in.

For the purpose of the opening statement, I will say
that a hearing was held on November 14th, 1957; that there-
after gnother hearing was held on December Yth, 1957; and
that order, Order R-1092-A, was issued on January 29, 1959,
That is the principal order which is appealed from in this
case. I beg your pardon -- January 29, 1958. An application
for rehearing was filed by some twelve companies, and a
rehearing was granted. A further hearing was held before
the Commission on March 25, 1958, and thereafter on April
28, 1958, the Commission isgued its order overruling the
objections and reatffirming the decision that it had there-
tofore reached, the substance of which and the principal
item in controversy and which was a change in the proration
formula of the Jalmgt Pool from 100 per cent acreage which
it had been throughout its prorated life to a formula
composed of twenty-five percent acreage plus seventy-five
percent deliverability times twenty-five percent acreage,
thus making =~-

THE COURT: Give me that again.
MR. MALONE: Changed from 100 per cent acreage to the worde of
the order: "75 per cent acreage times -~ the new formula

asstated in Paragraph 7 of the Order is: "Seventy-five

3
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percent acreage times deliverability plus twenty-five
percent acreage only,"

THE COURT: Seventy-five acreage times deliverability -~

MR. MALONE: Seventy-five percent acreage times deliverability
plus twenty-five percent of the acreage alone.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. MALONE: The eight companies whose names I read as petitioners
have appealed to this Court from that decision and from
the two orders, 10%92-A and 1092-C, which were issued by the
Commission in the original case and on rehearing.

Now, I take it that in view of the fact that the record
is not yet in evidence, I cannct properly go further as to
what transpired before the Commission so at this time I
would suggest as a possible means of proceeding from this
point that the record before the Commission, which I believe
both sides agree is admissible in evidence, be stipulated
into evidence, and that we then proceed on the basis, on
the further basis, of what is shown in the record, inscfar
as the statements are concerned.

MR. CAMPBELL: That is perfectly agreeable.

THE COURT: It will be sc stipulated.

MR. MALONE: In order to clarify the record, the record was only
filed here yesterday afternoon agbout 4 o'clock, and we have

not had an opportunity to examine it for that reason, but
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the record tc which we are stipulating is composed of the
application of Texas Pacific Coal & 011l Company, all
tegtimony taken before the 011 Conservation Commission in
their hearings i{n Case No, 1327, all exhibits admitted in
evidence or offered in evidence in thst hearing, the order
entered, No. 1092-A, from which an appeal was taken, the
applicationg for rehearing, and the order, 10U92-B, issued
on them, and the order, 10%2-C, isgued on the rehearing.
I would assume that that would encompass everything that
is properly in the record. If there is gnything else that
the respondents feel should be included -- or, let's discuss
it.

MR. CAMPBELL: If the Court please, the only thing that occurs
to me, I believe at the conclusion of the rehearing,
Mr. Malone and I stipulated that portions of earlier hearings
might be included in the transcript of the case, and letters
were sent to the Commission, or sent to the Commigsion
identifying thoge portions, and they, as I understand it,
have been filed with the Court as a part of the record slong
with the transcripts of the cases towhich the letters refer.
Other than that I think that would incorporate the entire
record.

MR, MALONE: That is entirely correct, and the transcripts which
have been filed in those earlier cases are agdmitted only to

the extent specified either in }Mr. Campbell's letter or my

s
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letter as being included in the record on g stipulation.

MR. CAMPBELL: That is correct. However, cof course, inscfar as
those statements are concerned, reference may be made to
them in arguments or in the case too, as I understand it.
You are intending to offer everything that has been presented
to the Commigaion, including those portions of the earlier
transcripts to which we referred in our letters, is that
correct?

MR. MALONE: Right. That is correct, Then I would like to
resume ~-- I believe before proceeding, I would like to
offer this further suggestion as a means of proceeding in
the case. The first and foremost and basic question which
of course in any appeal from an adminigtrative body is
vhether or not there 18 substantial evidence in the record
to support the decision. O(ne of the grounds of this appeal
1s that no substantial evidence appears in the record before
the Commigsion. If the Court ghould conclude that that
be the case, the question as to whether additional testimony
will be heard here, or the extent of that asdditional
testimony, would not arise in the case. I would, therefore,
propose that an orderly means of proceéding would be to
argue the question of whether or not substantiagl evidence
is in the record on the basis of the record which has now

been introduced in evidence, and have both sides present
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their positions on that, and the Court, if it sees fit,
may oi may not rule on it before we proceed toc the question
of additional testimony. I had in mind further that it
might be helpful to the Court to proceed on that basis
because the argument as to the record, what's in it, would
help to familiarize the Court with what had gone on before
the Commission.

MR. CAMPBELL: If the Court please, that procedure 1s satisfactory
with us.

THE COURT: All right, Mr. Malone.

MR. MALONE: Resuming then at the point where I reverted to the
record, to-wit, at the conclusion of the first hearing on

which Texas Pacific Coal & Cil Company presented its
witnesses and exhibites and offered to make them available

to opposing parties at the following monthly hearing. That
resumption occurred on November 14, and the witnesses of
Texas Pgcific Coal &011 Company were cross examined at some
length by counsel for the various companies which opposed
the application of T-P. At the conclusion of that cross
exgminagtion, the coungel for T-P took Mr. Keller, one of
T-P's witnesseés on redirect examination and introduced for
the first time several exhibits in for the support of the
position of Texas Pacific Coal & Oil Company in the proceed-

ing. It became apparent and was so stated by the counsel



to the Commigsion that these exhibits newly injected into
the case on redirect examination were going to require
consideralle analysis by opposing companies before they
would be able to reach any conclusion as to the correctness
cr incorrectness of what they purported to show, and, on
that basis, the companies who opposed T-P and who now
compose the petitioners, moved the Commisgsion for a con-
tinuance to the December, or preferably the January, hearing
of the Commission. This was at the November hearing --
moved for a continuance to the December or January hearing
in order to provide an opportunity to analyze these exhibits,
prepare cross examination and any affirmative testimony
which might be required. The Commission refused those
motions for a continuance, and at approximately noon on
Friday said that it would recess the hearing until the
following morning at 9:00, at which time the hearing would
be continued and be disposed of.

During that recess, as the counsel for the companies
stated to the Commigsion the following morning, an attempt
was made to analyze the exhibits which were presented, and
the companies reached the conclusion that it was impossible
to do so in the time that the Commission had magde available
and the following morning respectfully declined to proceed

further insofar ai cross exagmination of those witnesses or

4
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exhibits were concerned because of not being afforded time
in which {t could gnalyze the exhibits and profitably
cross examine the witnesses. Further discussion engued at
that time and a further motion was made for continuance

to the January hearing. This, again, was overruled by the
Commission, which finally said on November 15th that it
would give ten days and would reconvene on November 2Z5th
and it would be wholly impossible to obtain hotel rooms,
and finally the Commission continued the hearing to
December Sth, on which date it was resumed.

When the hearing resumed on December 9th the twelve
companies who appeared ﬁere all companies or individuals
in that field who are producers who took a position in this
matter, all having taken a position who were producers only
as distinguished from a pipeline company that is also a
producer. They were uniformly in cpposition to this proposal
that deliverability be injected into the proration schedule
of the Jalmat field for the first time in the gas fields of
southeastern New Mexico.

On December Sth, when the hearing reconvened, the
parties opposing the application of T-P presented the
tegstimony of Mr. Liebrock, a consulting engineer, based
upon work which he testified to had been continuously in
progress since the recess of the Commission and which had



required some 1700 man~hours for the preparation of the
exhibits which were then presented. Mr. Liebrock at that
time testified that by reason of the failure of the
Commigsion to provide additional time it was not possible
for the protestants or the petitioners here to present a
complete core volume study of the Jalmatvfield, which they
would have liked tc do, and testimony was presented on
the baaiilcf a study of a 58-well area in the center of
the field because of the fact, as Mr. Liebrock testified,
time to make the complete study had not been given us by
the Commisgsion.

At the close of the hearing on December 10th, statements
were heard, and I believe I'm correct in stating that all
producers who appeared in opposition to the position of T-P,
with the exception of the pipeline companies, some of whom
are producers as well.

The order of the Commigsion having come ocut, and
spplication for rehearinghaving been made and granted, the
petitioners here presented on rehearing the testimony of
Mr. Liebrock again supported by numerous exhibits and the
testimbny of Mr. Henry Cruy who had testified anﬁ written
a number of the articles which composes literature on the
field which is here in question, and who had formerly been

with H. J. Cruy and Associates, an independent consulting
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firm in Dallas, Texas. UWe also presented at that time the
petroleun engineer of Humble 01l & Refining Company. And
the petitioners again presented the testimony of Mr. Keller,
who was the only expert witness who appeared on behalf of
Texas Pacific Coal & 0il Company. FNr. Woodruff appeared
for the E1 Paso Natural Gas Company.

That, I believe, is the history of what occurred in
the case, and that resulted in the final order and the
appeal which is taken from it,

The attack which is made on the final order is directed
to all of the grounds stated in the several petitions for
review, but, insofar as the question which I now propose to
discuss, whether there is gubstantial evidence in the record
to support the findings of the Commission, it is directed to
Paragraph 5 of the order of the Commission. This is
Paragraph 5 of the Findings on the basis of which the
original order was issued. That finding 1s this:

MR. CAMPBELL: Which order, Mr. Maglone?

MR, MALONE: 1092-A.

MR. CAMPBELL: 1If the Court please, the order 1092-A on rehearing
was superseded by order R-1092-C, and the very purpose of
the rehearing is to permit the Commission to consider errors

i it might have made. It occurred to me that, while Mr. Malone

was talking awhile ago, that the order appealed from here



would necessarily have to be the final order of the Commission,
which would be 1092-«C. It may contain the same paragraph.
I haven't found it yet, Mr. Malone.

MR. MALONE: There was -~ insofgr as counsel's statement is
concerned, the last paragraph of order 1092<C is that the
provigions of 1092-A ghall remain in full force and effect
so that I tske it we still have to appeal from 1092-A in
the light of that final order of the Commigsion.

MR. CAMPBELL: 1If the Court please, I believe that Mr. Malone is
referring to a finding, not te a conclusion, ¢of the Commig-
sion, and I think that it is quite obvious that, in apply-
ing for rehearing before an administrative agency, one of
the purposes is to call the attention of the agency to any
errors 1t may have committed in its original order and to
request it to change its order in any respect if it finds
that it has been in error. I think you will f£ind that some
of the paragraphs of findings which were entered in the
original order, after the}rehcaring that the findings are
different, and 1f we are going to argue on the findings, I
would suggest that we should be arguing on the findings

. after the petitioners here have an opportunity to present
their views to the Commission on rehearing and the
Commissioners have had a chance tc reconsider the matter.

MR. MALONE: I agree that the purpose of rehearing is to permit

o
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the Commission to correct any errors that they have made or
that it wishes to correct. Insofar as my examination of the
order 10%2-C 18 concerned, with reference to FParagraph 5,

to which my argument was directed, the only change that I
cbserved was the insertion of the word "recoverable® in
front of ¥Ygas in place™. But the provisions in the finding
cf 1092-C 18 that the provisions of order R-10%2-A shall
remain in full force and effect, gnd it is therefore ordered
that the provisions of 1092-A shall remain in full force and
effect. Now, when provisions of that order are remade in
full force and effect under the order of the Commisggion, I
think that you carmot divorce the order from the basis
which it recites in its body for its having been igsued,

and the findings on which it was predicated. it is a very
fine line that counsel seeks to draw, if I understand him
correctly, which is that the order part of 1092-A stays

in effect but that the findings part of 10Y2-A doesn't

say in effect. It seems to me that it would be trying to
take the hair away from the hide. But, for purposes of the
present argument, I'm perfectly willing to direct my remarks
to 1092-C insofar as subparagraph 5 of the findings in
1092-A are concerned. I do not, however, agree that coungel's
position 1s correct, that the Commission wiped out the
findings on which 1092-A was based when its order said

1092~A 18 ordered to continue in effect.
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The finding Paragraph 35, to which I referred of R~10Y2-A
was this: that the applicant has proved that there is a
general correla tion between the deliverabilities of the gas
wells in the Jalmat Pool and the gas in place under the
tracts dedicated to said wells.

MR. CAMPBELL: If the Court please, if the Court will pardon me,
I believe we're back in 10%2-4 -~

MR. MALONE:‘ 1 said I was reading Paragraph 5 of 10YZ-A because
1 want to show the difference between it and 1092-C. I
also tor the record said, however, that I did not concur in
counsel's position that 1092-A was completely superseded in
so far as its findings was concerned.

-= that the applicant has proved that there is a general
correlation between the deliverabilities of the gas wells in
the Jalmat Gas Fool and the gas in place under the tracts
dedicated to said wells, and that the inclusion of a
deliverability factor in the proration formuls for the
Jalmat Gas Pool would, theretore, result in a more equitable
allocation of the gas production in said pool than under
the present gas proration formula.

Now that finding, looking back for the moment at the
order originally issued by the Commigsion, that finding as
we view 1t was and still 1s crucial to the order appealed

trom. There were two cther findings included in that order
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which, I take it, counsel now contends are -- no longer have
any life, is that correct?

MR. CAMPBELL: If the Court please, we ~- cther than for the
purpose for which he intends to make an indication of the
change ~-- insofar as any legal argument based upon the
findings in the original order as the basis for the original
order, which are not present, are not included in the
final order, we consider are not properly arguable here.

The Commigsion based its second order solely upon the
paragraph tc which you are referring, and not upon eny
other paragraphs in the original order.

THE COURT: Very well.

MR. MALONME: All right. I would assume that the order would
have to speak for itself on that, and I guess it is going
to be hard to agree on just what it does say, but the
findings which appear in 1092-C, after rehearing, are these:

The Commigsion finds: (1) That due public notice
having been given as required by law, the Commission has
jurisdiction of this cause and the subject matter thereof.
(2) That, after considering all the evidence presented at
the original hearing and the rehearing in this case, the
Commission reaffirmg its finding that the Texas Pacific
Coal & 011 Company has proved by a preponderance of the

evidence that there is a general correlation between the



deliverability of the gas wells in the Jalmat Gas Pool and
the recoverable gas in place under the tracts dedicated to
said wells.

Now, as I say, as far as I have been able to detect,
the only change in this finding, they say they sre reaffirm-
ing the former finding; they changed the wording by insert-
ing the word "recoverable" in the final order, the
"recoverable gas in place' under the tracts dedicated to
said wells, and that the inclusion of the delivefahility
factor in the proration formula for the Jalmat Gas Pool
would therefore result in a more equitable allocatibn of
the gas production in said pool than under the present gas
proration formula.

And (3) that the provision of R-1092-A should remain
in full force and effect. It is therefore ordered that the
provisions of Order No. R-1092-A ghall remain in full force
and effect. I take it by counsel's statement that he, I
believe, is willing to admit that the Commigsion mgde an
error in findings No. 6 and 7, which were included in the
original order which he now says were not included in the
final order.

MR, CAMPBELL: The record needs to show that we do not admit
that, if the Court please.
MR. MALONE: Silence does not mean acquiesence?

Directing now my discussion to the subject of whether



there is substantial evidence in the record to support this
finding in 1092-C, which ia the crucial finding on which
the validity of the Commiggion'’s actions, and any of themn,
must be based, it is that the Texas Pacific Coal & 01l
Company has proved by & prepcnderance of the evidence that
there i& a general correlation between the deliverabilities
of the gas wells in the Jalmat Gas Pool and the recoverable
gas in place under the tracts dedicated to sald well, It
is the position of the petitioners in this case that there
is no substantial evidence in the record to support that
finding, and that the only evidence in the record on the
subject is contrary to the finding. Our position is based
on this proposition. The Commission found that it hsd
been established as it said by a preponderance of the
evidence that there was a general correlation between the
deliverabilities between the gas wells in the Jalmat Pool
ard the recoverable gas in place under the tracts. In
order to so prove, it is basic and fundamental that there
would have to be testimony in this record as to the
recoverable gas in place under the tracts involved, and the
only evidence presented in this case and shown by this
record with reference to recoverable gas in place under

the tracts by the engineering standards which the witnesses

for the Texas Pacific “oal & 0il Company themself accepted was



the testimony that is presented by these petitioners which
showed that there is absolutely no correlation between the
amount of gas a well may produce at a given time and the
amount of gas that is in the formation underlying the tract
assigned to the well.

Now, in order to appreciate the vital importance of
that finding, the statutes of New Mexico prescribe that in
allocating gas the Commigsion must allocate inscfar as is
practical to provide each cwner an opportunity to recover
the amount of gas that that gas underlying his tract bears
to the total gas in the entire pool, and that, of course,
is the protection of correlative rights.

Correlative rights is defined by the statute as:

"Correlative rights means the opportunity afforded,

so far as is practical to do so, to each owner of

property in a pool to produce without waste his

just and equitable share of the cil and gas, or both,

in the pool, being an amount, so far as can be

practically determined, and so far as can be practically
obtained without waste, substantially in the proportion
that the quantity of recoverable oil or gas, or both,
under such property bears to the total recoverable oil
or gas or both in the pocl, and for such purpose to

ugse his just and equitable share of the reservoir

energy.”

Now, in the face of that statute defining correlative rights,
there is the companion statute, 65-3-14(a), which
affirmatively directs the Commission:

"The rules, regulations or orders of the Commigsgion

shall, so far as 18 practical to do so, afford the
OWNer « « « "

w6
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and then it uses the same wording as correlative rights --
shall afford an opportunity to produce that portion which
that gas underlying his acreage bears to the total ges in
the pool.

Back to our criginal and basic premise then. That is,
that there is no testimony in this record as to the
recoverable gas in place under the tract in the Jalmat
Pool except the testimony presented by these petitioners,
and as to that it i{s shown that there is no correlation
whatever between deliverability and that recoverable gas
in place;

I'm sure that at this point the Court is wondering how
it would be possible that a case that has gone as long as
this one has, and has a record the size of this one, could
poasibly have gotten to this point without there being any
evidence in the record on the crucial question in the case.
That situation comes about by reason of the fact that the
Texas Pacific Cogl & 0Oil Company presented a single expert
witness, and all of his exhibits were directed to, and his
testimony was predicated upon, not the recoverable gas in
place under the tract, but the reserves, as he referred to
them, of the wells.

Now, there is obviously a great difference between the

recoverable gas in place under a tract and the amount of gas,
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or the reserves as they referred to them, which will be
produced by a particular well because a well with very high
permeability can drain an area five times as large as the
land assigned the well, and the legislature of New Mexico
did not say that in protecting correlative rights, you

glve a man a right to produce the portion of the gas in
relation to what could be produced from his well. It said,
"i{n proportion to the gas that's under his tract,” and that
is the place that the testimony in this entire case divided.
All of the testimony by the admisgsion of their own witness,
while they use the term in some instances "recoverable gas
in place"”, they quite frankly admitted that they were merely
taking the reserves that could be produced by the well from
wherever they might come and dividing them up among the |
acreages assigned to the well, in lieu of a study as
presented by the petitioners of the recoverable gas in place
vnder the land, based upon the thickness of the formation,
the porosity and permeability, and commate water and other
factors which go intc a core volume study to determine, not
the amount of gas that a well may produce if it drains the
whole countryside, but the amount of gas that is under the
tract in question. And, without laboring that further, it
is our position that, in the absence of any proof as to the

recoverable gas in place under the individual tracts in this

o
v“’:;‘ @



pool, and no such proof has been presented by the applicant,
T-P, that there is no substantial evidence to support a
finding that there 1s any correlation between the recoverable
gas in place and deliverabilities, because, if there is

going to be a correlation, you've got to show what you're
correlating to, and the testimony is wholly absent.

This, as the Court will readily appreciate, was the
subject of coamtroversy throughout the hearing before the
Commigsion, and it is posaibly the crucial subject that
will be before this Court insofar as the record itself is
concerned.

As for the record, 1 might say that the method -~ I
stated that the method used by the witness presented by the
petitiocners for establishing the recoverable gaes in place
was a core volume study of the actual producing formation
to determine the gas in place under the tract, whereas the
means used by the single witness who testified for the .
applicant was what is called the extrapolation of & pressure
production curve and material balance study. I dom't
know what occasion the Court has had to be subjected to
extrapolation of a curve. I myself have had a liberal
education in the subject since the case started myself,
but, basically, so that the Court can in the portions of the

testimony to which I want to refer, so the Court can
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evaluate the testimony I have put here on this board, an
exhibit which shows the manmer in which the extrapolation
cf a curve is done:

This is on coordinate paper. You plot at points on
this paper, going out in this way, the cummulative gas
production from that well at various times in the life of
the well, and each of these red dots indicates the cumulative
production. Beginming here, this is & million mef, one,
two, three, four, five, so that at the time this well had
produced cne million mcf of gas 1t had ¢ pressure in it of
approximately 1100 pounds. The pressures are shown up
here; the cumulative preoduction out here so that a spot is
put to indicate the cumulative production ggainst the
pressure. A month later or six months later or three years
later, another look at the cumulative production is taken
and the pressure is taken and another spot ig plotted. The
direction of the curve is merely the projection of the line
which proceeds through those spots, projection down to
the point thet there would only be a hundred pounds pressure
left in the well, which is accepted, I believe, in this case
as the abgndonment pressure and in most wells. Then you
look over here tc see what the cumnulative gas production
from that well would have been at the end of its life. The

exhibit to which I am referring, which deals with Continental
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01l Compgny's lynn B-26 Ko. 2, demonstrates rather clearly,
as we see, the fallacy of the position of the applicant.
It can be seer at this point, before the gdditional
production points were establighed, that, when you extrapolate
the curve for that well, it goes directly down here to
about five million cubic feet, and at that point in the
life of the well in the period and on the basis used by
the witnesses used for applicant, they would have testified
that that well had a reserve of five billion cubic feet
whereas atfter scme additional production and some additional
pressure tests were taken on the well and the points were
established, the slant of that curve changed entirely, and
the line now extends out here to 1¢¥ million -+« or, 10 billion
cubic feet cof gas.

¥E. CAMPBELL: 1If the Court please, this is just an exhibit?

MR. MALONE: No. It says here it ig an exhibit of the case.
This is the one -- Continental Oil Company Lynn B-256 No. 2.
A8 can be seen from this exhibit, it is possible to obtain
from an extrapolgtion of the curve on this well twc estimates
aé to its ultimate recovery, one twice the other, and this
results from gn attempt to determine what the future
reserves, as it is reférred to, on the well may be on the
basis of extrapolating a curve. This is what we say con-

stitutes no evidence as to the recoverable gas in place

)
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under the tract, which the statute of New Mexico sgys must
be the basis for any order atfecting correlative rights.

So this extrapolation of a curve is an attempt to determine,
not what gas is in place under the tract, which our statute
requires, but to determine what gas will be produced by
that well in the future if it continues to produce gs it
has in the past, and is the basis of all the testimony that
was presented by T-F, and, as we contend, congtitutes no
evidence whatever as to the recoverable gas in place. If
that be correct, I believe it would have to follow the
order must have to fall because no correlation could be
established,

In order to -- I donft intend at all to read all of
the testimony on thig subject because abdut fitty percent
of all this thousand or so pages of testimony before the
Commission dealt with it. I propcse to try to establish
my pésition solely on the basis of the testimony of the
witness who himself ~- who testiried for the Texas Pacific
Coal & 011 Company and who computed these reserves. On
the basis of his own testimony, and admissions as to what
he did and the effect of what he did, we contend it is
clearly establisghed that the standard required by the
legislature ot New Mexico has not been met, 1 don't know

whether the Court wants to follow this testimony. I'm
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going to impose on the Court as little as possible but it
might be helpful if you had the transcript.

THE COURT: We will take a recess at thisg time,

(WHEREUFON, trial of the cause 1is
recessed briefly and then resumes

as follows.)

MR. MALONE: If the Court please, I have lagid on the Bench the
volumes ot testimony from which I will read excerpts, and
I have put a pencil number at the top of each volume, just
numheriné them numerically as 1 went through chronologically.

THE COURT: Yes, sir.

MR. MALONE: The first transcript to which I will refer is the
second on2, which is the hearing of November 14, 1957, at
Page 6U. I think I might preface the reading of this with
this further perfectly frank statement. I said before the
recess that it would be amazing that this case would come
this far without testimbny as to the gubstantial issue
that's involved in the case. If "reserves', as that term
was used by Mr. Keller, and as the testimony I will read
demonstrates it was used, means "recoverable gas in place”
as the New Mexico statute requiresit to mean, there is
nothing to the peint of arguing to the Court. If the term

does not mean "recoverable gas in place™, there is no

8



evidence in this record from which any correlation could
be determined because there is no evidence offered by the
applicant as to what the recoverable gas ip place is.

At FPage 60. This ia cross examination by Mr. Webb of
Sinclalr, who, I may say, is since deceased. He is asking
Mr. Keller now:

"Q Under your allocation formulg -~ and I hate to
repeat Mr. Hinkle's remark as to your statement
== but you sald that any allocation formula should
bear some approximate relationship to reserves.
I suppose you mean recoverable reserves in place,
is that correct?

A I believe I said, treserves'.
Q All right. What did you mean by 'reserves'?
A I meant reserves.”
Page 69. PMr. Dippel is cross examining Mr, Keller:

L¥] Now, Mr. Keller, I would refer you tc Page 62
of the transcript. In your answer on that page,
what do you mean by 'relgtive gas reserves of
the various wells! and so forth?

A Whereabouts on that page are you referring to,
Mr. Dippel? Haven't found it,

A By 'relative gas reserves' on Page 62, I meant
the gas regserves of one well relative to another,

Q You are not talking about recoverable gas in place?

A No, sir. I am talking about the reserves to be
recovered from those wellsg.”

At Page 81, further c¢ross examination by Mr. Dippel, at the

very bottom of the page:

Ta
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nQ Would you say that the test that has been thus
far offered in support of this application to
the effect that deliverability should be a
factor in the proration formula of this pool,
would apply, in a general way at least, to any
cther gas pool?

A Well, Mr. Dippel, I den't think it necessarily
follows that delivergbility would be applicable
in any other gas field, no, sir. I am recommending
specifically for the Jalmat Field, because my study
leads me to conclude that this formula in this
field would more nearly allocate allowables in
proportion to reserves than the acreage formula
doesg.”

I point out again that the statute affirmatively requires
the Commission to allocate allowables to recoverage gas
in place and not the reserves that might be produced.

THE COURT: Mr. Campbell, have you any quarrel with Mr. Malone's
premiges as to what the statute provides?

MR. CAMPBELL: Not a# to what the ststute provides. He read the
statute. I disagree with his conclusions as to the relation
of the testimony to it, very definitely.

THE COURT: Very well.

MR. MALONE: I would go now to Volume No. 2 -- I beg your
pardon, 3, penciled number 3, Page 128, the last question
on the page:

"Q Now, in your opinion, would the formula that
you have reconmended to the Commigsion, protect
correlative rights? ‘
A In my opinion, the formula that I recommended more

nearly, or to a grester extent, protects cor-
relative rights than the 100% acreage formula.

3
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As a practical matter, I don't suppose there is
any perfect formula that would distribute allow-
ables in direct proportion to reserves, or
recoverable gas in place. I mean, it's just not
possible, but it is my very definite opinion,
based on my studies in the field and my under-
standing of the operation of the allocation
formula, that the formula that I have recommended
goes a great deal further toward protecting cor-
relative rights in general than does the 100%
acreage formula. It is for that reason that I
have recommended it.

Would you state to the Commission, your con-
ception of what an allowable formula muist contain
in order to prctect correlative rights?

Well, sir, in my opinion, an allowable formula
must result in the distribution of allowables in
some reasonable proportion, or some reasonable
relationship to reserves in order to protect
correlative rights.

HWould you define for the Commission, 'reserves!
in your opinion?

The reserves of a well, of a gas well, is that
volume of gas which will be produced in the
future from such well.

Under what conditions in the future?

Whatever conditions exist in the future.

Can you expect the Commission to know what
conditions would exist in the future?

Well, as an engineer, in estimating gas reserves,
it's common practice to antitipate the future on
the basis of the past.”

Page 132 of the same volume. Mr. Dutton, I believe is

cross examining:

"Q

Well, the point, you are basing this recovergble
reserves that you think deliverability is a
function strictly on what has happened in the
past, am I correct in that statement?
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The word that bothers me is "strictly'.
What else are you basing it on?

Let me say this, that as an engineer, given the
problem of determining an allocation method which
will serve to protect correlative rights, it's
necessary that that engineer first of all get

up some basis, or standard which he can quantita-
tively measure one formula gainst the other.

For that reason, it was necessary to adopt some
standard in my thinking of what 'fair share' was."

I would like to interpolate that to say that the New Mexico

legislature set the standard in New Mexico. The answer

continues:

MR. CAMPBELL:

"It was my conclusicn, after considering that

problem, that the reserves of the wells, and of
the acreage assigned to them, was not only the
best, but in actuality was the only real standard
with any meaning that you could use in this
particular situation.

Why did you reject gas in place?

Because it is not poseible to measure the gas in
place with the information at hand in the Jalmat
Fleld.

You may read the balance of that.

MR. MALOKE: You may offer in the course of the record anything

you like.
"Q

Page 134 at the top of the page:

But, sir, one more time, the method in which you
estimated reserves was based upon, as I believe
you replied a moment ago, but have not yet
repeated, was based upon study of past performance?

It was based upon the extrapolation of past
production pressure performance of the individual
wells, which is the only method available to an
eagineer of estimating recovergge gas in place
for most of the wells in the Jalmat Field., It
wasn't because that was necessarily the best.

Chiyed
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It was the only one avallable. I mean, it wasn't
because that method was selected by choice; it
was because that is the only method available

to the engineer.

Q I see. But them you do not want to leave the
{mpresgsion with the Commission that deliverakility
in any way relates to gas in place? As we pointed
out, there is not a single factor on the left and
right side . . . *

They are referring to a formula.
% , . . that enters into these two things?

A Well, I am saying this to the Commission in respect
to the relationship between reserves and deliver-
ability and recoverable gas in place in the
Jalmat Field, that they are all three related.

Yes, sir, that in general the higher the reserves,
the higher the calculated recoverable gas in place
per acre, and the higher the deliverability.

Q Did you state the higher the gas in place, sir?
You said all three were related.

A I stated, the higher the calculated recoverable
gas in place.

Q That's one -~ the higher the what?
A The higher the reserves.

9] Wait a minute. What is the difference between the
recoverable gas in place and the reserves under
your definition that you submitted to the
Commigsion?

A The reserves are calculated through necessity
for the wells.

Then, what is the recoverable gas in place?
A Well, a well as such does not have recoverable
gas in place. It doesn't have gas in place as

such, so to calculate the recoverage gas in
Plac‘ * » . "
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And this that follows is, as I understand it, is & statement

as to how the original figure of recoverable gas in place,
as referred to in Mr. Keller's testimony, was obtained:

" ., . « you have to divide the reserves by an
acreage assigned to the well, and that is the
calculated recoverage gas in place per acre that
I have calculated from the reserves. Those three
factors calculated in the mammer I have just
described, definitely related in the Jalmat Field
in that they in general are hand in hand, the
higher the reserves, the higher the recoverahle
gas in place . . ."

I would like to point out that the witness is there saying
that, if you tazke the reserves for a particular well and
divide it among the acreage, that it is obvious that it {s
going to be higher, which is certainly an obvious conclusion,
the reserves not being the gas in place under the land
around the well but the gas that may be produced through
the well from wherever it may be draining.

", . . the higher deliverability, and conversely,
and the variations between deliverability and
reserves are somewhat -- gnd recoversgble gas in
place calculated as described cover gpproximately
the same ranges, although the present allocation
formula assumes that Chey are constant.”

And on Page 137; Mr., Dutton is still cross examining. It
picks up in the middle of the question. The question 1s:
"Q But not in the same proportion?
A No, not in the game proportion. I didn't say
that the deliverability and the recoverable gas
in place in the Jalmat Field vary in the same

proportion, They do not, but they do vary over
the same order of magnitude of extremes."



Now the Court will recall that the cruclal finding to which
this argument is directed is a finding that there is a
general correlation between deliverability and recoverable
gas in place, and this witness i{s here testifying that they
are not in the same proportion: "I didn't say that they
vary in the same proportion. They do not." And his
testimony is that they varied over the same order of
mggnitude of extremes, which I assume means that the maximms
and miniwums within which the ranges occur are comparable.

"Q That 1s what your statement 1s?

A Yes, sir, that is the truth.

Q Did we actually tie down the answer, is that gas
in place is not a function of deliverability?

I believe you have answered that once, but you
went on.

A Well, they are not directly a function of -- that's
true. Rigorously speaking, that ias not true,
although they are related. I have tried to show
how they are related in theory, and I think that

explainsg the fact as to why they are relatsd in
the Jalmat Field.

Q Well, sir, there is no use to continue the argument.”
Now to Volume 5, which i3 the hearing of December 10th, at
Page 456, Now this is direct examination by Mr. Campbell
of hig own witness. In the middle of the page:
nQ Do you ceonclude from that that the deliverability
formula, despite it's the fact that it 1is not
perfect, comes cloger to recognizing the
reserves than the straight acreage forsula on
the base of that exhibit?

A Well, that is certainly true on the basis of that

a0



exhibit, and all the studies I have done."
Pointing out again that the testimony of the witneas is
directed to a relationship to reserves as he has defined
them and mot to recoverable gas in plgce.
On Page 462, bottom of the page, next to the last
question. At that point, I am Cross examining the witness.
"y How did you define the method used by Mr. Liebrock..l
Mr, Leibrock was our first technical witness.
P, « s in the computation of the reéoverable
gas in place in his fifty-eight wells? How
did you refer to that, what process is that?

A I referred to it, I believe, the same as he did,
as a volumetric calculation.

As 8 volumetric. calculation of gas in place?
Recovergble gas in place.

What 18 the method that you used for that purpose?

A Y

I obtained an estimate of that by obtaining the
future recoveries of the individual wells on the
basis of an extrapolation of the pregsure pro-
duction data and dividing by the acreage assigned
to the individugl wells. That is a -- really it's
a graphical solution of a mgterial balance
solution.m

I think that word is supposed to be "question of sgolution”,

"Q Is that a material balance computation as you
understand that term?

A Yes, sir.

Q Would you tell us briefly the factors that are
included in making a material balance computation?

M
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In this particular computation, I think that I
tillustrated those merely taking the slope of the
pressure production curve and multiplying that
by the remaining pressure down to the abandonment
pressure.

Is or is not it true that in making a material
balance calculation, one of the factors that you
are required to take into consideration is the
migration of gas across the boundaries of the
tract as to which the computation is made?

Well, the assUmption that is implicit in the
calculation as I have conducted it, is that the

‘volume of gas being depleted from which the

depletion occurs, remgins congtant.”

And I would pause to say that it seems to me that we are

right there at the sixty-four-dollar question and answer,

where the witness admits that the formula or the computation

which he made is valid only if you assume that there is no

migration of gas acrogss lease lines.

"Q

Lat me be sure I understand you. You are assuming
in your computation that there is no migration of
gas across lease lines during the period of time
that production which you have put on your graph
is occurring?

No, I'm not assuming that.

Well, I misunderatood you. Will you tell me what
you did assume in that regard?

Well, of course, the assumptions are not made by
me. They are implicit in the equation, the
material balance equation, the extrapolation of
that straight line. It simply says that the volume
of gas being depleted by that well or on which

a pressure reduction occurs as a vesult of
production from that well remains constant.

¥here that volume of gas 1s in respect to the

lease lines is not determinable from such a
calculation.”

422



And there we are where we consider to be the sixty-four-

dollar question; that the whole testimony presented on the

basis of well reserves here gives no effect to where this

gas 1s with reference to lesse lines, and the statute -~

as it must be on that statute basis.

"Q

So that if the gas produced from a particular
well on which you made that computation included
any gas that had migrated across lease lines,

it would tend to inflate the reserves which you
would get, would it not?

I don't egree that it would tend to inflate above
what? #hen you say, inflate, that means increase
above something. I am not gure of your reference.

Above the recoverable gas in place under the tract?

I don't know whether it would be or not, the
migration could be plus or minus. It might
deflate.

Assuming @ migration toward the well, it would
increase the reserves that would result from
your computation, would it not?

Would you restate that? I'm not sure I under-
stand that question.

Assuming a migration of gas across the lease
lines to the well on which you have extrapolated
a curve, that migration would be reflected in
your curve with the result that you would show

& larger reserve than the well in fact had if
you assumed a8 a reserve the recoverable gas in
place?

If the well is depleting an area larger than that
assigned to it gnd as a result migration occurs,
the reserves calculated on the basis of the
performance of the well would be larger than

had that migration which we have assumed wasnt't
there, yes, gir.

]
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Q So we are, 1 think, in complete agreement on that.
The reserve calculation which you have made would
be inflated to the extent of any migration that
occurred across lease lines while the production
was in process?

Well, it works both ways.

Or deflated?

Or deflated.

Exactly?

L L0 P>

Yes, sir. The performance of that well is governed
by the area being depleted by that well. . Now,
whether or not that area conforms to the lease
lines is something that isn't determinable.”
And here, again, is the basic fallacy in the entire case put
on in an attempt to meet the requirements of the New Mexico
statutes because, by the witness himself, it is admitted
that he cannot determine that this gas has any relationship
to the recoverable gas in place under the tract, and he is
giving effect to all of the drainage that has, or may have,
occurred before proration started, or at any other time; in
determining what the future reserves of that well are. And
this is a basic -- well, the respect in which the record
is completely silent insofar as the case presented by
petitioners is concerned.

At Page 467, 1 was still cross examining:

nQ But you have admitted that your method includes
any gas that may have migrated across the lease
line, have you notl

A That effect is in there, yes, sir. That is not
an admigsion. That is a statement of fact."

443
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Page 475,

"Q

Then this

"

A
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bottom of the page. I'm still cross examining:

In spite of the fact that it does reflect over and
under production in the life of the well, «- or
put it this way: does reflect drainage either
from or to the well for which the reserve is
computed?

It doesn't reflect drainage. It reflects the
most probable recoveries of gas that will be
obtained from the individusl wells. If there is
drainage, taking place, whatever drainage there
is is included in that estimate."

significant question:

The estimate assume that that same drainage will
continue for the life of the well?

Well, it varies.

It does gssume that it will continue for the life
of the well, does it not?

MR. CAMPBELL: He is attempting to answer the
question.

It assumes that the same degree of drainage will
continue to exist or that the same area or volume
of gas will continue to be depleted by that well.
If the migration towards that well increases in
the future, then the curve should flatten in the
future. 1f it decreases, then the curve should
assune a sharper slope, yes, sir, that is correct.

MR. MALONE: Thank you very much.”

Now in commecticn with that, I'd like to refer again to the

exhibit here that we identified as ~- the exhibit tc which

I now refer is Operator's Exhibit 2-R, and the witness

refers to

the flattening of the curve. That's what

happened in this case here where they originally indicated

it went down here. The drainage increased and go the curve

it
&n



flattens and comes out here and indicates a larger ultimate
recovery.

I have just two other brief recorde. Volume No. 7,
which is on rehearing at Page 206. This is cross examination
of Mr., Keller by me.

n"Q Mr.Keller, I want to be sure that I understand
the procedure which you followed in grriving at
the reserves which were the basis of your testi-
mony. Am I correct in my understanding that you
extrapolated a pressure production curve to an
abandonment pressure of 100 pounds, and taking
the figure which you obtained i{in that fashion,
you divided it among the number of acres assigned
to that well to arrive at the per acre value?

A Yes, sir.

q That was the manner in which the computation was
made?

A That's right. That pressure production data was
during the period of '51 to '57.

Q When you say 'to '57', do you mean up to '57 or
including *57%

A Well, sir, it?'s up to the date of the pressure
on the '57 survey on each well.

Q That would be up to approximately Jamuary lst,
18571

Plus or mimusg.
Twe or three months?

Yes.

£ » £ >

It 18 true that all of the figures which are the
basig, the so~called reserve figures which are

the basis of your testimony and the exhibits which
you have presented are figures which you obtained
through the use of that method?

46



48

It's true that all my reserve per acre figures
were arrived at in that mannen yes, sir.

Now, I would appreclate it if you could answer
this question yes or no, just to clarify the
question, end if you want to explain the answer,
why, I'11l be glad for you to. Are you telling
this Commigsion that the figures which you
arrived at in that manner are the recoverable
gas in place under the tracts assigned to those
wells?

No, sir.

Are you telling -~
Could I explain?
Yes, you may.

I am telling the Commission that the distribution
of the reserves per acre calculated in the manner
that I have shown represents a trend in the
variation of the actual recoverable gas in place
distribution throughout the field.

But not that they are the equivalent of the
recoverable gas in place under the tracts?

They are not the equivaglent for the individual
tracts, no, sir. I thought I had explained that.
They do represent, in my opinion, the fact that
there exists a variation between tracts in
recoverable gas in place, and the variation
represented by the reserves per acre is very
similar to the variation that actually exists

in respect to recoverable gas in place.

Now, may I ask you another yes or nc question?
Are you telling this Commigsion that the same
relationship exists between deliverabilities and
the reserves as you have computed them that
would exist between delivergbilities of those
wells and the recoverable gas in place under the
tract on vhich the well is located?

I am saying -~
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A

Can you answer that yes or no?

Would you repeat that? Can you read the question?
The reporter reads the question.

Yes, sir, so far as the field pattern is concerned.

Is that same answer true so far as individual
tracts are concerned?

No, sir.”™

And I would interpolate there that drainage occurs between

individual tracts and not field patterms.

"Q

A

S¢ you are not telling the Commisgsion that the
relationship between deliverability and the gas
in place under individual tracts is the same as
the relationship between deliverabilities and the
reserves, as computed by you for that trgct?

Not for the individual tracts; just for the
field distribution picture as a whole."

Now the final excerpt, Page 222. I'm still cross examining.

"Q

Now, you have agreed with me, I believe, that
the figure that you so compute is not the
equivalent of recoverable gas in place?

If there was no migration between the tracts,
it would be exactly the recoverable gas in place
between the tracts.

I believe we established early in the hearing
that migration does exist between the tracts?

You want me to assume migration in this example?
Yes.

Then the difference in the reserves per acre and
the actual recoverable gas in place that you get
under your hypothesis would be dependent upon

how much migration took place under those
circumstances.”

4.



Row, as the Court will cbserve, this basic question to which
this argument is directed went throughout this hearing,
and even on the final rehearing, we were still hammering
away at this question of the effect to be given the testi~
mony as to reserves, on which the entire case that Texas
Pacific Coal & Oil was based. I say again that, if that
meets the requirements of the statute, there is plenty of
substantial evidence in there, but the witness himself
testified, not once, but a number of times to the effect
that, as an experienced and legitimate engineer had to admit
that these well reserves that he computed and distributed
back out over the acreage give effect to all of the migra-
tion of gas that has occurred in the whole history of the
well, and are an entirely different thing than the recover-
able gas in place under the tract, becsuse, obviously, to
set up a proration formula on the basis of his computation,
merely perpetuates the drainagge that has occurred in the
past for the entire life of the field. And it is for that
very reason that we have fought this thing from start and
will continue to fight it just as long a8 we can because
it is a gross injuatice.

Now, what is the evidence that ig in the record on
the subject of recoverable gas in place? It 1s my under-

standing that the Court, in considering whether or not
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there is substantial evidence to support the position of the
Commigsion, reads the entire record and reaches a conclusion
as to whether the testimony presented includes substantial
evidence, we have no illusions abcocut the fact that it
doesn't take very much to constitute substantial evidence
in one of these administrative hearings, but by the same
token there has to be substantial evidence, and when the
man who presented the evidence agdimitted that it failed to
meet the requirements cf the New Mexico statute ~- and it
seems to me that that is the only effect that can be given
to his testinony -- then c¢learly there is no substantial
evidence.

The only testimony that was presented as to the
recoverable gas in place under the tract was presented by
us, and it was presented at great length on the basisg of a
study of the area which is outlined in red on Operator's
Exhibit No. 5-R, which was a fifty-eight well area. The
witness testified that it was & typical area, that it
included the most important part of the field, and that the
only reason that a study was not made of the entire field
was that the Commission did not gllow us enough time to
make such a study, and we had to select an area which we
could complete within the time that the Commission had

afforded us. On the basis of that study and the volumetric

o0



calculation of the gas in place under the tract on the
basis of a formula, which was admitted by the opposing
expert to be the formula to be used in such cases. We
studied and determined the actual gas in place under the
tracts, and then compared that to the so-called deliver~
abilities of these wells, the amount that a well could
produce, to see whether there was any correlation, gs the
Commigsion found that there was such a correlation. And
the only testimony in this record shows that there 1is no
correlation whatever and is directly contrary to the con-
clusion reached by the Commission for which there is no
substantial evidence.

And that perhaps is best shown by Operator's Exhibit
6-R on which we have plotted each cf these fifty-eight wells
and the recoverable gas in place under the tract as pro-
vided by the New Mexico statute against the deliverabilities,
the deliverabilities computed as best we could compute them
on the basis of the information that was available shown
by these green dots, the recoverable gas in place by the
red columm. If there 18 any genergl correlation between
the height of these colums and the location of these green
dots, it certainly is not apparent. The fact 1s, it shows
that there is no relationship whatever, which is an

engineering fact that is perfectiy obvious because the
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factors that give you the amount of gas that a well can
produce are the permeability, the sige holes and passages
that run through the formatiocn, the thickness of the
formation and these other factors, and the fact that the
well may have a fissure that goes right down through it.
In that case, gas gets in from the next lease and causes
it to produce at a tremenducusly high rate. It has no
relationship to the recoverable gas in place under the tract,
which this legislature said should be the basis of pro-
tection of correlative rights and the basis of any order
that is written,

I think that this exhibit in fts comparison here --
just look at the deliverability of that well as against the
recoverable gas in place, and the deliverability of this
well as against the recoverable gas in place. Thenext one
is even better, the second one. The deliverability way
down here; recoverable gas in place way up here. So, what
happens when you put deliverability in this formula? This
man's allowable i{g& out way down and his recoverable gas in
place is much more than his neighbors, but he doesn't
produce it so it migrates and somebody else does produce it.

1 say again that the only substential evidence in the
record on the recoverable gas in place under the tracts,

and in fact the only evidence is that presented by the



petitioners, amd it clearly shows a completellack of
correlation directly contrary to the findings that the
Commigsion made.

I would alsc refer very briefly to Operators! Exhibit
5-R, an exhibit showing absence of relationship fromw
recoverable gas in place and a deliverability allowable.
We undertook to construct the deliverability allowable on
the same basis that the & her side did and the tests as
they had Leen prescribed, amd then in this area we under-
took to just select cross section wells to see how
recoverable gas in place and deliverability would compare
to each other, and the evidence shows clearly -- and these
are individual wells -- the evidence shows clearly that the
reécoverable gas in place as shown in the green column, the
deliverability in the red cclumn, and it is apparent that
there is no correlation whatever between these two.

And it is in the face of that situation that it is
proposed to put deliverability into this formula, and it
is contended that the correlative rights of the parties in
the field would be better protected than under the existing
system. If that would be the case, it would be a very
curious thing that all of the operators in the field except
one would be unable to see it, and that the only companies

other than the operator himself are the gas pipeline companies
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who handle the takes of the wells and who are glad to get
the most gas out of the least wells and as quickly as
possible because it simplifies their operation.

We respectfully submit to the Court that, there being
no evidence in this record as to recoverable gas in place,
there is no evidence to support a finding that a general
correlation exists between deliverabilities and recoverable
gas in place, and that the order is invalid, erbitrary and
void; and further, that the only evidence on the subject
which was presented is directly contrary to the conclusion
which the Commission reached.

Thank you very much, your Honor.

MR. CAMPBELL: If the Court please, I would like to place about
three exhibits on the board to which I want to make
reference as Mr. Malone did. May I have time to do that,
please, sir?

THE COURT: Yes, sir.

MR. CAMPBELL: If the Court please, I would first like to make
a few very brief answers to some remarks that Mr. Malone
made concerning the question as to whether the petitioners
here were afforded an ample opportunity to present their
views and compile data to present to the 0Oil Conservation
Commigsion. I think even t he summary that Mr., Malone used

as to the history of this matter in its later stages would
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indicate that they were given ample opportunity. At the
origingl hearing after the filing of our applicntion, which
set out in some detail, as Mr. Malone indicated, what we
intended to prove, the hearing was held, the first hearing,
at which time no one except the applicents presented any
testimony or evidence. We presented the exact formula that
we proposed in this field, and we offered testimony in
evidence to substantiate ocur position that that formula
wouid come closer to protecting correlative rights in this
pool than did the existing straight acreage formula.

1 advised the other operators, and the record discloses
as Mr. Malone indicated that we realize that this would
have seriocus impact upon sll operétors in the Jalmat Gas
Pool. For that reason, we were willing to have them take
our testimony, chew over it, come back at the next hearing
and make our witnesses avallable for cross examination,
which we did. And at the next hearing Mr. Keller was cross
examined extensively as the size of these transeripts will
indicate upon the very point that Mr. Malone has brought
up at this time. On redirect, we put some additional
evidence in, studies on this, not theoretical exhibits but
actual exhibits. Included among them were these two maps,
which I have placed on the board, which are applicants'
exhibits, 2, I bellieve, 2-R and 3-R, in which Mr. Keller
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stated that, based upon his studies in the Jalmat Gas Pool,
there was a reasonable correlation or relationship between
the reserves in the pool and the deliverability of the wells
in the poocl. Now, after that hearing, the opposition con-
tended surprise by the exhibits, that they wanted another
opportunity to make a study, and they were given that
opportunity until December the %th, at which time they made
an extensive study of fifty-eight wells, as Mr. Malone has
indicated, out of a total of some 380 wells in the entire
field, in a selected area, which the testimony will show we
contend it was the best area in the field and the one that
naturally had the greatest uniformity and which would best
fit with acreage. They came back and presented exhaustive
testimony after again cross examining Mr. Keller on the
basis of their position as tc the method of meeting the
statutory requirements.

After that was over and the Commisgion entered its
order, a period of three or four months expired, and during
that time they continued their studies on what information
they could get available, the same information gvailable
to us, and it wasn't until March that this rehearing was
held at which again this entire period of engineering, method
of calculating reserves and gas in place, and the relation-
ship of the recoverable gas in place and deliverability was
gone into.

=y
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I do not think that the petition before this Court
that they did not have an opportunity or time to make an
adequate study of this reservoir is proper. 1 think the
0il Commigsion gave them ample time, and sc did we, to
make an attempt to make the same type of studies we made,
but all they came up with throughout all of thege hearings
was a study of fifty-eight wells in this entire pool of
some 380 wells, in an area where, out of fifty-eight wells,
there were only f£ive cores available, even in those wells,
and two or three of those were outside of the fifty-eight
well area. They then proceeded to assume that those cores
reflected the condition in these wells, as well as assuming
other common conditions in the reservoir, because they
didn't have adequate information, and it isn't availasble,

v to determine upon the basis of a flow volume study, what
the éeliverability of the tract may be.

So the controversy on this has been, your Honor, the
method of calculating the recoverable gas in place and,
second, the relationship of the deliverability of the wells

. to that relationship.

I would 1tke to call to the Court's attemtion that the
legislature, probably exercigling more wisdom than it often
does, when it defined correlative rights and set up the

standards which the Commisgsion is uvbligated to protect just
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as well as it is obligated to prevent waste, in defining
correlative rights, the legislature did not even indicate
that you could with any degree of exactness determine how
much o1l or gas there is in place under a 160-acre tract.
/I think {t quite obviocus on the surface that there 1s no
7 sethod of calculagtion, short of mining, which will make
that determination, even under the volumetric study. As
soon g8 you leave that hole, if you have a perfect core,
pfr . you have a complete log, ifvyau have all of the information,
;"as soon as you leave the derial boundaries of that hole,
you are in the dark as far as regerves under that particular
forty or hundred-sixty acre tract are concermed. We must
be dealing here with estimates, the best estimates we can
arrive at from the information we have available, and the
legislature recognized that when they sald in defining
correlative rights, it means the opportunity afforded, as
far as 18 practicable to do s0, to each owner of property
in the pool to produce without waste his just and equitable
share of the oil or gas, or both, in the pool, being an
anount so far as can be practically determined and so far
a8 can be practlically obtained without waste substantially
in the proportion that the quantity of recoverable oil or
gas or both under such property bears to the total recover-

able gas or oil or both in the pool, and for such purpose



to use his just and equitable shsre of the reservoir energy.
Mr. Malone is quite correct that in no place in thias
transcript did Mr, Keller, who is a competent engineering
witness, and who has had considerable experience in the
field of o1l and gas and whose qualifications certainly
were acceptible to the Commission and should be to the
Court as far as thisg argument is concerned, Mr. Keller
nowhere stated that the delivarability and recoverable gas
in place under each tract are in direct proportion. Of
course, no one could testify to that under any proration
formula, certainly not under an acreage formula which fails
to recognize at all any difference in the compbsition of
the tracts in this coneiderably niza&bla pool. Fr. Kellar
testified to two essential things: First, and some of the
testimony read by Mr. Malone and some I will refer the
Court to will point this out -- first, that in the Jalmat
Gas Pool the only method available to determine the
relationship between recovergble gas in place and deliver-
ability is the ttﬁdy that Mr. Keller gives. The transcript
is full of testimony with regard to this volumetric method
but there is not sufficient evidence availasble to calculate
it accurately Qs to the distribution of gas in place
between the tracts so Mr. Keller said, "I have used the
only method available to determine the axiatance of reserves

in this pool.™



61

Then the question came up, as Mr. Malone has said,

early in the proceedings, I think it's merely a question of

J/ semantics. I don't think we are dealing here with exact
conditions. I don't think we can guess an oil reserveir.
This is a question of semantics. What is the difference
between reserves, reserves in place, gas in place, recover=-
able gas in place! The statute says that the correlative
vights must be protected by gilving a man an opportunity
insofar as it 1s practical and in a practical way of
recovering his fair share of the recoverable oil or gas
under his property. Both engineering witnesses, all of
them ~-= 1% i3 obvious on the face of it, no formula can
meet that test exactly.

The second thing Mr. Keller said was that the formula
he proposed based upon the studies that he had made,
exhaustive studies as the record will shéw, showed that
there was a reasonable correlation in this pool between
deliveragbility and recoverable gas in place. He did not

yfaay that they were in proportion. Oi course, now then 1
don't think the statute ever contempiated that they have
to be in proportion in order for the correlative rights to
be protected. If that is the case, most certainly the more
\f{present allccation formula, straight acreage, is an unlawful

formula.
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Now I think that the record will show throughout it
arxi some of these statements that Mr. Malone made reference
to are statements to which I would have referred, but as I
say, it is a question of what the statute means, what the
Commigsion is obligated to do. It is our position that,
in protecting correlative rights, in determining whether
the 1U0% acreage formula 1s the best or the formula we
propose is the best, they must consider the impact of both
those formulas because neither of them, as the witnesses
have testified and as I will indicate, neither of them'are
perfect formulas; neither of them prevent the migration
wvhich is uncompensated, or the migration between tracts that
are not conpensated. Both witnesses, our witness, testified
as to that.

Now, with regard to "r. Keller's testimony and the
suggestion by the petitioners here that there i{s not any
evidence in the record showing a reasongble correlation
between deliverablility and recoverable gas in place under
the finding of the Commission referred to. I would like
to call to the attention of the court a nmumber of excerpts
from the transcripts which ~- and I believe I have some
that the Court may not have. I will go in chronological
order, it the Court pleas2. On Pgge 63 of Transcript No. 1l;

at the last hearing there was a sizeable lot of testimony
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and there were exhibits offered as to the theoretical engineer-

ing relationship between deliverability and recoverable gas

in place. This was the first point at which this point of

digpute arose and Mr. Keller constantly stated in that

hearing, and this is one of the places, that while there was

not a direct proportional relationship there was a reason-

able correlation or reasonable relationship in this pool

between deliverability and recoverable gas in place. ihe

question was asked him:

nQ Now, Mr. Keller, I have noted that on that exhibit
yocu have stated, as I understand you, that the gas
reserves are determined by a relationghip between
recoverable ges in place and the delivergbility,
and that acreage appears only as one of five fac-
tors in the determination c¢f recoverable gas in
place. Does acreage appear any place else as a
factor in the detemmination of gas reserves?
A Fo, sir.T”

v Now this peint that I wish tc make there is that here that

I think that the Commission was concerned not only with

whether this 1s the perfect formulg but whether this better

protects the correlative rights in the field than does the

acreage frormula. And Mr. Keller, in the very first hearing,

made the statement that that was the case, that there was

a relationship that existed between recoverable gas in

place, a closer relationship between r ecoverable gas in

place and deliverability than between recoverable gas in

place and 100% straight acreage because 100% straight acreage



is only one factor in the amount of recoverable gas in
place and that deliverability appeared at several points.

At Page 64 of Transcript Wo. 2 Mr. Dippel, I believe,
was cross examining Mr. Keller with regard to his position
concerning recoverable gas in place, and Mr. Dippel says:

"Q Will you explain to me then how deliverability

1s going to increase recoversble gas in place.
Let's don't forget the *inplacet.
A Itve already explained, Mr. Dippel, that it is
not my testimony that the deliverability of a
well determines the recoverable gas in place.
It has been my testimony that some of the same
factors such as pressure, pay thickness, and
other factors enter into both of those things,
but 1t does not follow that the deliverability
determines the recoverable gas in place.™
That points out that Mr. Keller never did take the position,
and does not now tgke the position, that deliverability
gy
determines recoverable gas in place where that deliver-
ability and that recoverable gas in place are directly and
proportionately related but it is our position that the
statute certainly dces not require that. If it does,
there is no formula, there is no gas prorationing that
would be valid under that statute.

On Page 134 of Transcript No. 3, this is a portion of
the testimony that I believe Mr. Malone may have referred
to. I shall not bother the Court by reading the testimony
but it is quite obvious that we take an entirely different

position on it than Mr. Malone. We believe that the
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testimony of this witness that Mr. Malone read confirmsg the
position that we have taken throughout this hearing that

't 18 not necessary under the statute, with the qualifica-
ions it has in it, with the natural qualifications existing
in the determination of what goes on in an oil and gas
reservoir with a few holes punched in a large area, we
dont! believe it is reasonable to assume that the gtatute
requires that anybody prove that there is a direct and
proportionate relationship between deliverability and
recoverable gas in place because the statute protects
itself by making it a matter of practicability as to what
type of formula the Commission will adopt to most nearly
meet those qualifications or giving a man an opportunity to
recover the amount of gas or oil in place under his
particular tract.

On Page 137 is another point which dr. Malone raised
in testimony which he read concerning proportiongl relation-
ship and not reasonable correlation. MNMr. Kellei answered:

"A No, not in the same proportion. I didn't say
that the deliverability and the recoverable gas
in place in the Jalmat Field vary in the same
proportion. They do not, but they do vary over
the same order of magnitude of extremes.

That is what your stateument i{s?
A Yes, sir, that ig the truth.

Q Did we actuslly tie down the answer, is that gas
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in place is not a function of delivergbility?
I believe you have answered that conce, but you
went on.

A Well, they are not directly a funetion of -- that's
true. Rigorously speaking, that is not true,
although they are related. I have tried to show
how they are related in theory, and I think that
explains the fact as to why they are related in
the Jalmat Field."”

And Mr. Keller and Mr. Liebrock -~ I know Mr. Keller
certainly contended throughout the testimony through all
these hearings that, while they are not directly related,
they are in the Jalmat Field related. He indicated then,
as I understood it, to the satisfaction of the Commisgsion
on this and other evidence showing the distribution of
reserves and the distribution cof deliverability that there
is a relationship. It i1s not a perfect relatiomship but
certainly a closer one than exists under the 100% allocation
formula where there is no distinction made between the
allowables made to the reserves on cne tract as related

to the reserves on another tract.

Un Page 167 of Tramseript No. 7, which is the rehearing
on this matter, the question of migrational effects had
been brought up. The point which Mr. Malone discussed in
the latter part of his argument, and which he read something
from his cross examination as to migration between tracts,

I might say that Mr. Leibrock, their witness, had previously

testified in this same hearing that migration will occur



under any formula -- I think that would be accepted by
anyone -- any formulae that you would devise,unless you
could obtain a perfect formula which none of these witnesses
indicated could be done. It involved some degree of
migration between t racts and within the pool. But Mr.
Keller recognized these migrational features. They were
a part of his calculations and a part of his determination.
On Page 167, at the middie of the page:
"You will also recall that I previously testified that
the reserves per &cre, or apparent recoverable gas in
place arrived at in that mammer included migrational
effects, but that in spite of those migrational effects
1 felt that that reserve per acre was the best re-
presentation of the distribution of the recoverable
gas in place per acre for the variocus tracts that
could be had in the Jalmat Field.”
I can't see any way in which he could have more directly
stated that there is a direct relationszhip between deliver-
ability and recoverable gas in place under the tracts in
this pool despite the migrational effects. That to me
that is evidence, that is testimony, that is directly in
line with what Mr. Malone has demanded as a standard for
meeting ocur statutory definition for the protection of
correlative rights.
Page 182 of the same transcript, Mr. Keller had this

to say:

%“It's been said here that there is no relationship
between deliveragbility and recoverable gas in place.



Maybe wetre involved in semantics, but 1f you were
to say there is not a unique relationship between
deliverability and recoverable gas in place, I think
that would be a true statement, but there is a very
definite relationship. It's not unique, but it's
there, between deliverability and recoverable gas in
place, and the fact that there is a relationship is
reflected by this statistical analysis represented
by Texas Facific R No. 5 exhibit."
It seems to me that that statement is certainly directly in
line with the finding of the Commission in Order 1092-C
that there is & reasonable correlation between deliverability
in the Jalmat Gas Fool and the recoverasble gas in place.
Mr. Woodruff, who was also a witness in the case for
El Paso Natural Gas Company, at Page 297 of Transcript No. 7,
was asked the question:
nQ Well, do you choose to answer the question as
to if the gas in place under a tract is proportional
to the deliverability of the well to which the
tract 1ig assigned?

A My answer is, I think it is reasonably in pro-
portion to it.*

So the transcript is not devoid at all. It is full of
contradictory statements by these expert witnesses about
their sentiments about calculating reserves when asked the
question about the relationship between delivergbility and
recoverable gas in place. All of the witnesses' statements
contained that conflict. There is no question about that.
But the Commission heard all that evidence. There was
evidence in the record, and we believe a very substantial

evidence as we have indicated, and as I think some of

ery
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Mr. Malone's reading indicated, in Mr. Keller's opinion
and in Mr. Woodruff's opinion that despite the limitations
that obviocusly ekiats in any allocation formula because of
lack of knowledge Qf what exists in the reservoir under a
particular 40-acre tract, that there was a reasonable
correlation between the deliverability in this pool and
the recoverable gas in place. And we believe that the
Commission had ample evidence upon which to make a decisionm,
and we particularly feel that it is true in the light of
the leglislative intent and knowledge that you could not
deal with that with any degree of exactness. You had to
determine a man's right to recover his falr ghare of the
gas as well as it can be practically determined, as well
as it can be practically obtained without waste, substan-
tially in the proportion that the quantity of recoverable
oil or gas, or both, under the property bears to the total
ultimate recoverable oil or gas in the pool.

This transcript, these exhibits, we believe are full
of testimony to that effect. True, the experts differed
in their opinion, as they often do, but the Commisgsion
heard them all, the Commigsion heard all of their testi-
mony, . saw all of the exhibits; the Commission studied
those exhibite we assume; and the petitioners had three

times to come back before the Commission with an opportunity

.....



to rebut our position, and they had ample opportunity -~ as
a matter of fact, after they had first presented this
58-well study and it was implied that they didn’t have time
to make further study when they came back at the rehearing
three or four months later, I asked them the question as to
whether they had extended their study of the 58-well area,
and they had not, for some reason, and it certainly was not
a reason of time. I think the reason wgs that, s the
transcripts will show, the 58-well grea was an area in the
best portion of the field where the equality between tracts
was bound to be greater thar it was between depleted areas
and better areas of the field. The testimony shows that
not only was that 58-well area a selected area but it
involves the use of 1nforma;10n fiom one well to another
that was not available on @ per~well basis. The cores of
the fifty-eight wells, for example, and a number of the
logs were missing. That testimony was all gone over before
the Commisgsion on cross examination, gnd I think the
Commigsicn amply heard this matter, that there is ample
basis in thesge transcripts for the finding of the Cormission,
that there is a reasonable correlation, and that that
finding considered the limitations of this statutory
requirement for the protection of correlative rights and

satisfies the statute, and the proposition that there is no

£
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substantial evidence in the record to sustain the order
of the Commission, Order 1092-C, is not a proper posgition.

I might say in closing that the first hearing before
the Commigsion, at which time we put on the case and rested,
and operators were permitted tc examine ocur evidence,

Mr. Keller put on & case which established sc far as he was
concerned the proposition that the same factors which go

into the making of a determination of gas in place,
recoverable gas in place, reserves, go into thedetermination
of deliverabilities such as pressures and the pay thicknesses,
and he showed the relationship between those, not that they
were the same at all, but that the same factors are con-
sidered. That was the basis, the beginning of this argument
that there is not a showing in thisg case of a direct
relationship that permits a man to recover exactly the amount
of gas or o0il under his tract. That cannot be done. The
Commigsion can't do it. No one can do it, because it is
impogsible to determine it with exactness. We do believe
that Mr. Keller's origingl testimony as t¢ the interrela-
tionship of these factors between deliverability and

reserves and gas in place, his later testimony that there

is that relationship between gas in place and deliveragbility
arply supports the order of the Commission.

MR. MALONE: 1I'd like to be heard very briefly on this, your
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Honor. I think we have got the issue pretty clearly defined
here now. As I understand it, there is no question as
between the parties but that all of Mr. Keller's exhibits
and all of his testimony with reference to any relationsghip
between deliverability and recoverable gas in place is based
upon a determination of the recoverable gas in place,
which gives effect to all of the drainage which has occurred
during the 1ife of the well and hence gives it a future
reserve which is not the gas in place under the tract, but
gives it a future reserve which includes all of the gas
which has been drained in the past from other tracts, and
that, therefore, the question betore the Court is whether
testimony by an expert as tc a relationship between that
kind of an estimate of recoverable gas in place -- which
they don't vefer to as recoverable gas in place -- as
reserves .~ as I read the transcripts, it's reserves.--
whether or not that is substantial evidence to support a
finding by the Commission that the Texas Pacific Coal & 01l
Company has, by a prepondersance of the evidence, proved
that there is a general correlation between deliverabilities
of gas wells and the recoverable gas in place.

How, it has been admitted that there is no testimony
by them with reference © recoverable gas in place that

can be compared to deliverabilities except that arrived at

*?é;
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by redistribution of well reserves, and it is also admitted
by the witness that the redistribution of well reserves
gives effect to all.of the drainage that has occurred in
the entire hisgtory of the pool. And, as the Court knows,
these fields operated for twenty years without any proration
down here so that there was plenty of drainage occurring.
And the effect of all of the testimony in this record as
to recovergble gas in place is recoverable gas which
includes that drained in the history of the well. If it is
found that that is recoverable gas in place as required by
the statute then that's substantial evidence. But it does
not constitute it and it cannot constitute it. The statute
has sald the standard by which the man's right will be
judged is the gas under his land. The witness and T-P
have admitted that the standard by which they are judging
it are the gas under his land plus all of the gas that has
been drained from surrounding acres throughout the hisgtory
of the 1life of the well. 8o the question is, does that
constitute substantial evidence, and it is no evidence.
Now, the only attack that the parties make on this
study here, which I think -- it's so commonly known that
the Court would take judicial notice of the fact that daily
in connection with pooling agreements, commmity agreements

and everything else in the o0il industry, it is necessary to

72
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compute the oil and gas under a tract, aend it is done by
thigs volumetric approach that we used here. They attack it
on the ground that we didn't have enough information and
we did not make it big encugh. We've got no burden in this
case. The test here 18: was substantial evidence presented?
If there isn't sufficient evidence to make a study of the
right that is accepted and of which the statute requires
you to make then the petitioner must fall because he's got
the burden of proving that this relationship exists, he's got
the burden of putting substantial evidence in this record
to support the finding, and it is not there by his own
admigsion. In such a situation, it seems to me clearly
the order must fall.
I would mention this in addition. It's related to
the propostion we're discussing. At Page 182, Mr. Campbell
read and relied on -- Volume 7, Page 182 -- Mr. Campbell
read and relied on as supporting this order, the testimony
of the witness who said:
"Maybe we're involved in semantics, but if you were
to say there is not a unique relationship between
deliverability and recoverable gas in place, I think
that would be a true statement, but there is a very
definite relationship.”
Row the proof of a definite relationship is insufficient
ground for the Commission to change the proration formula

which affects conly correlative rights of the parties when

w3}
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there has been a formula in existence and property rights
have been predicated upon it during the entire existence
of allocation of proration of gas in southeastern New Mexico.
To change that to a formula which the testimony in this case
showed 1s going to result in millions of dollars of loss to
these companies here on the basis of testimony of one
expert that there is a relationship ~- what kind of a
relationship? Not a uniform relationship. HNothing. This
is the testimony that was read to the Court on which they
are relying as substantial testimony, as substantial evidence.
I'm going to read it again:
"Maybe we're involved in semantics, but if you were
to say there is not a unique relationship between
deliverability and recoverable gas in place, I think
that would be a true statement, but there is a very
definite relationship."
Now, if that is substantial evidence, it is a new one on
me, A relationship can be anything. To me there is a
relationship between a man and a woman. It doesn't mean
they're married. And that is the conclusion that would
seem to be drawn in offering this testimony indffering
substantial evidence.
I think there is nothing to be gained by further
extending this argument. I believe the Court sees clearly

the position of the parties. I think that it has been

agreed and it is not disputed that all of the evidence

A
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presented ly the applicant, Texas and Pacific, with reference
to re-allocated well reserves and not with reference to

the gas in place under the tract. It is our position that
that is not substantial evidence and does not meet the
standard which the legislature laid down.

THE COURT: Mr. Malone and Mr. Campbell, obviously the Court
here ought to insofar as possible make a sufficient record
that on appeal the Supreme Court will know exactly what has
been done. I will, therefore, let the matter continue and
reserve my decision. As I have stated at one time during
a pre-trial conference, it is material to my mind to see
what the actual effect of this change order was upon the
various parties in interest here. By that, I mean what
gas they were permitted to produce before and since the
order. I assume that you gentlemen are in position to
offer proof as to that.

MR. MALONE: That's right.

MBR. CAMPBELL: Yes, sir. We object to such evidence but wetll
make a record on it.

THE COURT: Mr, Malone, Mr. Campbell has an objection to make
which I will listen to here.

MR. WARD: Comes now the Cil Conservation Commission of New
Mexico and respectfully objects and takes exception to the

Honorable Court's ruling that the 0il Conservation Commissgion



of New Mexico is not an adverse party, or adversary party,
in this proceeding and hence is precluded from taking part
therein and as grounds therefor shows the Court as follows:

(1) That Section €5-3-22 of the New Mexicoc Statutes
Amnotated, 1953, clearly contemplates that the New Mexico
011 Congervation Commission should be made g party to any
appeal from any of its decisions because it is provided
that notice be served upon the Commission.

(2) That the 0il Conservation Commisgion of New Mexico
is obligated by statute to act in the public interest to
protect the correlative rights of the public and prevent
waste and, once having entered an order purporting to do so,
it has a right and obligation to appear in court if neces-
sary and represent the public interest.

THE COURT: I will make the observation that the last few words
spoken by VMr. Ward contained the language, "if necessary®.
In a hearing such as this on an order of the 0Oil Congervation
Commigsion in which the contending parties, or opposing
parties, are represented and are apparently amply able to
sustain their positions, I see no reason for the 0Oil
Conservation Commisgion to appear as a litigant; and I
would further state that I think that their attempt to par-
ticipate as a partisan in an attempt to support their own

feeling, as evidenced by the order that they put up in this

el A
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case, is improper. An agdministrative body, where there is
no adversary proceeding, certainly has a duty and a right
under the Act to appear in the public interest, but the Cil
Conservation Commisgsion apparently desires to appear here
in the interest of one of the litigants, which 1is an
entirely different matter, although it no doubt has con-
cluded that the position they tcook is in the public interest.

MR. WARD: If the Court please, may I go a little further with
the objection which might really explain our position?
The respondents further cbject for the reason that the Oil
Conservation Commission and its attorneys hsving participated
in the two pre-trial conferences heretofore without any
objection on the part of the petitioners, and having par-
ticipated in the prohibition proceedings in the Supreme
Court, and the question not having been ralsed until the
morning of the trial, after which time it was impossible
for the parties to go back and re-allocate the work, that
the objection is not timely made and the petitioners have,
in fact, walved the right to make such objection.

THE COURT: The objection will be sustained.

MR. CAMPBELL: May the record reflect that the Texas Pacific
Coal & Cil Company joins the Cil Conservation Commission
in making this objection. I might state for the bemefit

of the Court, that our position is that the obligation of

7
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the 0il Conservation Commigsion is to protect correlative

v’ rights as its solemn obligation is to prevent waste, and
we feel that there is no differentiation insofar as this
differentiation is concerned and where solely a question
of waste might be involved.

THE COURT: It is quite evident, I believe to all of us, that
my thoughts are at variance with those of the 0il Con=
servation Cormission. As I stated off-hand in Chambers,
as far as 1 am concerned, the 0il Conservation Commigsion
has had its say, has issued its order} this is now before
this Court, and the iitigatian here can and will be safely
left to the active parties of interest.

MR. GALATZAN: May the record also reflect that the respondent,
El Paso Natural Gas Company, alsc joing in the 0il Conser-
vation Commissionts motion.

THE COURT: It may.

(THEREUPON, at the hour of 12:00 A.M.,
trial of the csuse was recessed for
lunch and resumed at 1:15 P.M. as

follows.)

THE COURT: Mr. Malone.
MR. CAMPBELL: If the Court please, before the first witness

is presented,may I into the record read some objections?

78
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THE COURT: Yes, sir.

MR. CAMPBELL: Respondents object to the introduction of any
testimony or other evidence in addition to the record
before the Commission upon the ground that the admission
of such evidence permits the Court to substitute its judg-
ment for that of the Commission, and violates the separation
of powers provision of the New Mexico Comstitution.

Respondents further specifically object tec the
introduction of any testimony or other evidence as to
matters which have occurred since the fingl hearing before
the Commission upon the ground that this is a review of the
action of the Commission and that the statute limits matters
on review to matters contained in the petition for rehearing.
If the Court please, we certainly do not want to disrupt
the proceedings any more than necessary. To preserve our
record, 1f we may be permitted to do so, we shall make an
objection on the same basis before the testimony of each
witness but not during the course of his actusl testimony
upon these grounds.

THE COURT: Very well.

MR. MALONE: If it please the Court, in conmection with the
cbjection -- gnd I'd like to state for the record that the
witness Robert Leibrock is being offered for the limited
purpose of testifying to the effect of the current deliver-
ability proration schedule issued under Order R~1092~A and '-C
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to figures included in that schedule which were not available
at the time of the hearing before the Commission.

THE COURT: Will he be your only witmess, Mr. Malone?

MR. MALONE: We will have one other witness whom we =-- I think,
your Honor, we will propose to offer on the limited question
that the standards fixed by the order is so vague and
indefinite as to not constitute procedural due process.

THE COURT: Very well.

MR. MALORE: And possibly a witness from the Commission to put

some documents in.

PETITIONERS' CASE IN CHIEF

M R. ROBERT M LEIBRGCCK, a witness called
on behalf of Petitioners, having been duly sworn, testified
as follows:

THE COURT: The objection to the testimony of
this witness will be overruled.

DIRECT EXAMIMN TION BY MR. MALONE:

Will you.state your name, please!?

Robert M. Leibrock.

Where do you live, Mr. Leibrock?

Midland, Texas.

How old are you?

Thirty-nine years old.

V<l Y T Y >R N -

What is your position?

(0
-
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I am & consulting petroleum engineer.

wWhere and when were you graduated as a petroleum engineer?
I was graduated from the University of Texas in 1943.

Were you thereafter employed by an oil company as a
petroleum engineer?

Yes, sir. I went to work immediately for Stanolind Gas
and 0il Company.

For how long were you employed by that company?

I worked for Stanolind and ncw Pan American continuously
since 1943 with the exception of three years in the Army.
In February 1955, did you set up your own consulting
engineering office?

Yeg sir, I did.

Where is that located?

Midland, Texas.

What is the name of your firm?

Leibrock, Landreth, Campbell & Calloway.

Are you thesenior member of that £irm?

Yes, sir, I am.

You are the same Robert Leibrock who testified before the
Commission in the cause which is now on appeal?

Yes, sir, I am.

You are the same Robert Leibrock who made the 58-well study
that has been referred to the in the argument which you

have heard here today?
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Yes, sir, I am.
Have you since the completion -- strike that, please. Have
you, since the issuance of proration orders under the
deliverability formula put into effect by Order R-1092-A
and -C, made a study to determine the amount of migration
which occurs under that order -- strike that -- under that
proration schedule as-COmpared to migration that oeccurred
under the prior acreage sChedule?
Yes, sir, 1 have.
In connection with making that study, state whether or not
you completed the pore volume study for the entire Jalmat
Field which, has been stated, was confined only as to the
58-well area at the time before the hearing before the
Cormission?
Yes, I have.
Have you prepared an exhibit which portrays the amount of
additional migration that occurs under the deliverability
schedule?
Yes, sir, I have.
Wwhere is that?
Right over here, sir.
MR. CAMPBELL: If the Court please, we wish to
cbject to evidence as to pore volume studies in

addition to the 58-well area in the hearing before the
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Commigsion on the grounds that any such evidence is
purely accunulative.

THE COURT: 1 would think that correct, Mr. Malone.
The pre-trial orders and my comments on this matter,
as 1 remember it, precluded or prevented the intro-
duction of any testimony which might have been produced
before the Commission. You will be restricted to
events which cccurred later or to matters which were
not then available.

MR. MALORE: We will undertgke to abide by the

Court's ruling.

BY MR. MALONE:

Q

A

Did your pore study indicate that greater or less migration
would occur in the Jalmat Fool under the deliverability
formula as compared to the acreage formula?

My study indicated that a greater migration would occur
under the deliverability formula.

MR. CAMPBELL: 1If the Court please, I would like
to get this point clarified. My objection goes to this
question and the witness' answer. The 58-well study
had been conducted. It was presented to the 0il
Conservation Comnmission as were this witness' conclugions
concerning the extent of migration, that comparative

migration, under the deliveragbility formula. It seems
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to us that this line of testimony is all cumulative
of what was availgble to and may have been presented
to the Commission.

MR, MALONE: This testimony is directed to the
propostion as tc the effect of the deliverability
formula upon the gas produced by the operators in the
pool as compared to their situation under the acreage
formula. We propose, if permitted toc do so, to show
by this witness the extent of the migration, additional
migration, which occurs and to then relate that to its
effect upon individual cperators in the pool resulting
from the adoption of the deliverability formula.

THE COURT: I don't know exactly whether I under-
stand this or not, but I have heretofore stated and
will again state that I think it proper for me.to
attempt to ascertain what the effect of this orvder
has been upon the operators. Prior to July lst of
last year, there was of neceasity the matter of specu-
lation as to what effect the order would have upon
varicus operators in the pocl but now we should be able
to learn, at least to some extent, what effect upon them
the order has beeﬁ, and, so long as the inquiry is
restricted to tho&e factors, the cbjection will be

overruled.
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MR. MALORE: I might state, if the Court please,
to supplement our position, it i1s that the effect of
the order has been to confiscate the property of the
petiticners, and we therefore believe that we are
entitled to have this Court consider that origingl --
I will, however, in the light of the Court's ruling
withdraw the question directed to this exhibit and ask
the witness whether or not he has made a study to
determine the effect upon the amount of gas produced
by operators in the Jalmat Field of the application of
the deliverability formula as compared to the acreage
formla?

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir, I have.

BY MR. MALONE:

Q

Will you state the names of the individual operators as

to whom you have reached conclusions and the effect upon
them of the deliverability formula, directing your testimony
to the July deliverability formula, which 1is the latest
Commigsion formula?

Yes, sir. This will reflect the change in monthly allowable
resulting from the adoption of the deliverability formula

to the various operatois in the field. The operators whose
names I will read first are those operators who suffered a

decrease in current allowable as a result of the adoption
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of the formula. This is based on the July proration schedule
which is the latest schedule available to us. The first
operator is Olsen with a decrease in current allowable of
100 thousand mcf per month,

At ten cents per mcf, how much decrease in income per month
would result?

That 1s ten thousand dollars.

At fifteen cents per mcf, how much would it be?

That would be f£ifteen thousand decllars.

Would you continuel? |

The second operator, -~ now 1'm reading these names in the
order of decrease, of logs -- is Continental 0Oil Company
with an indicated decrease in current allowable of approxi-
mately 56 thousand mcf pexr month.

Will you state its equivalent against fifteen cents per mcf?
It would be approximately eight thousand four mndred dollars
per month.

Continue.

The third operator, Southern California, with a decrease of
approximately 52 thousand mef per month, or seventy-eight
hundred dollars. The fourth operator is Jal 0il with a
decrease of approximately 47 thousand per month, or seven
thousand dollars, Sinclair with a decrease of spproximately

42 thousénd mcf per month, or sixty-three hundred dollars.
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Lecnard Oil with a decrease of approximately 36 thousand,
or fifty-four hundred dollars. Skelly with a decrease of
approximately 32 thousand mcf per month, or forty-eight
hundred dollars. Finally, El Pasc with a --

Q That's El1 Pasoc Ratural Gas Company?

A Yes, sir, with 30 thousand mcf, or forty-three hundred and
fifty dollars. Row, I'm moving over to the increase side.

THE COURT: Thirty thousand, forty-three hundred
and fifty dollars?

THE WIF NESS: Excuse me. El Paso with a decrease
of 30 million cubic feet per month, forty-three hundred
fifty dollars per month.

MR. MALONE: That's at f1fteen cents per mcf.

THE COURT: All right. That's all right. There
is something wrong with my srithmetic or his because
fifteen cents doesn't come out that close however.

THE WITHESS: That should be forty-five. I mis-
read it.

(THE WITNESS continuing amswer): On the increase side, Cities
Service with an inciease of 26 -- excuse me -~ with an
increase of 177 mcf, or twenty-six thousand seven hundred
dollars. Gulf with an increase of 175 mcf per month, or
an increase of twenty-six thousand one hundred dollars.

BY MR. MALONE:

Q That's per month?

5
b4
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Yes, sir. HNext is Western Natural with an increase of
77 mef per month, or eleven thousand seven hundred dollars.
T-P Ccal & 0Oil with an increase of approximately 72 mcf, per
month, or ten thousand eight hundred dollars. I might add
that my calculations are on a slide rule soc there will be
some slight differences.
That would be a matter of cents, however, would it not?
Yes.
Have you prepared a memorandum for your own use which shows
the figures which you have just testified to?
Yes, sir, I have.
MR. CAMPBELL: If the Court please, I hate to
keep interrupting here but I'11 try to limit it as much
as pesgible. Respondents would like to cbject to the
further testimony of this witness and move to strike
hig testimony regarding the financial loss or gain to
any operators in this poonl upen the grounds that it is
immaterial to this case. The Statutes of New Mexico
to my knowledge do not assure any particular financial
assertion to any operator, and we feel that the offering
of this evidence ¢oncerning dollar and cent loss or gain
is immaterial to a determination of whether or not
correlative rights are being protected.
THE COURT: Mr. Campbell, you will recall that the

paLe
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Court heretofore stated that it would ligten to testi-
mony which tended to support or prove that property of
any of the parties had been taken without due process,
and for that reason this testimony will be received
and.the objection overruled.

BY MR. MALONE:

Q State whether or not in your opinion the effect demonstrated

by the testimony you have just given results from an

increase in migration of gas or an increase of drainage

as between tracts in the Jalmat Field?

Yes, sir.

Under the deliverability formula?

Yes, sir, it does.

oI B I

Is that increase in addition to and greater than any drainage
that may have occcurred under the prior acreage formula?
A Yes, sir, it is.

MR. MALONE: That's all.

MR. CAMPBELL: By cross examining any of the
petitioners' witnesses, by any of the respondents, of
course, I do not waive any objection that I may have
heretofore made concerning introduction of additional
testimony at this hearing.

CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. CAMPBELL:
Q Mr. Leibrock, you made a similar estimated, or similar

study, of estimated financial position of various operators
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in this pool at the time of the hearings before the
Commigsion, did you not?

Yes, sir, I did.

Have you made any comparison of the figures that you have
here presented to -- with those you previously made?

Yes, I have.

Did you find that there was a greater or lesser degree of
impact upon the oper ators' decreasing or {ncreasing than
you had anticipated?

I found that the present study that I just commented on
agreed qualitatively with the prediction we made previously.
What about quantitatively, Mr. Leibrock?

Well, sir, the total montily allocation for the month of

July differed from the one that we used to make our previous

study, and we did not make a comparison on an operative or
operator basis per mcf.

You have not made such a comparison?

No, sir.

Now you have stated, Mr. Leibrock, that there has been
incregased migration of gas in your opinion since the new
formula went into effeét on July 1, 1958, is that correct?
Yes, sir. ,

You have previously testified that migration of gas will

occur under any allocation formula, have you not?

Yes, sir.

to
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Have you made any analysis as to the relationship of this
migration to which you refer and the estimated reserves or
recoverable gas in place?

Yes, sir, I have.

Is it still you opinion that the migration which occurs here
is not related to the recoverable gas in place, or is it
your opinion that it ig not?

Sir, I do not understand your question.

Do you believe this migration of gas which has occurred, is
this a migration which does not more a&equately relate to
the actual recoverable gas in place in this field than the
acreage formula?

If I understand your question properly, I think that my
study reveals that the migration is more severe across
lease lines, the dfainage is more severe across lease lines,
under the deliverability formula than it is under the
acreage formula.

Do you believe that the acreage formula gives recognition
to the recoverable gas in place under a tract to any
measurable degree?

Yes, sir, to a measurable degree, it does.

Does it give any effect to the pressure of the well?

The acreage formula?

Yes, sir.

No, sir.
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Q Since the last hearing, have you conducted any study with
regard to pressure variation within the Jalmat Gas Pool?
A Yes, sir, I have, and 1 =-

MR. MALONE: If the Court please, we object to
the question as improper cross examination, and do
so on the basis of the cbjection made by counsel
originally at the presentation of the witness.

THE COURT: It will be sustained.

MR. CAMPBELL: That's all the questions I have.

THE COURT: Anything further, Mr., Malone?

MR. MALONE: Nothing further. For the record, and
in order to perhaps assist counsel in a statement of
his objection to our next witness, I would state that
the testimony of this witness is directed to the pro-
position that the order incorporating deliverability
in the formula, as it operates, is so vague and
indefinite and uncertain in its application as to
constitute a taking of our property without due process
of law, and thet the order is, therefore, void. The
testimony will be presented by Mr. Kellahin.

' MR. CAMPBELL: If the Court please, in addition
. to the introduction of any additional testimony or
other evidence as indicated by my objection concerning

the first witness, I would like to object to the
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introductionof any testimony concerning the vagueness
or indefiniteness of the Commission order upon the
ground that the matters concerning the application of
the order were in effect prior to the rehearing before
the Commigsion, gend that this objection was not raised
at that time.

THE COURT: It will be overruled.

VICTOR T. LYOK, & witness called on behalf

of Petitioners, having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. KELLAHIN:

LA ol A Y -

<

What 48 your name?

Victor T. Lyon,

By whom are you employed, Mr. Lyon?

By Continental O0il Cempany.

What is your position with the Continental Oil Company?
Digtrict Engineer, locgted in the Eunice District, Eunice,
New Mexico.

Mr., Lyon, are you a graduate engineer?

Yes, eir. I was a graduate with a B.S. Degree in general
engineering at the University of Oklshoma in 1945.

Now, subsequent to 1945, have you been employed in the oil
or gas business?

Yes, sir. After serving approximately eighteen months in
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the Navy, I worked for a short period for Magnolia Petroleum
Corporation on a gecphysical crew. In December of 1946, I
was employed by Continentsl Cil Company as an engineer-clerk
in the headquarters office and in the proration engineer's
office.

Now subsequent to that, where were you employed?

While I was in the Preoration Engineer's office, I was
responsible for studying proraticn methods in the various
states in which we operate and representing the company at
meetings and hearings involving proration methods. In 1950
I was promoted to Regional Proration Engineer located at
Cklghoma City in charge of the coordination of proration
activities in the states of Cklaghoma, Kansas, Illinois and
Indiana. In 1653, I was transferred to Fort Worth, to our
Southwestern Region, in the same capacity where I was
resgponsible for the coordination of proration sctivities in
the general western portion of Texas and southeast New
Mexico. In 1956, 1 was transferred to Rcswell, New Mexico,
the New Mexico Division, where my activities were concerned
solely with the Stagte ¢of New Mexico. In 1957, I was trans-
ferred to Eunice in my present capacity in which I am
responsible for all engineering phases of ocur operations,
including the drilling, the completing, producing, reworking

of wells, oil and gas wells.



Is the Jalmat Gas Pool within the district of which yocu are
the Digtrict Engineer?

Yes, it is.

Are you familiar with the testing of Continentsl operated
wells in the Jalmat Gas Pool?

Yes, I am.

How did you become familiar with that?

When the deliverability formula was first proposed, it was
necessary for me to become informed on the testing procedure,
and during the taking and calculation of tests since that
time why I have become more familiar with the procedure.
Mr. Lyon, are you familiar with the Commigsion's Order

No. R~1092-A and ~10%2+C7%

Generally, yes, sir.

Does that order make any provision for the manner in which
wells are to be tested]

To some degree. It is not very specific about how it is
supposed to be done.

Could you, on the face of the information contained in the
order, conduct a well test which would give you a deliveragbil-
ity figure?

Yes, sir, but I dontt believe that one could be assured
that two people reading the crder would conduct the test

and calculate the deliverability in the same manner.

x
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Well, is the deliverability, in engineering concept, a
certain definite term?

Well, it is a texrm which is used to describe a figure which
is a theoretical flow of gas at a given back pressure
condition.

But that given back pressure condition can vary from test
to test according to the requirements set up in the test,
is that what you are sayingl

To a limited extent that's true.

Are you familiar with the provisions of the directive which
was issued by the Commission under the date of February 24,
19587

Yes, sir.

What did that directive provide?

Well, the directive provided more specific informetion cn.
which to base and calculate a deliverability test.

Now, would you outline very briefly how these tests are to
be made?

First, it is necessary to cbtain permission from the
Commigsion to take your test and, after this permission is
obtsined, with the cooperation cf a testing agency, which
in our case is El Paso Natural Gas Company, the gas purchaser,
a schedule is prepared and submitted tc the Commigsion and,

in accordance with that schedule, a well to be tested is
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first commenced flowing for a 72-hour preflow period. At
the end of the 72-hour preflow, a 24~hour test flow is
commenced., At the conciusion of the 24-hour test flow, the
readings necessary to make a deliverability calculations
are observed and recorded. These data are the casing and
tubing pressure, the static pressure below the orifice
plate, the differential pressure across the orifice plate,
and the temperature of the gas.

Now you referred a moment age to making some calculations
at the time deliverability was suggested. How did you make
thosge?

Excuse me, sir, I had not compieted the entire test procedure.
I'm sorry.

At the conclusion of the cobservation and recording of this
data, the well is then ghut in for a period of 72 hours

and the wellhead, tubing, casing pressures are observed

and recorded at 24, 48 and 72~hour periods. Then this data
is furnigshed to the operator, or to my department, by El
Paso, and then it is my responsibility to see that the raw
data is converted into a completed deliverability test
calculation, which is to be done, of course, in accordance
with the “ommission's directives,

Now you referred earlier in your testimony to some calculations

which you made when the question of a deliverability factor

€3
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was first rasised. How did you make that calculation?
When the question of a deliverability formuls was first
raigsed, it was necessary for us tc evaluate the effect on
ocur operations and revenue to inform cur management, and
this calculation, or estimation, was based on the 1957
four point back pressure tests which had been run on our
wells.

Now, subsequent to the entry of Urder No. R-1092-A, were
any tests mgde on Continental's operated wells?

ges, slr, in accordance with the Commission's order, we
took deliverability tests on all cf our wells on which &

test could be run.

Now, did you make a comparison of the results of those tests

with your previous estimates?

Yes, sir.

What did you find?

We found that the results of the deliverability tests, or
the calculsted deliverabllity based on these tests, was

approximately 2C per cent below what our preliminary

deliverability tests indicated they should be, on the average

that isg.
Did ycu mgke any retests on any of those wells?
Yes, sir; becaquse of the fact that ocur deliverability was

far less than we had anticipated, we, in cooperation with
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El Pasc Natural Cas Company, retested eighteen of our wells.
Now, did these retests coincide with §revious tests?

A No, sir. We were able to secure increased deliverability,
or calculated deliverability, on fifteen wells. The average
increase was 145.5 per cent of the teste taken during the
regular testing period.

Did you find any decreases on any of those retests?
Yes, sir. We had three wells which showed a decrease.

Q Row, Mr. Lyon, were all of these test made in compliance
with this directive ﬁf February the 24th, 15581

A Yes, sir.

Q Did you file the results of all these test with the 011
Congervation Commission of New Mexico?

A No, sir. We filed only those tests which showed an increase.
Now, why did you do that?

A We felt that our competitive position had been reduced, and
we were trying to achieve competitive position that we had
previously indicated before, and, consequently, we filed
only those tests which showed an increase.

Q Now, do you know of any rule, order or regulation by which
you were requir ed to file the results of all tests with the
Commisggion?

A Mo, ,8ir.

Q Now, subsequent to those tests which you have described,

did you make any additional tests?
;

£ 34
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Yes, sir. In accordance with the Commission's directives,
of course, we took tests on all of our wells during the
1959 deliverability test period. Comparing =~-

Before you get to that, did you file all these tests with
the Commission?

Yes, sir.

Now, would you compare the results of those tests with the
previous tests that had been made?

The deliverabilities, or calculated deliverabilities, from
our 1959 tests showed an increase -- not an increase, but
an average percent change from the 1958 deliverability of
38.5 per cent. Now that comparison takes inte account the
deliverabilities obtained on the retests in 1958,

All those tests were made in compliance with the directions
of the 01l Conservation Commission for testing wells in the
Jalmat Pool?

Yes, sir.

And the same testing procedure was applied in all of the
tests?

Yes, sir.

Now, have you made an analysis of the Continental operated
wells to determine just what results were achieved on these
retests? | |

Which retests were you speaking of?

L X4
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The latest tests as compared to the previous tests.
I'm not quite sure I understand.

Q Well, have you prepared an exhibit comparing the results
of the various tests which have been made?

A Well, I haven't quite conpleted the list of tests that have
been taken. There were twenty-one wells in our 1959 tests
which we felt could be increased, and we retested thosge
wells and submitted the calculations to the Commission,
which they have adopted, and the chenge from the 1959 tests
to the 1955 retests showed an aversge change of 110 per cent.

Q Now, have you prepared an exhibit showing the results of
these tests?

A Yes, 8ir, I have.

MR. KELLAHIN: If the Court please, we have
several exhibits we would like to post here, if the
Court will give us permiassion,

THE COURT: Put them up.

BY MR. KELLAHIN:

Q Mr. Lyon, referring to what has been marked, Exhibit 2-A,

g:t:ti;ners' would you describe that exhibit, please?
Exhibit "2-AY

A Yes, sir. That is a bar chart which shows the calculated

deliverability on the various tests which we have taken

on our wells. Along the margin to the left a scale of the

chart is shown to go from zerc to 500 mcf per day. Due to
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the wide range of deliverability of the wells which we

operated in the pocl, it was necessary toc divide them up

into several groups of varying ranges of deliverability.

The first two wells on the left of the exhibit ~-- well,

first let me explain the color code. The blue bar repre-
sents the 1Y58 original tests. The green bar, where there

18 a green bar present; is the 1955 retest which was taken

in the late summer of 1958. The red bar is the 1955 test,
which was the first test taken during the 1959Y deliverability
test period. The orange bar is the 1959 retest, which was
taken in April or May of 1959.

The first two wells on the left are our Ascarate C~-24
and D-Z4 wells, which were the only two wells that we had
on which the deliverability of 1958 was repeated in 1959,
Those deliverabilities are six and ninety-five respectively.
The next bar, which is ocur Jack A~-20 No. &, shows thiat the
number 1958 deliverability was 155; 195$ was 3963 an
increase of 155 per cent. The next well is our Lynn B No. 25,
which had a 1958 deliverabiliity of 224 and a 195Y deliver-
ability of 459, an increase of 105 per cent., And the-first
I might say that underneath each group of bars is a number
which identifies that well according to a code which we
have adopted for purposes of identification.

Now, Mr. Lyon, referring tc what has been marked Exhibit 2-B,
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what is that exhibit?

A This exhibit shows the same type of information shown on

Trial Exhibit 2-4 for a different group of wells. The scsale as
Petitioners!'
Exhibit "2-B" gshown on the left goes from zero to 2,000 mcf per day.

As on Exhibit 2-A, the code number is listed under each set
of bars representing various tests on an individual well.

Q Will you pick out some of the iteme shown tn that exhibit
arnd describe them?

A Well, for instance, the fourth bar from the left represents
the tests on our Jack A-21. The 1958 test, 297 mcf. The
1958 retest, 751, an increase of 167 per cent. The 195%
test was 1,856, an increase of 57.3 per cent from the
previous test. The 1959 retest was 1,246 or a decrease of
approximately 30 per cent. The third bar over to the right
from that one is a Lynn A, Ro. 25, which shows that the 1958
test was 1,8Y0; 1959 was 1390, a decrease of 26.5 per cent.
And the next to the last bar from the right represents the
tests run on our Stevens B-18, No. 1. The 1958 test was
757. It was retested in 1958 for a calculated deliverability
of 2,022, an increase of 168 per cent. The 1Y59% test was
1,577, a decrease of 22 per cent from the previous test.
The next test, the 1959 retest, was 1, 8Y97.

Q I refer you to what has been marked as Petitioners! Exhibit

No. 2-C. Will you discuss that?
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Exhibit No. 2-C is similar to 2~-A and 2~-B, showing wells with
higher ranges of deliverability. This scale is shown to go
from gero to 12,000 mcf per day. As in the other exhibits,
the code number is for identification purposes and appears
beneath each group cof bars. I might call the Court's
attention to Well No. 60 gs shown on the exhibit, which is
our Stevens B-12, No. 4. The 1958 test on this well was
2,743. It was retested in 1958 for a calculated deliverabil-
ity of 11,175. 1It was ﬁested in 959 for 7,146,
What per cent change does that come up to? If you have that
figure.
Yes, sir, I believe I have it. The 1959 test was less than
the 1958 retest by 36.1 per cent.
Now, Mr. Lyon, was the same testing procedure used in all
of the tests which you have graphically displayed on these
exhibits?
Yes, sir,
Were Exhibits 2-A, 2-B and 2-C prepared by you?
Yes, sir; under me or under my immediate direction.

MR. KELLAHIN: At this time we would like to offer

Petitionerd Exhibits 2-A, 2-B and 2-C,

MK, {PBELL: Ho objection.

THE COURT: They will be admitted.

MR. CAMPBELL: If the Court please, I say "no

objection” based upon cur general ebjection of course.

103
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THE COURT: I understand.

BY MR. KELLAHIN:

Q

Mr. Lyon, you have referred tc a code number referring to
Exhibits 2-A, 2-B and 2-C., Have you prepared a table showing
the wells to which you have referred?

Yes, sir, I have, and they are in my briefcase.

1 hand you, Mr. Lyon, what has been marked as Petitioners'
Exhibit 3 and ask, is that the code list which you prepared?
Yes, sir, it is.

and what information have you set out on that exhibit?

This exhibit has five columms. The first column identifies
the operator and well. The second columm, which is headed
11958 .Deliverability® shows the deliverability which Ge
Commission had adopted in the 1958 testing period. And
these figures are taken from the June 1Y5% proration schedule.
1 might call to the Court's attention --

Just & moment. In addition to the Continental operated
wells, what other wells appear on this list?

All the wells in the field appear on this list.

Now you have described the source of your figures on the
two colums?

Yes, sir.

Are those taken from official records of the Cil Conserva-
tion Commission?

Yes, sir.
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Have you any specific comparisons you would care to make?
Well the 1958 deliverability tests were from July 1958 to
June 195%. Therefore, the June 1959 schedule shows the
latest approved 1Y5% tests, deliverability tests, which the
Commission had accepted. And the information in the second
colurm {8 tagken from that schedule, The 1959 deliveragbility
tests were incorporated into the July 1959 proration schedule.
and the third column headed "195% Deliverability" was taken
from that proration schedule. The fourth column headed
"Percent Change" shows the percentage change from one test,
that is the 1958 test, to the 1456 test. The fifth columm
is a code number which has been assigned to the well for
identification purposes.
Now, was Exhibit No. 3 prepared by you, Mr. Lyon, or under
your direct supervision?
Yes, sir.

MR. KELLAHIN: At this time, we'd like to offer

in evidence Exhibit No. 3.

THE COURT: It will be admitted.

'BY MR. KELLAHIN:

Q

Now, Mr. Lyon, on the basis cf your study of Continental
wells, were you able to draw any conclusions?
Yes, sir. Based on oUr experience with testing our wells,

it appeared that it was impossible to get a deliverability
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which appeared to be of any significance as far as accuracy
is concerned.

On what do you base that conclusion?

Well, the fact every time we tested wells we had a sub-
stantial change in deliverability.

What was the average change in deliverability tests for gll
of your wells?

I don't believe I have an overall figure but, based on our
1959 tests or retests which are shown on Exhibit 3, compared
to the 1958 tests, we had an average(change of slightly more
than 40 per cent.

Is that a situation which is peculiar to Continental 0il
?ompany's wells? Wells operated by them?

We found that it is not.

How did you check that?

We made the comparison which is shown on Exhibit Wo. 3,
comparing the percentage change of each well in the pool.
Did you prepare some exhibits similar to those which you
have introduced on Continentalts wells on all the wells in
the pool?

Yes, I did.

Now, Mr. Lyon, referring to what has been marked as
Petitioners' Exhibit 4«A, would you state briefly what that

is designed to show?

g ¢ Y
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Yes, sir. Exhibit No. 4~A is a chart showing a group of other
wells in the field similar to the mammer we have shown our
own wells. I'd like to point cut that,due to that extreme
range of deliverabilities in the pool, it was necessary

in order tc show these things in a clear manner according

to their deliverability so that the scale would be visible.
Do you mean that on subsequent exhibits a comparison of the
length of the bars of this exhibit would indicate nothing?
No, it would not be a representative compariscn.

All your comparisons on this exhibit would be?

That's true. This goes from gero to 1,000 mef., For example,
the green bar, that's the 1958 delivergbility; a red bar
indicates the 1959 deliverability. The wells that are shown
here are those whoge 1958 deliverability ranged between

zero and 200 mcf per d@y.

What was your source of information on the deliverabilities?
From the proration schedule which I mentioned.

Ig that the official record to which you referred a moment
ago? |

Yeg, sir.

Now, referring to what has been marked as Exhibit 4-B, would
you discuss that exhibit?

Exhibit No., 4-B shows the wells whose deliverability in

1958 ranged between 200 and 500 mcf. The same colored code

is used there. Incidentally, under each pair of bars the

ey
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code number appears which is shown on Exhibit No. 3.

And, by reference to Exhibit No. 3, could you identify any
particular bar as to the well which is reflected?

Yes, sir.

Now referring, for example, to what has been designated as
Well No; 20 on the first bar on the left, would you just
analyze what is shown on this exhibit?

That well had a 19558 deliverability of 481. The 1959
deliverability was S07, an increase of 88.6 percent.

Now referring to this portion of the exhibit (indicating)
there appears to be two mumbers under this well, No. 252
and 254.

Yes, s8ir. |

What is the reason for that, Mr. Lyon?

On the June 1959 gchedule, those two wells had a proration
schedule which was assigned jointly to the wells, and in
the July 1959 schedule the welils had been separated. Con-
sequently, since I didn't have the individual deliverability,
it was necessary to combine them.

Was that a re;allocati¢n of figures pursuant to a Commission
order?

Yes, sir, it was.

Do you know any other instances where acreage has been
re-allocated under the formula presently in effect of this
Commi sgion?

4 0
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Yes, sir. My company had such a situation.

Would you describe what occurred in that situation?

We have a lease designated, a Lynn B-26 lease, which is
comprised of a full sectiom or 160 acres. On this lease
there are four wells. Each well had been assigned 160
acres, or one full section. The number 1 well had a
deliverabilitry of 4,134; No. 2 well had a deliverability of
520. The No. 3 well had a deliverability of 1,875. ‘he

No. 4 well had a deliverability of 677.

Now, when you say "deliverabllity™ and give a number, what
neasure is that?

That's the calculated deliverability based on deliverability
tests taken in 1938,

Has your figure a thousand feet a day, a week or month?

Mcf per day.

Mef per day?

Yes, sir. Some of these deliveragbilities is 7,206. The

No. 1 well, which.is the largest well insofar as deliver-
ability is concerned, perchanced to be located in the center,
virtually in the center of the section, and it was, therefore,
possible for us to allocate the entire section to this well
thereby increasing the acreage times deliverability factor
from 7,206 for the lease to 16,536, a 130 per cent increase.

ihe effect of this based on the December 1958 proration
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schedule was an 88 per cent increase in allowable.

Mr. Lyon, was than an 88 per cent increase in reserves
underlying that tract of land?

I don't see how it conceivably could.

Referring to what has been marked Peti:ioners! Exhibit 4-C,
would you describe briefly what that 1s?

Exhibit No. 4~-Cshows thcse wells in the Jalmat Pool whose
1958 deliverability ranged from between 500 to 1,000. The
scale showﬁ at the left shows from zero to 2,000, I believe
-~ 2,506. I might call to the Court's attention Well No. 23
-= I can't distinguish which one it is over there -- but the
1958 deliverability was 791. The 1959 deliverability was
1,856, a 134 per cent increase. aAlso No. 94 had a 1958
deliverability of 605; 1959, 1,668, an increase of 176 per
cent. No. 345 had a 1958 deliverability of 823; 1959
deliverability, 2,305, a 180 per cent increase.

Fow, referring to what has been marked as Petiticners'
Exhibit No. 4-D, will you discuss it briefly?

Exhibit 4-D shows those wells in the Jalmat Pool whose

1958 deliverability range between 1,000 to 2,000 mef per
day. A note might be that Well 118, which had a 1958
deliverability of 1,355 had a 1559 deliverabllity of 474.
That's 65 per cent decrease. Alsc Well No. 244 had a 1958
deliverability of 1,358 and a 1959 deliversbility of 5,925,

a 336 per cent increase.

bt
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Referring to what has been marked as Petitioners! Exhibit
4-E, would you describe how that was prepared?

Exhibit 4-E shows those wells in the Jalmat Pool whose

1958 deliverability ranged between 2,000 and 3,000 mef per
day.

And basically, does 1t show the same information as contained
on the previous exhibits?

Yes. It shows quite a wide fluctuation on deliverability.
Now referring to what has been marked as Petitioners!
Exhibit 4-F, would you diséuss it briefly, please?

Exhibit 4~F shows three groups of deliverabilities, Group 6,
being the wells whose 1958 deliverability ranged from 3,000
to 4,000 mcf per day; Group 7 are the wells whose 1958
deliverability ranged from 4,000 to 5,000; and Group 8
those wells whose '58 deliverability ranged from 5,000 to
7,500,

Now, does it show the seme basic information as contained
on the previous exhibits?

It does.

As to the individual wella gshown on the exhibit?

Yes, sir.

Now, referring to what has been marked as Petitioners!?
Exhibit 4-G, state what that shows?

Exhibit 4~-G shows two groups of wells, Group No. 9, which
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shows those wells whoge 1958 deliverability ranged from
7,500 to 10,000 mef per day, and Group No. 10, those wells
whose 1958 deliverability ranged from 10,000 to 20,000 mecf
per day. I might point out, in Group No. 10 the first two
wells, the first one, No. 7 had a 1958 deliverability of
18,797. The 1959 deliverability was 9,941, a decrease of
36.5 per cent. And No. 8 was the largest deliverability
well in that pool. It had a *58 deliverability of 19,147;
1959 deliverability was 3,174, an 83.4 per cent decrease.

Q Mr. Lyon, do Exhibits 4-A through 4-G, inclusive, reflect
the deliverability tests as you have described them on all
the wells in the Jslmat Pool?

A No, sir. There were a few wells on which tests did not
appear for both years. Since there was no comparison possible,
Idid not show those wells on these exhibits.

Q Now, how many wells in the pool ghowed identical results
on the 1958 and the 1959 delivergbility tests?

A Six wells.

Q Did you calculate a percentage of deviation from '58 to the
'59 tests?

A For the pool as a whole, the average change was 40.32 per
cent. Now, in arriving at that percent change, I took
the individual percent change for the wells, added them
together and divided by the number of wells in the group on
which there was a comparison.

4 e
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Mr. Lyon, in connection with the tests to which you have
been referring, who makes those tests?
El Paso Natural Gas Company actually takes the tests on
our wells.
Do you know whether that is true on other wells in the pool?
No, I don't,
Now, have you made an analysis of the findings of the pool
as a whole on the basis of percentages?
Yes, sir.
Mr, Lyon, were exhibits &4-A, 4-B, 4-C, 4-D, 4-E, 4-F and
4-G prepared by you or under your direct supervigion?
Yes, sir.
I believe you have testified your source of information was
from the schedules on file with the 01l Conservation
Commi ssion?
Yes, sir.

MR. KELLAHIN: At this time we'd like to offer

4-A, -B, -C, =D, <E, =-F and -G.

THE COURT: They will be admitted.

BY MR. KELLAHIN:

Q

A

Mr. Lyon, referring to what has been marked as Petitioners?
Exhibit 5, would you describe that exhibit, please?
Exhibit No. 5 shows these wells in the Jalmat Pool on which

there was comparative information, grouped by the degree of

e
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change. In other words, the first bar on the left indicates
the percent of wells in the pool whose 1959 deliverability
change was less than 5 per cent from the 1958 deliverability.
The next bar are those of 5 to 10 per cent, and the third
from 1C tr 20, fourth from 2C to 30, the next one 30 to 40,
40 to 5C, and the latest bar on the right shows a ~~ wells
in the pcol, or percent of the wells in the pool, who

changed more than 50 per cent from 1958 to 195Y.

Now, have you shown the percentage change on the exhibit?
Yes, sir, but 1 can't read it from here.

MR. KELLAHIN: 1If the Court please, may the
witness proceed to Exhibit No. 5 in order to continue?

THE COURT: Yes.

THE WITNESS: The scale on the left is shown as
running between 5 and 30 percent. The first bar here
includes 53 wells or 17.5 per cent of the pool which
were within 5 per cent. The last bar over here shows
that 68 wells, or 18 per cent varied more than 50 per

cent in deliverability in 1959 compared to 1958.

BY MR. KELLAHIN:

Q

Now, if you have a well of small deliverability, and there
is a small change in that well, would not the percentage
be greater than, say, a larger change on a well of highar

deliverability?

Lach
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Welli, of course, the best comparison is one of degree one
to another, or a comparison of relatively small change in
delivergbility on 8 well with an initially small deliver-
ability might indicgte a rather large percentage change.
However, a change in delivérability of greater magnitude
on a well with large deliverability would, of course,
indicate a smaller percent change.
Now, was Exhibit 5 prepared by you or under your direction
and supeivision?
Yes, sir.
What was your basic scurce of information for the material
on the exhibit?
The proration schedules which we have mentioned and the
information also contained on Exhibit Ko. 3.
MR, KELLAHIN: At this time we'd like to offer
in evidence Petitioners! Exhibit No. 5.

THE COURT: It will be admitted.

BY MR. KRELLAHIN:

Q

A

Mr. Lyon, referring to what has been marked as Petitioners'
Exhibit No. 6, would vou gtate how you analyzed the wells
for the purpcse of this exhibit?

Exhibit No. 6 is more or less a summary of Exhibits 4-A
through -G. The variocus groups which I mentioned in that,

which I showed on thcse exhibits are shown here as a bar.
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The first bar is those wells whose 1958 deliverability was
from zero to 200, and these next bars represent the wells
in the varicus succeeding groups shown on Exhibit 4-A
through -G.

Q And again having shown the percentage of change on the
exhibit after each individual group? |

A The percentage, the agverage percentage change in deliver-
ablility for these various groups is shown by those bars.

Q Now, Mr, Lyon, was Exhibit No. 6 prepared by you or under
your direction and supervision?

A Yes, sir, it was. Incidentally, this exhibit contains one
additional bar, which is a bar representing the total of
average change for all the wells in the pool.

Q Do you recall what the total percentage change was as shown
by that analysis?

A Forty point three two percent.

Q In other words, was the 1938 deliverabilit§ as compared to
1959 deliverability, showing a change of that percentage?

A On the averagescores of individual wells, it had much
greater or less individual cheange.

Q Now does that figure substantially compare with the results
of your own tests on the Continental operated wells?

A It 1is almost identical,

Q Now, was Exhibit No. 6 prepared by you or under your direction

and supervision?
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Yes, sir.
Was your basic source of information the same as on the
preceding exhibits?
Yes, sir.
MR. KELLAHIN: At this time wetd like to offer
Petitioners' Exhibit 6.

THE COURT: It will be admitted.

BY MR. KELLAHIN:

Q

Now, Mr. Lyon, based upon your analysis of the Continental
wells and your experience in well testing of those wells,
and your analysis of the Jalmaet Gas Pool as a whole, in
your opinion is it possible to obtain an accurate deliver-
ability test in the Jalmat Gas Pool?

No, sir.

Now, has there been any change in the reserves underlying
individual wells which support or would be reflected in
the changes in the deliverability tests of the respective
wells?

It is inconceivable that a change of that magnitude could
ogcur.

In your opinion, i3 there any general correlation between
the deliverability of gas wells in the Jalmat Gas Fool

and the gas in place under the tracts dedicated to said
wells? In your opinion, based upon the studies you have

made and the experience you have had -- in the experience
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A

of operation of Continental wells?
No.

MR. KELLAHIN: That's all the questione I have, sir.

(THEREUPON, a brief recess was had
after which the trial continued as
follows.)

CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. CAMPBELL:

Q

Mr. Lyon, you have been employed by Continental Oil Company
during all the period of gas prorationing in New Mexico,
have you not?

Yes, sir.

Were you employed by them back in 1953 when this matter

first started?

Yes, sir, I was.

Have you attended all of the hearings that have been held
since that time in commection with this gas prorationing
in southeastern New Mexico?
I believe so.
Mr. Lyon, I hand you what has been identified as T-P No. R-16
in Case No. 1327 beforg the 0il Conservation Commission

ich is a part of the record in this case and ask you to
read the introductory remarks in the first paragraph of

that, please?
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A "To: Operators of Gas Wells in Prorated Gas Pools - Lea
County. From: O1il Conservation Commission. As provided
for in Orders R~365-A through K-376-A, the New Mexico 0il
Conservation Commission staff in cooperation with a
committee of engineers representing several operators, have
promulgated & Deliverability Shut-in Pressure Test for the
nine dry gas pools of Lea County, New Mexico. All affected
producers and purchasers of gas in the aforementioned area
shall comply as specified in the following directive."

Q What is the date of that?

A March 15, 1954.

Q Now, Mr. Lyon, are you acquainted with whether or not a
committeé of representatives of various cperators was or
had been appointed by the committee to consider a matter
of setting up deliverability tests?

A I don't remember whether there was a committee set up for
taking delivergbility tests. I recall there was a committee
set up to establish procedures for the taking of four point
back pressure tests.

Is that a part of testing procedure related to deliverability?

A A portion of it is, yes.

Q Mr. Lyon, I hand you what has been identified as T-P
Exhibit No. R~18 in Case No. 1327, and refer you to Page

3, vhich is g part of the record in this case, and ask you
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to read into the record that small paragraph, please?

This is the introduction:

"This manual is written in compliance with Rule 401 of the

Commission's Rules and Regulations of January 1, 1953 in

Orders R-368~A through R-376-A, inclusive. Rule 401

requires back pressure tests and he oll-gas well tests,

and a statement © be filed once a year. Order R-368-A

through R-376-A, finclusive, are proration orders for the

designated dry gas pocls of southeast New Mexico. Reference

is made to Paragraph 7 of the findings of each of the

above~mentioned orders which etates!
*7. That an adequate gas well testing procedure
should be adopted as scon as possible go that
operators, purchasers and the Commisgion can deter-
mine the fairness and feasibility of an allocation
factor for the pool which employs the factors of
deliverability, pressure or any other factor relating
to gas well productivity.'®

Mr. Lyon, on Page 1 of that document there is a list of

companies and individual representatives compriging the

committee. Will you examine that and see if there are

representatives of Continental Oil Company on the committee?

Yes, sir, there are.

How many are there?

Three.

Are those representatives of Continental 0il Company to

your knowledgé people who were employed by Continental at

that timef?

At that time, yes.

Then, Mr. Lyon, Continental Uil Company, £rom the time of

the original directive and through T-P Exhibit R-18, which

by
n,
=
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is a manugl for back pressure testing, dated February 1, 19536,
were acquainted with the procedures being set up for the
taking of deliverability tests, were they not? Or ghould
have been?

A Well, they should be familiar with those which might be
established but they had no way of knowing which would be
established.

Q Is not T-P R-18 in No. 1327 a manual for back pressure
testing for natural gas wells?

A Yes, sir.

Q Is that not an essential part of the taking of deliverability
tests?

A It i8 an essential part of the calculating of the deliver-
ability tests, yes, sir.

Q Mr. Lyon, now you have testified that it fs impossible in
yoﬁr opinion to take deliverability tests in the Jalmat
Gas Pool, 1s that correct?

A 1 don't believe I said exactly that.

Q What did you say?

THE COURT: He said it's impossible to get
accurate deliverability tests in t he pool I believe.

BY MR. CAMPRBELL:

Q 1s that what you said?

A Yes, sir.

2
»
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Now, with regard to the Continental wells to which you have
made reference, in a portion of these exhibits, I would like
to ask you a few questions concerning those wells that's
relagted to the taking of deliverability tests. At the
beginning of gas prorationing in this area in the Jalmat
Gas Pool, how many wells did Continental operate which did
not contain any tubing?

I do not know.

Do you have any records with you, or do you have any personal
knowledge as to the condition of any of the Continental
wells at the time the gas prorationing on a deliverability
basis went into effect in the Jalmat Gas Pool?

I have a fairly good idea.

Mr. Lyon, are you presently in charge of the taking of
tests, or the witnessing of tests, or placing your wells

in condition for the taking of them in the Jalmat Gas Pool?
Not specifically. I am a staff employee and do not have
that responsibility.

Who does have that responsibility as far as keeping their
wells in a proper condition?

The superintendent is responsible for that, and I'm in an
advisory capacity to him,

Who is the superintendent?

Mr. Parker.

199
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Who is Mr. Lott?

Mr. Lott is presently our Division Gas Coordinator located
in Roswell.

How long has he been working in that capacity?

Two or three months, something of that order.

Have some of your tests been taken since he came to Roswell
in that capacity?

Yes.

Now, Mr. Lyon, do the amount of liquids which may accumulate
in a gas well have an effect upon its ability to provide

a satisfactory deliverability test?

Yes, I believe it did.

Did the wells in the Jalmat Gas Pool have a tendency to
accunulate liquids?

Some do.

Does the fact that a well does not have tubing in it result
in unusual accunulation of liquids?

I don't think sc for that particular reascn. Each well

is an individual case.

You have stated that you do not know how many wells of
Continental 011 Company that are involved in these exhibits
here do not have tubing. Do you know if any of them do not
have any?

1 know a good many of them do not.

)
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Do you know whether the rules of the New Mexico 0i{1l Con~-

servation Commission require at the present time tubing in
gas wellsg?

At the present they do.

As an engineer, what do you think the reason is for that?
Well, evidently it presupposes that there will be liquid

in the well, and the purpose of the tubing is for unloading
the well.

Do you know whether, since the original tests to which you
have referred, Continental has installed tubing in any of
its gas wells?

Have we ever installed them?

Have you, between the times of the original 1958 tests and
the tests that you have listed as 1958 deliverability tests,
which I believe you stated may be later teats in 59, did
they between those times ;nstall tubing in any of their wells
to your knowledge?

Yes, sir.

How many?

Three.

Which wells were thosef

The Jack A, No. 24, the Jack A, 21, No. 21 -- excuse me, there
are four, |

Do you have your code number on that, please, sir?
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A Yes, sir. Jack A, 21, No, 21, Code No. 23. Our tubing was
run between the 1958 retest and the 1959 test on that well.
You are saying that the tubing on that particular well --
Yes, sir. The Jack A-20, No, 24, ig No. 22.

Yes, sir.

I o .

And tubing was run on that well I believe in December of
1958. The Meyer B, No. 22, No. 21, which is Code No. 37,
had tubing installed in 1t in the summer of 1Y58 prior to
the 1958 retest. ihe Stevensg B-18, Unit No. 1, which is
Code No. 65, had tubing run in it in the svrmer of 1958
prior to the 1458 retest.
Q The Stevens =-- 1'm sorry.
A The Steveng B-18 --
THE CUURT: 1t's Code 65,
BY MR. CAMPBELL:
Q Now, with regard to your Jack A-20 well, your Jack A-21 well,
both of those showed a substantial increase in deliverability,
did they not!?
A Yes, on several occasions.

Did you consider that the adding of tubing may have had

o

an effect of enabling you to dispose of liquids and obtain=-
ing more satisfgctory deliverability tests?

A Well, it did in one case. However, in the retest of 1958
the Jack A No. 21, that was taken without tubing and we had

a very substantial increase of deliverability.

T
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Do you know whether any other work had been done on that
well?

Prior to installing tubing, the well was water fraced with
fifty thousand gallons of water.

Doesn't a blow~-down line enable you to dispose of liquids
which might not:otherwise be disposed of?

Well, I think it's proper that it be done.

On how many of your wells hgve you installed blow-down lines
since you took your original deliveragbility tests?

I don't know.

Do you know whether the Cocmmission personnel actually
observed the installation of blow-down lines on eighteen of
your wells?

No, I don't know.

Do you know how many of your wells, Mr. Lyon, have since
the original deliverability tests been switched from a
high pressure zas line tc an intermediate line by the use
of compressors?

I know that we have been after El Paso for about two years
to reduce the pressure in a large percentage of our business.
If g well is unable tc buck a narticular line pressure to
the extent that it cannot unload its liquids, does that
affect its ability to test properly for deliveragbility?

Of course it does.

e
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And, if it is tragnsferred intoc a lower pressure line, are you
not able to more accurately obtain a deliveragbility test?

I do not know if you can do it more accurately. You'll sure
get a different result.

ig it not correct that your Meyers A-29, Fo. 1, well, your
Meyers A-29, 5, B-28, 1, your B-28, 2, and B~-33, 1, and
your State A~32, 2, 32-3, 32-4, and E-17, 5, between the
times of these delivergbility tests weré‘transferred from

a high pressure to an intermediate line?

That's what I was talking about, that we had been trying to
get El Paso to reduce the pressure. I think that was done.
Now wouldn't that affect the deliverability of those wells?
Cf course.

Might not that be a factor in some of these variations of
which you are speaking?

There are any number cf factors that can affect it.

In other words, the vagueness or uncertainty of the deliver-
ability testing procedure that you have referred to may not
be the cause fcor these variations at ali, isn't that correect?
In some of the wells that you have mentioned were tested
betore, or were retested, before the intermediate pressure
line was installed, and we still had a wide fluctuation in
deliverability.

But the fact is that there are a number of other factors

that can enter into the wvariations of deliverability from

188
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time to time other than the actual testing procedures, isﬁ't
that correct?

A Quite true.

Q When you clean the sand out of your wells, can't that affect
the deliverability of the well?

A If it is covering gas pay, yes.

Q When you install tubing in a wéll, can't that affect the
deliverability of the well?

A It can.

Q And, as you have previously stated, the pressure of the line
it is bucking can alsc affect it, can't {t?

A Yegh, sure.

Q Well, in the installation of a blow-down iine which will
permit you to blow up the liquid before you commence your
testing, will affect the deliverability results?

A Yes, sir, but I can't see that it makes any difference.

Q Are you acquainted, Mr., Lyon, with the deliverability
procedure of February 24th, 1958, to which you have made
reference as being, as I understood you, vague and uncertain?

A Well, it isn't vague and uncertain as to how to go about it
I don't believe.

Are you acquainted with that order?

A Yes, sir, reasonably.

MR. CAMPBELL: This is a memorandum. Is it in

evidence, may I ask?
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MR. KELLAHIN: No, sir, it is not.

BY MR. CAMPBELL:

o Lo » Lo

Are you acquainted with it?

Reasongbly.

I hand you what has been identified as Respondents! No. 1
and ask you if you can state what that is?

Thig is a memorandum of the subject of Jalmat Gas Pool
deliverability procedure.

Have you seen that before?

Yes, sir.

You are acquainted with its provisions generally?

Yes, sir.

And I'll ask you, Mr. Lyon, if you will read Section B.3)
of that on Page 2.

"The daily flowing volume shall be calculated from the rate
indicated at the end of the deliverability flow period as
defined above. No change shall be made in the choke
setting or orifice size during said flow period. During
the preflow and flow periods the well shall be produced
through either the casing or tubing, but not both. The
rate of flow during these periods shall be at a rate suf-
ficient to keep the weil bore clean of liquids."

Now, Mr. Lyon, if your well bore for any of the reascns that

we have mentioned here; like blow-down lines, failure to

L
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buck line pressure, is not clean of fluids, then your
deliverability tests might show variations, might they not?

A True.

Q wWhether a well contains tubing or contains a blow-down line
or is clean, free of sand which may block the gas or prevent
the unloading of liquids, is a watter which can be controlled
by the operator of the well, is it not?

A To some extent.

MR. CAMPBELL: If the Court please, I would like
to move to strike Exhibit 2, 3,4 and 5 and their sub-
parts upon the ground that the testimony of the
witness has disclosed that numerous other factors
may bring the results that he had indicated on these
exhibits other than the vagueness and uncertainty or
indefiniteness of the procedures involved here.

THE COURT: The motion will be overruled, Mr.
Campbell. I am aware of the fact that other considera-
tions might cause those differences, but I think that
the exhibits are pertinent for -- or at least to be
considered for what they apparently show.

BY MR. CANMPBELL:

Q Now, Mr. Lyon, you have testified that El Paso Natur&l Gas
Company conducts the tests on all of these wells?

A Yes, sir.

,i.«rk
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Q Ig it not true that the operator of the well is notified
prior to the testing of these wells for deliverability?

A Yes, sir, they extend us that courtesy.

Q And give you an opportunity to be present and witness the
testing and the results of the tests?

A Correct.

Q To your knowledge, has Continental 0il Company taken advan-
tage of that opportunity in the past, and are they taking
advantage of the opportunity at the present time of witnessing
the testing procedures?

A 1 dont't -- how far back we took advantage of that, I'm not
prepared to say. We are taking advantage of it at the
present time and have been for the past year.

You have always had the privilege, have you not?

A Oh, yeah. Oh, yes.

Q Now, Mr. Lyon, in your exhibits here you have made reference
to a number of rather extreme situations that appear in
and throughout these various groups of wells to which you
have referred. I would l1ike to ask you if there are other
testing procedures involved in the operation of oil and gas
wells in the Jalmat Poel with which you are acquainted that
may also under certain varying conditions show wide variations
or anomalies, isn't that possible?

A That is correct but the proration formula doesn't include

deliverability in those cases.
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Q Is the gas-oil ratio test one which is subject to consider-
able wide variations?

A Yes, it is.

Q Can that affect quite markedly the allowable for your
wells for oil or gas purposes?

A It can.

Q Have you made any analysis of the entire Jalmat Pool with
regard to the deliverability of the poel in the early tests
as related to the present total deliverability, percentage-~
wisge?

A No, I haven't.

Q The only studies you have made then is to percentage
differences that occur in particular wells, isn't that
right?

A In all the wells.

Q Yes.

MR. CAMPBELL: I believe that's all. I would like
to offer Respondents' Exhibit No. 1 in evidence.
THE COURT: It will be admitted.

BY MR. CAMPBELL:

Q Mr. Lyon, are you aware that the orders of the New Mexico
01l Conservation Commission make the taking of deliverability
tests the obligation of the purchaser or pipeline company?

A Ko, I don't believe that's true. The obligation, the

18
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responsibility is the operator's, but the test is run by

the purchaser or a testing agency.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. KELLAHIN:

Q

Mr. Lyon, during cross examination by Mr. Campbell, your
attention was directed to a directive of March 1954, Do
you know of any order gdopting or, after notice of hearing,
setting up any well testing procedure at that time?

No, sir.

Referring to Respondents! Exhibit No. 1, a memorandum under
date of February 24, 1958, do you know of any order entered
by the 011 Conservation Conmigsion of New Mexico, after
notice and hearing, pertaining to the testing of wells for
the purpose of detemmining delivergbility?

No.

Then Respondents' Exhibit No. 1 is a memorgndum only, is
that correct?

Thatts correct.

Is it signed or does it appear to be an official order of
the 0il Conservation Commission?

No, and when Mr. Campbell asked me the question about that,
1 forgot momentarily that that memorandum does not contain
the approved slope which you use in correcting any test
flow to the calculated deliverability so that information

would be, may I say, in addition to that memorandum.
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Then the memorandum itself is not a complete direction of
how to calculate the complete deliverability of a well after
the test has been made?
No, sir.
Now, Mr. Lyon, 1f you have & testing procedure prescribed
which is subject to wide variation outside of the procedure
prescribed which do affect the results, would you call that
an accurate means of detecting deliverability? If you have
a testing procedure, which I believe in response to that
question by Mr. Campbell which was clear and unambiguous on
its face, you have since modified it by calling attention to
the fact that it does not prescribe the slope on which your
deliverability would be calculated, but aside from, assuming
it is clear and unambiguous on its face and yet in the
actual field application of that test it is subject to wide
variations because of the testing conditions, do you con-
sider that an accurate means of determining deliverability
of wells?
Evidently it isn't because it varied 40 per cent on the
average well for the entire period of 1938 to 1859.

MR. KELLAHIN: That's all I have.

MR. MALONE: That concludes the evidence to be

presented by the Petitioners.
MR. CAMPBELL: If the Court please, the motion by

the Petitioners this morning with regard to the Oil
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Conservation Commission and the sustaining of it by
the Court has put us in a position where we need to
re-organize our presentation to some extent, and we
would like to =--

THE COURT: You would like to take a recess until
9 o'clock in the morning 1

MR. CAMPBELL: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: We will do so.

(THEREUPON, at the hour of 3:45 P.M.,
trial of the cause was adjourned
until 9:00 AM, of the following
morning, being July 22, 1959, at
which time trial was resumed and
proceeded as follows.)
MR. CAMPBELL: Come now the Respondents and
move the Couf%%dixmias the petition of the Petitioners
upon the ground that the Petitioners have failed to
sustain their buxrden of proof. It is our pesition
that by the evidence of testimony offered, which
consisted of the unsupported statement as to drainage
since this order went into effect, and economic data
concerning the effect upon operators, and the vagueness

of the order which we believe was prudently ghown asg
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attributable to other causes, that the Petitioners
have failed to sustain their burden of proof.

THE COURT: The motion will be overruled.

MR. CAMPBELL: The second motion: Come now
Respondents and move the Court to dismiss the Petition
of the Petitioners on the ground that the Court has
lost jurisdiction of this matter by virtue of its
ruling excluding as an adversary party the Oil Con-
servation Comnission of New Mexico, which i3 an
indispensable party since it was the only respondent
representing the public interest.

THE COURT: The motion will be overruled, and it
will be observed that the Congervation Commigsion 1is
not dismissed but prohibited from «- or is not stricken
as a party. The order was to the effect that they
might not take an active part in thig matter.

MR. MALONE: The motion itself recognized that
they were a proper party, and it was directed to their
position as an adversary only.

THE COURT: Yes, sir.

MR. CAMPBELL: Has the Court overruled the motion?

THE COURT: It is overruled.

MR. CAMPBELL: Before proceeding with offering

testimony, your Honor, the Respondents would like to

T
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state that, of course, by offering testimony which will
be strictly in rebuttal to that testimony offered by
the Petitioners, the Respondents do not in any respect
walve any objections we have made to the introduction
of any additional testimony or other evidence before
this Court not available to the Commigsion, or to this
specific cbjection relating to evidence as to matters
which have occurred since the Commigsion ruled upon
this matter.

Our first witneas will be presented by the
respondent, E1l Paso Natural Gas “ompany.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. GALATZAN: Your Honor, let the record show
briefly, sir, that the evidence that El Pasc Ratural
Gas 18 offering at this time is subject to the motion
which Mr. Campbell has just made, and which motion we
join.

MR. MALONE: Mgy it please the Court, may the
record also show that the Petitioners do not acquiesce
in the statement by counsel in thst by presenting this
testimony they are not waiving objections heretofore
made.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. CAMPBELL: Would the Court rule on that question?

138
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MR. MALONE: "'f it please the Court, I would
suggest that there is nothing to rule on. If the
counsel wishes to present the witness, he has the right
to do so but he has to take the legal consequences of
having done so.

THE COURT: I think so.

MR. CAMPBELL: I believe that that is correct.

THE COURT: You have {t in the record. You may

proceed.

RESPONDENTS' CASE IN CHIEF

M R. F. NORMAN WOODRUFF, a witneas called on
behalf of Respondents, having been duly sworn, testified as
follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. GALATZAN:

State your name, please.

F. Norman Woodrulf.

Mr. Woodruff, are you a graduate engineer?

Yes, sir, I'm a graduate petroleum natural gas engineer.

When did you graduate, Mr. Woodruff?

February, 1948.

From what school?

University of Texas.

£ > £ » L PP L O » L

After your graduation, Mr. Woodruff, what was your first

position?
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I joined the Raillroad Commigsion of Texas, the Oil And Gas
Divigsion, as Petroleum Engineer.

How long did you spend with the Texas Railroad Commission?
Approximately three years, the latter half of which I spent
as Head of the Commigsion's Gas Department. As such, I
had under my supervision and surveillance the taking and
checking of all gas well tests, as well as the proration of
gas in the State of Texas.

Mr. Woodruff, what 18 your present position?

1 am Manager of Gas Prorgtion Operatioms for El Paso Natural
Gas Company.

How long have you been with the El Paso Natural Gas Company?
I have been with them almost ten years.

And in what capacity? As a Gas Proration Manager?
Approximately the last five years 1 have been the Manager
of gas proration operations. Prior to that time, I worked
for the Company as & reservoir engineer in the Geological
Section.

Mr. Woodruff, are you at the present time, or have you at
any time, been g member of the Deliverability Committees

as set up by the 0il Conservation Commission of the State
of New Mexico?

Yes, I believe I have served on every committee that the

0il Congervation Commission has called for that purpose.
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Are you s member of gny of their committees at this time?
No, sir.
Mr. Woodruff, what is the genergl relationship between the
El Paso Natural Gas Company and the other opergtors in the
Jalmat Pool?
El Paso Natural Gas Company is a purchaser of gas from
between 85 and 90 per cent of the wells in the Jalmat Pool.
Ig E1 Paso Natural Gas an operator as well?
Yes, sir, we are.
I hand you, Mr. Woodruff, what has been marked as Regpondents®
Exhibit No. 1, and I believe it has been introduced in
evidence.
Yes, sir, that is correct.
Are you familiar with that document?
Yes. It is the Jalmat Cas Pool Deliverability Procedures.
Does that exhibit, R-l, does it indicate whose responsibility
it is for the taking of deliverability tests?
Yes, it does.
Would you read that, please, sir?
Yes, sir, in Subsection 3 of Section A, entitled "Respons-
ibility for Tests", it provides as follows:
"The responsibility of accomplighing the amuagl
deliverability and shut-in pressure tests shall
rest with the operator of each well, An operator

may arrange for the testing of his wells by any
qualified testing agency or pipeline company."
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So then the directive states that it is the responsibility
of the operator to take these tests?

That is correct.

Does the El Pasoc Natural Gas meke deliverability tests for
the operators?

Yes, sir, we do.

Why do you make those tests?

Why we make those tests becsuse under our contracts we are
obligated to take all back pressure and gas productivity
tests on wells.

Mr. Woodruff, is it the policy and practice of the El1 Paso
Natural Gas Company before taking such tests to notify the
operator that these test will be taken?

Yes, sir, we do so.

You have stated that it is the practice and policy of the
El Paso Natural Ges to notify the operators when the
deliverability tests are going to be taken, and I have
handed you what has now been marked, Respondents' Exhibit
No. 2 and 3, Would you look at them, please, and «-

Yes, sir.

Is that the notice which you give the operators?

Yes, sir, Respondents' Exhibit NHo. 2 is a typical notice
given to operators prior to deliverability tests during
the year of '58. This notice {s a schedule, submits a

2
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schedule of the test, giving the date of the various taking
of different features of the deliverability test.

Would you read, Mr. Woodruff, please, the portions of R-2
there relating to the responsibility?

Yes, sir, I will do so:

"The responsibility for getting the wells tested and
reporting the results to the New Mexico 0il Conserva-
tion Commigsion rests with each operator concerned.
However, El Paso Natural Gas Company testing persomnel
are ready and willing to conduct the tests at the
discretion of the operator. Three test cars from

El Paso Natural Gas Company will be in the field
covering approximately twenty wells each. Since
deliverability is now a factor in the proration
formula of the Jalmat Pool, we strongly urge each
operator to have & representative present to witness
the tests and see that they are done tc their satis-
faction even though El1 Paso personnel may be conduct-
ing the tests. If any operator desires to have the
wellhead flowing and shut-in pressures recorded, they
must furnish their own recording pressure gauges as
the supply available from El Paso is very limited.

It is strongly recomnmended that these pressures be
recorded because the highest pressure so determined
and deadweighted during the 72 hour shut-in period
will be used in determining each wells deliverability.

"If any questions arise concerning the schedule or the
testing procedure, please contact the undersigned at
our office ian Jal, New Mexico."
That 1s signed by R. T, Wright, our Divigion Engineer.
Now is there any portion of that notice, Mr. Woodruff, that
you would 1ike to read which you feel might be helpful to
the Court?
MR. MALONE: 1If the Court please, we are going to

make no objection to the introduction of these exhibits
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but I think it is improper to have them read from until
they are introduced.

THE COURT: Do you have any objections?

MR. MALONE: No objections.

MR. GALATZAN: We'll offer them at this time.

THE COURT: They will be admitted. That's
Exhibits 2 and 3. |

THE WITNRESS: This identical wording that I have
read, or this identical reasoning that I have read, is
included in all notices of schedules that we send
operators for all wells that are tested for deliver-
ability, both on the annual test and on additional
tests of new wells and retests, and it would vary only
to the mumber of cars that we are going to send out
there, but we advise the operators in every instance
of their responsibility, our willingness to participate
and conduct the test if necessary, and to call to
their attention the need for careful preparation of
the well, and the need of getting a good deliverability
test.

BY MR. GALATZAN:
Q So R-2, which is the 1838 notice which you gave, and the
R~3, which is the 1959 notice that you gave, they each
contain the same thing, i3 that correct?

A That is correct.
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Inviting the operators! attention to the same facts?

?hat is correct.

Now, Mr. Woodruff, are you acquainted with deliverability
test procedure generally in the Jalmat Pool?

Yes, sir, I am.

What is that procedure?

That procedure provides for the taking of deliverability
tests, the first portion of which will be a preflow.of
approximately three days or 72 hours duration. That preflow
1s for the purpose of conditioning the well. prior to the
following 24-hour test flow. The test flow periocd is
followed by a shut-in period of agpproximately 72 hours or
three days duration. During this test, the Commission
prescribes that the tesat be conducted within certain reason-
gble limits. For instance, it requires that the wellhead
pressure of each well be drawn down at least to a pressure
10 per cent below the shut-in pressure of that well.

Now, Mr. Woodruff, is the procedure which you have explained
generally for the Jalmat Poocl the same type of test used

in the entire gas industry? '

Yes, 8sir, it is.

Now, would‘you look at what has been marked as Respondents'
Exhibit No. 1. Now, is there anything in R-1 which directs

or suggests to the operator as to what condition he should
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have his well in prior to the test?

Yes, sir, there is.

Would you find that , please.

Yes, sir, it falls in subsection (3) of Section B, It has
previocusly been read to the Court. It provides for that |
operator's vill clean the wells of fluid preparing the well
for test.

#11 right. Now does the El Paso Natural Gas Company have
authority to do any work on operators! wells to put it in
the condition that the directive there requires?

No, sir, they do not.

Has the El1 Paso Natural Gas ever put any operator's well

in condition for the test required by that memorandum?

Not unless that could be accomplished through producing

the well in through our metering facilities into our gas
pipeline.

Now, Mr. Woodruff, an operator complying with the directive
and complying with the other rules and regulations of the
01l Conservation Commisgion in getting his wells in the
proper condition, and those wells being in the proper
condition, would any two tests on the same well, would they
be approximately the same?

Yes, sir, they would be approximately the same.

If any change were made, Mr. Woodruff, in the condition of

3 7>
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Q

a well between two deliverability tests such as a workover,

adding tubing, cleaning out job, or such as that, would

the results of the tests be different?

You would expect them to be.

Is the method that is outlined as to how to take the

deliverability test as in that directive, is that clear to

you?

Yes, sir, it is.

Is it clear to the El Faso Natural Gas Company?

Yes, sir, it is.

Yesterday, Mr. Lyon, 1 believe it was left the impreasion

-~ gt least with me if not with the other people in the

court, and with the Couxt -- that there was nothing in that

directive with reference to slope. Is that correct?

That was my understanding.

That's the way I understand it. Now would you loock at

that directive and give us what it mentions regarding slope?

Yes, in Subsection (15) of Section B, Procedure for

Deliverability and Shut-In Pressure Tests, it provides as

follows:
"The value of slope n determined by the last approved
maltipoint test reported on Form C-122 ghall be used
in the deliverability calculation set out in this
directive. Wells with slopes of .5 or 1.0 which has
been determined in accordance with Procedure Rule 10(d)
of the New Mexico 011l Conservation Commission Back

Pressure Manual shall use the average pool slope of
.771 in the deliverability calculation.”

That ig the si1ope information?

147
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That is correct.
Now, Mr. Woodruff --
May I add that in addition to these instructions the
Commission went further and issued a schedule advising
the operators of the slopes of the individuagl wells even
though they had that information in their own records as
added aid.
If a well just prior to a deliverability test, Mr. Woodruff,
the well is in the condition that it should be maintained
by a prudent operator, would the result of the test be more
indicative of the true deliverability of the well then a
test on a well that has not been prudently maintsined?
MR. MALONE: We cbject to the question for the
reason that the standard of what a prudent operator
would do has not been established in the case.

THE COURT: ;:t will be sustained.

BY MR. GALATZAN:

Q

All right, Mr. Woodruff, if an operator put his well in
the condition thaet that directive calls for, and it was

in that condition prior to g test, would the result of the
test be more indicative of the true deliver ability of the
well than a test on a well where the operator had not
complied with that directive?

I would expect it.

r&nﬁ-.l
b
(0



151

Q Well then does the proper maintenance of a well, Mr. Woodruff,
increase its deliverability?

A Yes, sir, it does.

Would you tell us, Mr. Woodruff, what has been the general
result in the increase of deliverabilities of wells where
the operators have complied with the other rules and orders
of the Cil Conservationm Commission?

MR. MALONE: If the Court please, we object to
the question unless he has personal knowledge of each
operator.

THE COURT: I would think sc. With the large
number of wells in that fileld, it is hardly to be
supposed that this witness would know.

BY MR. GALATZAN:

Q All right, Mr. Woodruff, do you know of your own knowledge
what the general result has been as to the deliverability
of wells in the Jalmat Pool where the Commission's order
has been complied with?

A I do not know in each individual instance but I have an
cpinion as to what the result would be.

THE COURT: You were not asked for an opinion.

BY MR. GALATZAN:

Q All right then, I will ask if you have an opinion on that?

MR. MALONE: If the Court please, we object to the
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question for the reason --

THE COURT: It will be suatained.

BY MR. GALATZAN:

Q

All right, Mr. Woodruff, are those wells you do have
personal knowledge of where the operators have complied
with the directive, will you tell us where they have complied
with the directive and with the rules and regulations of
the 0il Conservation Commigsion with reference to keeping
the wells in condition, whether the deliverability of those
wells has increased?
Normally, those wells have had little or any change because
the operators complied with the Commigsion's directive and
rules and regulations during both tests. However, I have
found that in instanceg where there was compliance during
one test evidenced and apparent non-compliance during another
test that there has been a variation in the deliverability
data reflected -~
THE COURT: Just a minute, Mr. Woodruff. 1 don't
know 1f I understand you or not. You say, "apparent non-
compliance’, Are you assuming that, when you find a
variation, that there was no compliance or did you
ascertain first that there was no compliance and then
discover there was a variation?
THE WITNESS: 1 studied the data on the well and

found there was evidence that conditions existed which
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would not have existed had the rules and regulations
and directives of the Commission been followed.

THE COURT: But you got that information other
than from the result of the deliverability test, I
take it?

THE WITNESS: Some of the information was from
other than some of the data of the deliverability test,
yes, sir.

THE COURT: All right.

BY MR. GALATZAN:

Q Mr. Woodruff, yesterday afternoon, I believe it was
Mr. Kellaghin that put up Petitioners! Exhibits 4-A through
4-G. You remember the great number of exhibits that were
put up there?

A Yes, sir.

Q Purporting to show the comparative results of the 1938
and 1959 deliverability tests that were taken in the Jalmat
Pool. As I understand, the El Pasoc Natural Gas took these
tests after first notifying the operators, is that correct?

A That is8 correct.

Q Now, have you made any studies since Mr. Kellahin put those
exhibits up there and they were, I believe, introduced in
evidence yesterday afternoon? Have you made any study,

Mr. Woodruff, which might explain, or may explaln, the reason
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for the deviation which the exhibits purported to show in
some of the test results of 1958 and 19597

Yes, sir, I have done so.

In the interest of time, and rather than put each one of
Mr. Kellahin's exhibits up, 4f you would refer to his,

or the Petitioners' rather, Exhibit 3. Now, glancing at
that, Mr. Woodruff, could you by code number -- or explain
the reasons for the deviations as shown?

First, let me explain that we have gone through this list
and picked the wells that appeared to have obvious discrepancies
By that, they are the wells which show large per cent of
changes between '58 and 59, either increases or decreases.
We started ocut in our gtudy trying to make an analysis of
each well which had more than 50 per cent increa;e in
deliverability or more than 25 per cent decrease in
deliverability, which would amount to the same amount
volumetrically. We found that time would not permit us to
complete a study of all of those wells and, after having
gone through, I would say, possibly 25 per cent of the wells,
we changed ocur procedure to study only the wells which
showed a hundred percent chenge increase in deliverability
or fifty percent decrease in delivergbility. My total
study has included 63 wells. I have performed the analysis
of the data which I was able to discern during this period

4582
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of study myself.

All right, go ahead and give us that now.

Now may I explain to the Court that 63 wells? I am going to

briefly explain the conditions that I found as possible.

{or ingtance, I found liquid accumilation in the well bore

which was an influence in the productivity of the well. 1I'11l

just give the code number of the well and liquid accumulation.
THE COURT: All right.

(Witness continuing): The first well studied was No. 1.

It showed liquid accumulation in the well bore. The gecond

well was No. 2. This well was worked over, tubing was

installed and the operator was unable to unload liquid

accumulation. No. 4, the drop wae in deliverability

experienced there. Apparently it was due to placing the

well in & gas well gas system from casinghead gas system

at lower pressure. Also we find that the well did not

experience, during either the '58 or '59 tests, as much

as a 10 per cent pressure draw down as prescribed by the

Commigsion's rules. And Ro. 7 has a drop, and '59 pressures

show 1liquid accumulation in the well bore. No. 8 shows a

drop. Wifty-nine pressures shows a severe accumulation of

liquid, and also reflect that in 1958 there was less than

10 per cent draw down of pressure. No. 10 showed a drop.

Here I found no apparent cause except the inability to draw
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down to the 10 per cent. However, pressure data reflects
that there may be some restriction between the wellhead and
the meter run. No. 11 has a drop. In the 1959 tests it
indicates liquid accumulation in the well bore. No. 19 has
a drop. This well has no tubing in it. WNo. 20, an increase.
Pressure data showed liquid accumulation in 1958. The well
was blown to remove liquids in 1959 to increase the shut-in
pressure and volume produced. FNo. 21, an increase. This
well has no tubing in it. They had a line pressure drop
between tests, and there is a possibility of liquids in this
well. No. 22: this well was worked over, fraced, tubing
was run and shut-in pressure and productivity was increased.
No. 23: this well was worked over, cleagned out, fraced ,
tubing run which increased the shut-in pressure and
productivity. No. 26 ghowed a drop. Pressure data reflects
liquid accumulation in 1958, There was a work over, it

was cleaned cut, tubing was run and, becsuse there was no
increase in this instance, it gppears that the work over

may have been unsuccessful. 'And No. 29 had a decrease.

This well is a dudly completed well and the gas is produced
through the annulus. It produced and is troubled with
liquid and is influenced by its pressure performance history.
It alsoc shows more than normal rapidity of reserve depletion.
The next well is Ro.32 which shows a decrease. This well
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has no tubing. This well also indicates an apparent rapid
depletion of reserves since it was decreased from 168 to

248 per unit. No. 33, an increase. This well has no tubing.
It was blown and cleaned out before the 1959 test. No. 34;
this well was worked over, fraced, had tubing placed in it
and productivity increased between the '58 gnd '59 tests.
No. 36 had an increase. Liquids were indicated in 1958 and
these liquids may have been removed prior to the 1959 test.
I find no positive indication. However, I do know there

was much closer surveillance about the tests by the operator
during the 1959 tests. There was slso a line pressure change
between tests. Ho. 38¢ the well had no tubing. No. 39:
the well had no tubing and pressures reflect that it was
influenced by liquids. No. 45, a decrease. This well had
an attempted work over apparently unsuccessful, and it is
still bothered with liquids. No. 30, an increase. The well
was changed from a -- from one pipeline system to gnother
which probably enabled the well to clean up between tests.
No. 51 had a decrease. Pressures show accumulation or fluid
in the well bore. No. 52 had a decrease, apparently due to
liquid accumulation as indicated by pressure performance.
No. 60 had a decrease. This well I can find no appavent
reagson, but we often find that high deliverability will

show marked changes. No. 49 which increased. This well has
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no tubing and its system is changed to lower pressure between
tests. No. 67: this well had no tuﬁing and probable liquid
eondiction. No. 65: this well was worked over immediately
preceding the '38 or first deliveragbility test and a decline
indicated does not appesr to be an excessive decline after
work over. No. 70 shows a decline. This well is a dually
completed well, producing through the annulus and probably
loads up with liquids.

I might explain to the Court, if I may, that to
unload liquids, you need normally tubing in a well. It's
the gas passing through the liquid which aerates the liquid
and brings it to the surface and, if you have no tubing and
it is producing through the casing, you have a much larger
area, and the gas can just bubble through the oil without
unloading the liquid. Likewise, when you are producing
through the annulus place from adually completed well, you
have almost the same area toc cover as you would in a well
without tubing, and you have difficulty in unloading liquid
under those conditions.

No. 91: thig i8 a pobr well, makes lots of oil, has
to be blownto maintain production. It lost deliverability.
No. 93, decrease in deliverability. This well was worked
over, tubing was run immediately preceding the 'S8 test.

Its beneficial results were short lived. It apparently
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returned to the status before the work over. No. 94 had an
increase. Liquid accumulation as indicated by pressure
condition gpparently influenced the 1958 test. No. 101 had
an increase. The line pressure was lowered. The well went
from a high pressure to low pressure system. No. 118: this
well indicated g decrease of 65 per cent. However, there
was erroneous data used, I believe due to it being
carried erroneously on the schedule by the Commission. Prob-
ably the wall,ghpg}dnggva shown a 25 per cent increase.

No. 124: {it's a very poor well. You might class it as a
stripper type, makes some liquids. WNo. 127: the line
pressure was changed from 250 pounds to approximately 100
pounds. No. 134, which had a decrease, had fluid production
based on reports of fluid production to the New Mexico 0Oil
and Gas Engineering Committee as well as pressure performance.
There was alsoc a line pressure change for this well between
tests. No. 143: fluid production influenced the pressure
performgnce. No. 153 had a decrease. This, too, appears

to be a strippef well, It is a very old well producing

into our lowest pressure system. It has liquid accumulation
and production based on reports to the New Mexico Gas and
011 Engineering Committee. No. 165 had a decrease. This
well had fluid accumiletion, fluid in the well bore. In

order to take care of it, it operates with an intermitter.
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It's a poor well. It might also be termed a stripper type.
No. 178 has an increase. Pressure performance indicates
that there was fluid atcumulation influencing the 1958 test.
No. 181 had a decrease. This well had a draw down during
both '58 and *'5Y tests of less than 10 per cent prescribed
in the Commigsiont's directive. Another possible reason 1is
that the first deliverability test was taken immediately
after first delivery of the well into the pipeline system,
and it may indicate a larger decline than thg average of a
well that has been producing on a line for a long time. I
think I said, your Honor, that it "may indicate". I should

have said that the decline may be characteristic of a well

~ first coming onto the line as differentiated from a well

that's been on there a long time.
THE COURT: Yes, sir, I understand.
(Witness continuing): No. 186, a decregse. The test
shown by Mr. Lyon on his exhibit has been superseded by a

retest during the year of 1959. This retest was taken

after the well was clesned out. It changes from the minus
%79.2 per cent reported on hisg exhibit to a plus 12 percent.

'No. 190 shows a decrease. Here we have two wells sharing

its allowable, and liquid accumulation is reflected for
the pressures of both wells. No. 197 shows an increase.

It had line pressure reduced between tests, and it also
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indicates that liquids caused the well to log off mgking 1t
impossible to obtain the shut-in pressure on that well. It
It had the use of pressure of an offset well in calculating
its test. No. 206 showed a decline. Liquid accumulation
here makes the obtaining of shut-in pressure impogsible and
the use of an offget well, No. 216 showed a decline. This
well is in what may be referred to as a pressure deliver-
ability anomaly area. This well is cut off from the gas
pool so to speak by o1l production. There are oil wells

on three sides between it and the gas pool primary. No. 221:
this well has no tubing. No. 227: £fluid accunulation
influenced the productivity during the 1959 test. No. 242
showed an increase. It was worked over, cleaned cut, tubing
was run and separator was set to recover liquids that were
produced from the well. That was between the two tests.
This well also indicates an abnormal drop in reservoir
pressure, approximately 29 per cent in a year's time.

No. 244 shows an increase. Pressures indicate that fluid
influences them. The well failed to draw down to 10 per
cent during the 1959 test. No. 248 shows a decrease. This
is8 a very poor well in an o1l area. It had its '58 test

in the casinghead gas system and in '59 it changed to
intermediate or higher pressure system. No. 256 showed an

increese. This well was worked over between tests, and also
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line pressure was lowered. No. 300: the well has nc tubing.
No. 327 shows a decrease. Here, again, there 1is an error

in the deliverability shown in the schedule, and rather

than the minus 88.4 per cent differential reflected, there
should be a 9 per cent increase, utilizing the correct
deliverability figures. A similar condition exists for

No. 326. ¥No. 237, the same condition exists. Instead of

it being plus 9.8 per cent, it should be -~ the well referred
to as 237 should have been referred to as 337. This well
had an erroneous delivergbility shown on the schedule and
instead of the 93 per cent increase shown should be 31 per
cent increase. NKo. 330 showed a decrease. There was an
apparent bridge between the tubing and casing during the
first 1959 test. The bridge causes erratic recording of
pressures. 1t had less than 10 per cent draw down during
both tests. The next is 333. It showed a decline. Liquid
accumulation is reflected by pressure data. This well is

in our lower pressure system and could be termed of stripper
nature. No. 335 showed an increase. This well is a gas~-
o1l dual with gas produced in annulus space and liquid
influenced productivity. No. 345 showed an increase. This
well was worked over, plugged back, perforated, fraced,
changed from a dual completion well where it was producing

through the annulus tc a single producing well between the
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tests. No. 349 showed a decrease. This well i3 on the west
slant of this pool and it is depleting its pressure and
reserves very f@ t. The reservoir pressure declineindicates
that it has declined 56.2 per cent as compared to the
deliverability decline of €8.4 per cent. No. 367 shows an
increase. This well is alsc in an area which may be
described as a deliverability anomaly area. There are
many oil wells surrounding the area in which this well is
located. It also is placed -- removed from a high pressure
system and put into a low pressure system during the time
between tests.

Your Honor, that completes the wells that I had time
to analyze.
Mr, Woodruff, in your opinion and in the directive which
has been marked as Respondents! Exhibit No. 1, can that
be followed by the operators in the Jalmat Pool?
Yes, sir, I consider it can.

MR. GALATZAN: Pass the witness.

THE COURT: We'll take a recess at this time.

(WHEREUPON, the trial was receased
briefly and thereafter resumed as
follows.)
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CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. MALONE:

Q

Mr. Woodruff, the study that you made of the comparsble
deliverabilities and your testimony as to the causes to
which you attribute them concluded -- and check ne --
tubing or the lack of tubing in the hole or accumulations
of liquids in the hole in different quantities on one test
than the other, changes in line pressure against which the
well is being produced, work overs that may have cccurred
during the period between the two tests, fracturing of the
well that may have been done between the two tests, and
what you described as a deliverability anomaly area which
results from a gas well being surrounded by oil wells --
now you attributed it to other causes and conditions but
those causes you did testify to as being the cause of the
variations in various of the welis. did you not?

Yes, sir, I believe that's -- well, I might say as to
liquid accumulation in wells, it was not restricted solely
to liquids for one test and no liquids for the other.
There may be liquid accumulation #ffecting both tests.
Different quantities?

Yes.

Now, I would ask you if any of the conditions to which you
answered indicated a change in the recoverable gas in place
under the tract attributsgble to the well?

Yes, sir.

4692
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Q Liquid in the well bore indigates a change in the recoverable

gas in place from cne time to another, is that your testimony?

A Liquid in the well bore can so seal a well that it would

prevent the operator from recovering the gas available under
\\\\\ his tract.

Q And it is your testimony that the existence of liquid in the
well bore necessarily indicates a change in the recoverable
gas in place under the tract between tests?

I don't think I said "necessarily"”.
In your opinion, does it or does it not?

It 1s my opinion that it can and probably has.

To N Y

Is it your opinion that in the majority of cases that it
would be attributable to a change in recoverable gas in
place?
THE COURT: He has not said a "change in recover-
‘able gas in place”. He said, "a change in the ability
of producers to get the gas which they would otherwise
get®,

BY MR. MALONE:

Q My question was with reference to a change in the recover-
able gas in place, and it is tc that question that I would
like your angwer to be directed, please?

A 1 believe 1I'd have to answer it almost identical to my

previcus answer in that, iif the cperator does not operate

&
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his well so as to make the gas recoverable into his well,
then it influences his recoverable gas reserve.

I didn't say, "gas reserve"; I said "recoverable gas in
place®.

Well, let's distinguish between what I sm saying. Now you
are saying recoversble gas in place.

If you will answer my question, I believe we will get along
real well.

MR. GALATZAN: If the Court please, he is trying
to answer Mr. Malone's question if Mr. Malone will
give him the opportunity to do so.

THE WITNESS: First, to get any gas recoverable
under a tract you've got to drill g well. Before you
drill a well, there is no gas recoverable. Now the
degree that that gas is recoverable is based bn how
the operator completes his well after he has drilled
it and how he operates it, as a matter of degree. If
he does not operate his well so that the gas can be
produced, then the gas may be in place down under his

tract but as far as being recoverable it is not.

BY MR. MALORNE:

Q

Is not your testimony directed to the question as to whether
or not it 18 recoverable through a particular well as to
wvhether it is recoverable at all?

Yes.

164
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My question was not so limited. Assuming the existence of
a limited amount of gas under a tract of land in the Jalmat
Field, a test of a well producing from that pool which
indicates liquid in the hole affecting the deliverability,

a subsequent test which shows a variation in the deliver-
ability indicated which you attribute to liquid in the hole,
it is your tegtimony that that situation indicates a change
in the recoverable gas in place in the well, is that correct?
Recoverable gas in place under the well?

Under the tract assigned to the well, I should say.

Yes, sir, there i3 a change in what could have been recovered
by the well in one condition and the other, the other
condition if left to exist.

Now, let me ask you 1f, in your opinion, that change is
proportional to the change in deliveragbility which ig
indicated by the result ~- as a result of the fluid?

It may be. I can't say positively.

You say it would not be proportional to the change in
deliverability?

Not directly in proportion.

Now, with reference to the tubing or lack of tubing in the
hole which affects the two tests, does that in your opinion
indicate a change in the recoverable gas in place under

the tract attributable to the well?



168

Not the presence or non-presence cf tubing as such but the
condition which may exist, apparently exists in many of the
wells, when there is no tubing it influences the recoverable
gas.
Would you say that that influence or change is im proportion
to the change in recoverable gas in place, the change that
results from the existence or non~existence of tubing?
My answer would have to be identical tc that which I gave
for liquid accumulation.
Which 18 that it is not proportional?
I donft believe that that was my answer.
I'm not trying to misquote‘you. I thought that was your
answer. If it wasn't, would you tell me what it was?
MR. GALATZAN: The witness stated, "mot fn direct
proportion”, if the Court please.
MR. MALONE: I think the witness is capable of
stating his answer.
THE WITNESS: Would you be kind enough to restate

your question, please?

BY MR. MALONE:

qQ

I think we'll pass the question. I don't think we'll be
able to develop it any further. DNow with reference to the
condition which exists in an anomalous area of the field

such as you refer to, which I believe results from a gas
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well being surrounded by o0il wells -~

I believe that was my general description. I can go into
it in more detail.

Do I understand that you felt that that resulted in erratic
deliverability tests on the gas well?

Kot the presence in the anomalous area necessarily; the
anomalous areas are indicative of gomething which varies
from the normgl in the field of course. We know that in these
areas there is oil production from wells surrounding or in
the vicinity of the gas well so it 1s a likely assumption,
a reasonable assumption, that the condition that exists for
the surrounding wells or the presence of cil could also
influence the conditions apparent in the gas well.

And that situation does result in erratic deliverability
tests, is that correct?

Not always but I believe probably. 1t i1g a reason which
you can attribute to causes that I expiained for some
particular wells.

Well, you did gccount for the change in deliverability on
two tests on a well due to that condition, did you not?
Yes, sir.

And it is your position that that was the cause of the change?
I didn't positively say that was the csuse for the change
as far as I could determine from my study. I could deter-

mine that that was a condition which may have caused it.
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Then you are now saying that that may have caused a large
change in deliveragbility between the two tests, or that there
may have been other factors as well, and you are not certain
which ones caused 1it?

I believe that's correct.

You do gccept the fact that the change did occur as betwesn
the two tests?

Yes, sir.

You referred to a procedure fcllowed under a memorandum I
believe of the Oil Conservation Commigsion in taking
deliverability tests?

Yes, sir.

That is a memorandum of the Commission which was issued
subsequent to Order 1092-A and ~-C, was it not?

I'm not sure of the sequence but I believe that is correct.
It was not an order of the Conmission or issued upon
hearings before the Commission?

As I understand it, Mr. Maglone, it was a memorandum issued
as a result of a provision in an order of the Commission.
But it was not an order of the Commisggion?

As I understand it, no.

Now, I believe you said that, if the provisions of the
memgrandum are complied with by prudent operators, that

two deliverability tests will substantially conform to each
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other on a given well in the Jalmat Pool, ig that correct?
No, sir.

What was your testimony in that regard?

My testimony to your objection that prudent had not been
defined was that an operator who had complied with the
directives of the Commisgsion and the rules and regulations
of the Commission should expect to have deliverabilities
within close approximation of one another.for two subsequent
tests, and that should be in cloge vicinity time-wise to
one another.

Would you consider the two tests shown by Exhibit 3, by
Petitioners' Exhibit 3, as being presumably close time-wige?
No, sir.

You would not?

No, sir.

So then you would ~- how much time on the average elapsed
between tests, elapsed between the '58 tests shown in the
June schedule and the '59Y tests shown in the July schedule?
Approximately one year.

Approximately one year?

Yes, sir.

Do you feel that deliveradbility tests should be taken more
frequently than that under this formula?

No, sir, I see no need for it.
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It 1s your opinion then that tests taken at that interval

in accordance with the memorandum of the Commission will
result?%zcurate figures as to the deliverability of the well?
Yes, sir, I think so.

I am sure you have anticipated this question, Mr. Woodruff,
but I would be interested in knowing how you account for the
variagtions in the El1 Paso Natural Gas wells No. 81 to 108

on the Exhibit 3 which indicate, if my arithmetic is correct,
an average change of 34.5 per cent during the period from
1958 to 19539 with individual changes which range up to a
plus 176 from a minus 44 I believe?

I didn't anticipate it sc I have the answer on the end of

my tongue. At first your question asked me concerning all
of El Paso's wells and why they varied.

Did you conform to the direétive of the Commission in testing
those wells and preparing them for test?

I would say we attempted to do so but from my gnalysis I
think we could have done a better job on some of the te#ting
we did.

That of course is in light of hindsight?

Of course.

You did at the time all you felt a prudent operator should
do under the circumstances?

I can't positively say because I was not there but I am sure
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we attempted to do so. Actually, we are all learning as
we get into this, into deliverability tests in this area.
It's new, and I see marked improvement from cne year to the
next.

You still see on the last two tests a very wide range in
variations of deliverability tests of the El Paso Natural

Cas wells from 1958 to 1959, do you not?

‘ea, sir.,

Now you referred as one factor affecting, or which might
account for the change in deliverability of certain wells,
to a change in the line to which they were comnnected, or
that pressure in the line into which they were produced.
Does that atfect the result of a deliverability test?

The pressure of the line itself does not. The change in
the pressure of the line affects the ability of the operator
of the well to place the well in compliance with the
directive. Let's assume that there is a comparatively poor
one that is low on pressure and has depleted most of ite

train of
reserves, say, -- I logt my/thought, I'm sorry.

You were explaining how a change of pressure in & line
against which the well was producing could change the
deliverability results obtained in the test.

If liquids are accumulated in the well bore --

Now, this does not assume liquids in the well bore. This

Py
A 1.



c > & »

o

assumes only change in line pressure, my question did.

All right. I would say, all other conditions being ignored,
line pressure does not influence deliverability tests.

Does not influence the result ot delivergbility tests?

That is correct.

Did I misunderstand you in attributing the change in a
number of wells in this pressure to a change in the pressure
in the line into which it was being produced, or a change
in the line to which it was connected?

Ko, sir, you didn't migunderstand me.

You did attribute it to that?

Yec, sir.

You are now saying that you do not think that's what caused
the change in deliverability, is that correct?

No, sir, that is not correct.

Would you clarify your answer?

Yes, sir, I‘would be glad to. I believe in starting I would
very briefly describe the condition existing in these wells.
Now a drop in line pressure enables a well normally tc
produce more gas. If you produce more gas, it has the
ability in many instances to unlcad liquids. It may be a
condition that could have been done without lowering the
line pressure. Now the operator may have been able to blow

his well and do the same thing. Blowing the well in effect
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is lowering the line pressure and unloading the liquids.
Lowering the line pressure accomplishes the same thing.

Q So that, whether or not the line pressure is lowered, it
will affect the ultimate result of the deliverability test?

A Under the conditions of liquid accumulations that I have
described, yes, sir.

Q And those conditions exist generally in the Jalmat Pool?

A You'll find it in many instances. I would not say generally
in a form that has to be recognized or combatted.

Q I believe in one instance that you referred to. the fact
that a change in deliverability tests result was in your
opinion attributable to the change in connection fyom a
pipeline to a gas system, did you not?

A No, sir, I did not.

Q I misunderstood you then. Was that to a lower pressure
gas system from a high pressure gas system?

A Yeg, sir.

Q In your opinion that would have an effect on the result of
the deliverability test in that well?

A Only, as I have just described, if for lowering pipeline
pressure.

Q Is it or is it not as to that well that changed it have
an effect on the deliverability resulte?

A Yes, sir, it did because of what it enabled the well to do
to get in proper condition for the test.

T s )
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Now the pressure which is maintained in a line into which

& well 1s produced is entirely determined or under the
control of the pipeline company whose line it is, is it not?
Yes, sir. |

And the operator has no control whatever as to the pressure
maintained in the line to which his well is connected?

I think that should be answered no, with a possible qualifi-
cation.

All right.

That under our contracts El Paso is obligated to lower
pipeline pressurea.' Now the operator can't go out there
and lower the pipeline pressure himself but E1 Peggo is
obligated to do it in compliance with their contract.

Does E1 Paso always do what is necessary to get accurate
deliverability test?

No. It is done for any number of reasons that may and has
an influential effect because a poor deliverability test

on a well which has previously been good often triggers the
study necessary by both El Paso and the operators to deter-
mine what is the cause of it and, if we find it's high
pipeline pressure, we're going to take immediate action as
soon as we can.

Then it would be correct to say that to the extent that the

result of a deliverability test is affected by the line
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pressure that factor is beyond the control of the operator
and under the control of the pipeline company?

I can't answer that affirmatively as I understand your
statement because the line pressure itself does not directly
influence the dd iverability test, but the change in line
pressure influences the ability of the well to remove liquid
and other matter which ig necessary to condition the well
for test.

And that in turn influences the delivergbility test, does

it not?

Yes, sir.

My question is to the extent that that occurs, it i{s under
the control of the pipeline company and not the operator?
No, sir. The same thing may have been accomplished through
the operator installing a blow-down line in many instances
and unloading the liquid himself. It is the same effect

as lowering pipeline preasure. You lower pressure and you
get larger volumes; you unioad accumulations which may be
causing the deliverability test to be erroneous. Now, if
lowering pipeline pressure is the only thing or the apparent
thing that needs to be done, it is the pipeline compans
responsibility solely to do that. The operator has nc
choice in that.

In certain instances I believe you attributed -- in certain
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instances in discussing the well on Petitioners' Exhibit 3,
you attributed the erratic deliverability test results in
158 as compared to '59 to a failure to obtain the 10 per cent
draw down that was required by the Commission is that
correct?

I said that that was a cause which may have resulted in the
variation in the deliverabilities. There again let me say
that Icar't always say that this particular thing csused it
all but it could have attributed to it,

Then as to your testimony tn the sixty-eight wells that you
examined you were merely saying that the factors that you
mentioned on direct examination could have resulted in the
variation, not that it was your opinion that it did result
in 1t?

They could, and I consider that it influenced the change.

I can't tell by looking at data. I can tell that the
condition exists, that it is a condition that could have
caused the change but there may have been one or two others
which may not be apparent from just a review of data.

And you were not expressing an opinion that causes to which
you have testified were the reasons for the variation?

Not for the entire variation but I did mean to tgstify that
they could have been the factors causing the entire variation.
§ut not that they were?

Right.

Lol
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Would you examine two instruments which have been identified
as Petitioners! Exhibits 7 and 8 and state what they are?
Petitioners' Exhibits 7 eand 8 are reports of one~point
back pressure deliverability tests for the year of 1959

for the Continental Meyers B-23, No. 3, well.

What was the date of the two tests evidenced by those
exhibits?

By Exhibit No. 7 the date of the test was 1/30 to 2/6/59.
The other test was 4/27 to 5/1/59.

Is that the form on which El Paso Natural Gas Company
customarily reports to the operator on the resuits of
deliverability tests made by it on higells?

I do not believe so. I believe that El Paso in reporting

to the operatur utilizes a data sheet which does not include
all of the calculations but this is the sheet which the
operator utilizes in reporting the data to the Commission.
You will notice at the top of the sheet that the nane,

El Paso Natural Gas Company, appears but you say that thig
is not a sheet that was furnighed by El Paso Natural Gas

to the operator?

1 did not say that it was not but I thought that our report
to the operator was one which showed only the data and not
the calculations. I do not calculate the actual tests.

Have you ever seen the form that is used in reporting to an

operator?
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I am sure that I have but =~

Do you remember what it looks like?

This may be the form here.

You are not able to #ay then whether or not this is the
form of report that's made by your company to operators

in ﬁecting wells in the Jalmat area?l

That is correct.

I invite your attention to the lower part of Exhibit 7
where there appears the signature of & man which appears
to be, EARL 5. SMITH, Gas Engineer. Is he an employee of
El Paso Natural Gas Company?

Yes, sir, he is.

I invite your attention to the signature at the same place
on Petitioners! Exhibit 8 where it appears, JOE B. MUNAY.
Is he an employee of El1 Paso Natural Gas Company?

Yes, sir.

Do you see anyone else's signature on that form?

On Exhibit 7 or 8%

On either of them?

Yes, I see Mr. W. E. Lott of Continental 0il Company on
both exhibits, and in addition on Exhibit No. 8 I see the
name of ~~ excuse me. I do not see the signature of Mr. Lott
but I see his name shown as a witness, and also see the name
of Eric F. Engbrecht of the Rew Mexico 0il Conservation

Commiggion as a witness.
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You don't see the signature of Mr. Engbrecht, do you?
go, sir.

Q In the light of that further examination of these instruments,
will you state whether or not in your opinion these are
repor%%%%ere furnished by the El1 Paso Natural Gas Company
to Continental 0il Company evidencing this test?

A No, sir, I cammot positively state that but it certainly
appears to me that that is the case.

Q So it is your opinion that this does reflect a test made by
El Paso Natural Gas Company and repated to Continental on
the well indicated?

A It would gppear that it is, yes, sir.

MR. MALONE: We offer in evidence Exhibits 7 and 8.
MR. GALATZAN: No objection, your Honor.
THE COURT: They will be admitted.

BY MR. MALONE:

Q Will you read the typewritten statement which appears at
the very bottom of that report, Petitioners' Exhibit 77

A "A glope of .699 was used in 1958 for Deliverability calcu-
lations. Unable to obtain 10% draw down due to high line
pressure. Chokes were wide open during test."

Q Now, will you read the typewritten note that appears at
the bottom of Exhibit 817

A Xt the bottom of Exhibit 8 I find this: "Unable to obtain

10% draw down, due to high line pressure, chokes were wide
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open. Second conplete test as requested by operator."

Now that line pressure to which you have just referred is
the line pressure which we agreed a moment ago is entirely
under the control of El Paso Natural Gas Company, is it not?
Yes, sir.

And the ability to meet the requirements of the directive
in testing this well was entirely under the control of

El Paso in that respect, was it not?

Would you please repeat that statement, would you, sir?

The ability ofthis test to meet the requirements of the
New Mexico 0il Conservation Commission was entirely under
the control of El Pasc Natural Gas Company ingofar as the
relation of the 107 draw down?

May I see the test, sir? 1 believe that's correct.

Thank you. A test made by the El Pasc Natural Gas Company
of an operator's well is made in the same way whether or not
the operator has a representative present, is it not?

Yes, sir, that is correct. May I add one thing, please?
Certainly.

That the conditioning of a well prior toc the test ias some~
thing which we are often unable to accomplish becauge we

do not have the privilege of going to the wellhead and
blowing the well if necessary to blow the liquids. We are
privileged only to regulate the flow which can come through

-~ I mean into our pipeline. Now, if the operator has been
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out there if necessary and blowm --

Just a moment, Mr. Woodruff. My question was directed to
the test and not the condition of the well. Now your
answer is with reference to the condition preceding the
test.

Yes, sir.

Then your remarks were not directed to the question.

I cannot separate the two.

Well, then this answer is pertinent.you feel. .Continue.

I1f the operator is able to free the liquids from the well
bore prior to the test rate, we can n cbably expect a better
test than had the operator not sccomplished that work prior
to the start of the test. In other words, El Paso can't

do it; the operator must do it 1f it is going to be done.
Now, in reference to the ligquid which you said you felt
accounted for a large number of the variations on Exhibit 3
between 1958 and the 1959 tests, in, I believe, three or
four cases you said that reports of the Gas and 0Oil Engineer-
ing Committee indicated the presence of liquid, is that
correct?

Yes, sir, I did make that statement on twe wells.

Two wells.

I think probably I should correct my statement to say that

the New Mexico 0il and Gas Engineering Committee gets their
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data from reports made to the New Mexico 011 Congervation
Commission so I say that the reports of the ocperstors went
to the Cil Conservation Commission agnd the Engineering
Cormittee got it from those records.

Q Now in all of the other cases except those two where you
expressed an opinion whether liquid had contributed to
variation in tests that was based upon conclusions drawn
by you from variations in pressure, was it not?

A My recollection is that that was the primary factor of
which I determined was influencing the pressure variation.

Q And you concluded in those cases where you said that'you
thought liquid was indicated, you reached that conclusion
from a study of the variations of pressure on the test?

A That is correct.

Q And not from gnything on the test report which affirmatively
said liquid was present?

A I can't positively recall whether there may have been
reference to the accumilation or not on some of the tests,
but my primary study was of the pressure performance
history of the wells.

Q Your conclusion as tc the presence of liquids was based upon
a pressure study?

A Primarily, yes,sir.

Q Now, are there any other factors in the well in the Jalmat

182
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Pool which cen result in a variation of pressure other than
liquid?

Yes, sir, there are. Other matter within the well bore.
Solids, for instance, could influence the condition of the
pressure recording and I asctually mentioned at least one
instance where bridging, solid matter separating the tubing
from the casing and probably effectively sealing off a
portion of the formation was attributing to it.

Blank flow from one zone to ancther in a reservoir could
contribute to it too, could it not?

I can visualize theoretically that that could happen but I
know of no indication that that condition does exist.

You would not testify that it did not exist in any of the
wells to which you have testified?

Ho; gir, I would not, but 1 certainly would not expect that
it did.

So that the conclusion that you drew with reference to the
existence of or non-exigtence of liquid could have been
affected by other conditions that would be reflected in
changes in pressure?

It 18 entirely possible that something other than liquids
alone influenced the pressure condition, yes, sir.

In your opinion, does the manner in which wells are produced
prior to the taking of deliverability tests have any effect

on the taking or the results of the test?
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In our analysis of wells in the Jalmat Pool prior to the
establishment of the deliverability test procedure in the
Committees we worked on, we considered this deliverability
test procedure would work satisfactorily for the wells in
this pool. However --
I don't believe you are answering my question at all, Mr.
Woodruff,
I would like to try.
In your opinion, was the mammer in which -~
MR. GALATZAN: If the Court please, the witness
ought to at least be permitted to answer Mr. Malone's
question, It mey not be in the manner expected but --
THE COURT: Reframe your question.

BY MR. MALOKRE:

Q

Does the mammer in which a well has been produced prior to
deliverability test affect the results of a deliverability
test?

I would expect it tc only in the instances of marginal low
capacity or where there are liquid accumulations in the well
bore; for the normal well, no.

Then for the normal allowable well in the Jalmat Pool, it is
your opinion that the mammer and extent to which it has been
produced prior to the test will not affect the result of

the test?

That is correct.
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The manner and extent to which a well is produced is entirely
under the control of the pipeline company, is it not?
Yeg, sir, with the limitation that, if the operator considers
we are operating his well in a wasteful mamner, he may
cause us to restrict it.

MR. MALONE: That's all.

MR. GALATZAN: We have no further questions, your

Honor,

W. F. MARTIN, a witness called on behalf of

Respondents, having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. CAMPBELL:

Yol S R Y B Y o)

Will you state your name, please?

W. F. Martin.

By whom are you employed, Mr. Martin?

Texas Pacific Coal & 0il Company.

In what capsacity?

Agsistant Auditor.

In your capacity as Assistant Auditor for Texas Pacific
Coal & 0il Company you maintain statistical data concerning
the gas sales of Texas Pacific Coal & 0il Company?

That is right.

In Lea County, New Mexico?

Right.

Lol
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Q Have you previously testified before the New Mexico 0il
Congservation Commission in connection with the matter now
pending here in this Court?

A I have.

Are you acquainted with Operators' Exhibit, Mr. Martin,
No. 10 which was offered in evidence before the Commission
and to which Mr. Leibrock testified yesterday when he was
on the stand?

A I am.

What was that exhibit?

A His reference yesterday was to thelr exhibit, Operators'
Exhibit No. 10, offered as evidence in a prior hearing in
this matter.

Q Since the deliverability formulag was placed into effect in
the Jalmat Gas Pool, have you studied the effect of the
order upon the allowables in reference to the operators
indicated on Exhibit No. 107

A Yes, sir. We maintaln g continuous study of it.

Q Mr. Martin, I now refer you to what has been identified

as Respondents' Exhibit No. 4 and ask you to state what

that is?
A Shown on the right~-hand side here the increases in the
Respundents’
Exhibit current allocation mcf per month; here the green colors
i’é}"

standing out there, for instance, on Cities Service, showing
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250,000 mcf,

Will you step down there and identify the points you are
referring to?

The green line here as shown in eleven indicates the way
the chart was entered in the exhibit in & prior hearing.
In other words, it showed the Cities Service have an
indicated gain of 250 mef per month in allowables as a
result of changing to deliverability formula.

Then, Mr. Martin, let me clarify that if I cgn. On the
left-hand side of the exhibit as you face it, the extremities
of the red lines indicate what?

The decreases, the decrease in current allocation mecf per
month. In other words, in the exhibit offered it is
indicated that Continental would show a decrease of about
155,000 mcf per month under the deliverability formula as
under the acreage formula.

So that red was shown in Exhibit 10 on a hearing before the
Commigsion?

Right.

Now on the left~hand side what do the extremities cf the
blue linesshow?

The blue lines show the condition or statusd the field
based on the July 1939 proration schedule. The indicated

losses by Continental will be as shown here. It would be,
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as I recall, gbout 60,000 mcf rather than 155,000 mcf per
month.

Now moving to the right-hand side of the exhibit as you face
it, what do the extremities of the green lines indicate?
They indicate the increases. In other words, Cities Service
was going to show an increase of slightly in excess of
250,000 mcf per month on the deliverability formula.

And the extremities of the blue lineg show?

The blue lines show the status of the same operators based .
on July 1%5% proration schedule.

Now, Mr. Martin, I notice on the exhibit on the left<hand
side, you have a tabulation of wells without tubing. Will
you state what the source of your information is for those
figures?

Well, that's based upon the deliverability tests that's
submitted to the 0il Conservation Commission, a tabulation
the Commission had prepared listing the individual wells.
Did you examine those deliverability schedules to obtain
that information?

Yes, sir, but I did not mske the tabulation. The tabulation
was made by Conmigsion persomnel. | |

Did you obtain that from the records of the 011 Conservation
Commigsion?

I did, from the Hobbs office.

188
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With reiard to the tabulation indicated on the dacreése and
increase side of the exhibit, you made those calculations
yourself, did you?
That's correct.
MR. CAMPBELL: We would like to offer Respondeit s!
Exhibit 4 in evidence before we ask him any more
questionsg on 1t.
THE COURT: Any objections?
MR. MALONE: No objection.
THE COURT: It will be admitted.

BY MR. CAMPBELL:

Q

Now, Mr. Martin, do you know how many gas units there are
in the Jalmat Gas Pool?

Yes, sir. Yes, sir, there's 400 in July 1959. Proration
schedule was a total of 411 and a fraction units.

Have you made a tabulation to determine how meny of those
units are operated by the Petitioners in this case?

Yes. Out of the 411 units in the field -~ your question
as to the number of units?

I asked you how many units of the 411 you indicated existed
in the Jalmat Gas Pool are operated by the Fetitioners in
this case.

They have a total of 9% wells, or 114 units, approximately
26% of the units in the field. 7

I
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How many of the units does Texas Pacific Coal & 0il Company
operate?

We operate 52 units, 51-3/4 to be exact.

Now, Mr. Martin, I notice from the exhibit, or Respondents!
Exhibit No. 4, that your blue lines which are the results

a8 you have caluclated them do not indicate as wide a -~
strike that question ~-- strike the question. Mr. Martin,
would you explain to the Court the basis on which you
calculated the actual results of the deliverability formula
as compared to the acreage formula which that exhibit
reflects?

Well, first, I took the July proration schedule and broke
it down by operators as to the ownership of the non-marginal
units, and that covers all but 13-3/4 units in the field.
All of the field is on a non-marginal status, 388 units.

I broke that down and took the actual July allocation of
allowable of 12,000,000 mef. I distributed that by operators
based on the acreage ownership. In other words, for instance,
like Cities Service has 19.9 units sc they would heve an
ownership in the field on an ecreage basis of 4.92% of any
allowable that you would allocate on an acreage basis. So

I got 12 million mef on an acreage basis for July. Then I
took that on the delivergbility formula, which is merely

counting on the schedule there. It merely showed of the
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field that Cities Service owned 5.37% of the non-marginal
allowable or any allowable. Now, rather than make this
comparison, which was originglly offered as a monthly --
average gain or loss per month, which was originally as the
exhibit was presented, I used the month of July and arriving
at gains and losses, I took the actual allocation of
allowable for the preceding year 1958 wherein the non-
margingl wells were allocated, 62 million mcf, and spre@d
i1t over the actual deliverability ownership in the field,
spread on the acreage on the field, came up with a gain oy
loss, f£inding it simply by trial. For instance, this
Cities Service --

Now, Mr. Martin, just a minute there. I noticed -- you
heard Mr. Leibrock testify yesterday, did you not?

Yes, sir.

In the first place, what is the price of gas in the Jalmat
Gas Pool?

Well, sir, we have been in a long time. It is slightly

in excess of ten cents, 10-1/2 centi.

Do you kmow if there is any 15 cent gas in that field?

No, sir. I don't imsgine the FPC does either.

Mr. Martin, I notice from your exhibit that you show con-
siderably less increase to Cities Service, for example,

than does Mr. Leibrock. Would you state what the difference
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in dollars would be on your calculation gnd his, and the
reason that your calculagtion does not conform to Mr.
Leibrocks?

Well, 1f I understood Mr. Lelbrock correctly yesterddy,

his statement was that Ctties Service are going to gain
somewhat in excess of 250,000 mecf per month. That was
their gain. Now that multiplied by twelve would give him
a gain of 3 million mef, 250,000 per month multiplied by
twelve would give him 3 million mcf per annum. Well their
total allowable under acreage based on last year, the
allowable assigned to them was only 3,000,079, and under
the deliverability formula using the same method they would
have 3 million 361 mcf. 1In other words, they would have
had an annual increase of 281,000 mcf per year; instead

of 250,000 mef per month, it would averagge some 23,474 mef
per month or $2,500, instead of -- as I recall their figure
it was something around $30,000.a month.

Do you believe that your calculation is-more accurately
reflects the effect upon that particular company?

Well, I think it would speak for itself. If they were going
to show an increase of 3 million mecf per year on this
formula, it would mean that their gllowgble was going to

be doubled, and their allowable under the deliverability

formula is going to be increased about 7.5%. They are going
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gain about 7.5 per cent in allowable in delivergblility versus
acreage, whereas on the éso;ooo mct basis, they would have a
100% increase.

Now, Mr. Martin, do you believe it is proper to use the
July 1959 allocation under the schedﬁle and assume that that
is the amount multiplied by twelve that these parties are
going to galn or lose?

Well, if you look at it this way, the allocation was

12 million mcf per month. Due to some readjustments in the
field, cancellations of allowables, actions for purchases,
nominations, asked for 4 million, not 12, but the allocation
which happened in the proration period came up 12 million
mecf per month, for the mbnth of July. PNow, if you multiply
that by twelve, you get aen annual allowable of 144 million
mcf, which is double what the field has ever produced. In
other words, using July, the average nomination in allowable
gain over the twelve-month period will run gbout 6 million
mcf. In other words, lgst year ;he field produced 72 million
mef, which is six million per month on an average so you can
see, 1f you usged 12 million and multiplied by twelve, you

are getting up to a very fantastic figure.

¥ow, based on Respendean' Exhibit No. 4 as related to
original Exhibit No. 10 offered in the hearing before the

“ommission, what is the relationship between the anticipated

fax..s/
;ﬂ,;

.
Lopw
”



196

effect and what has actuplly occurred ingsofar as wide
variations are concernedﬁ

A Well, I think it is quitk evident that the gains and losses
are substantially less if it is narrowed down closer to a
balance there. In fact; i1f you put -- when you put percentages
to it, it gets pretty small.

Q Now, Mr. Martin, one ofiehe companies, and the one which is
shown at the top of the%line indicates a decrease in allow-
able by virtue of this &elivnrability allocation is
Continental Oil Campanyé Have you made any particular
analysis about Continentsl Oil Company ownership in the
Jalmat Gas Pool as relaﬁed to the allocation of allowsghle
just prior to and since%the deliverability formula went
into effect? |

A Yes, sir, 1 establishedithat position prior to deliverability.

Q Mr. Martin, I refer you;to what has been identified as

Regpondents' Exhibit No. 5 and ask you to state what that

is.
A Well, that shows the owﬁerahip of Continental 0il Company
Respondents' ‘
Exhibit in the Jalmat Field begimning Jaruary 1, 1958 through July
HSH i

1959. The orange celarfahowing their ownership from
January 'til June, the ktraight complete orange bar there
under the acreage fommuia. 100% acreage. That shows that
at tha: time they owned approximately around 15% of the

194
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field of the non-marginql allowable distributed in the field,
and the allowable basedﬂon the ownership of units in the
field, they would be assigned in January slightly better
than 15 per cent. As tﬁe field changed around a little

more, a few more wells,%they lost a little bit. This is

about 15.5%, something like that. Then when deliverability

formula came into position --

Is that indicated by th& beginning of the blue?

That's right. Beginning at the blue right here, July 19538.
thatts when your delive#ability formula started. Up here

I have shown =--

You're indicating the figures in the upper right-hand portion
of the exhibit?

That's right.

Go ahead.

The prior exhibit put on indicated that we're going to

lose under deliverability 155,000 mcf per month. That was
the big, long line in the prior exhibit, their Exhibit 10,
so that projected for a:year at lSS,GOO,Atheir exhibit
fndicated they'd lose 1,860,000 mcf per yesr. The actual
allocation under the de%ivarability formula started here in
July, they actually received on the proration’schodula for
their non-marginal wells 210 million 611 allowable mcf
allowable. That should be 110 thoussnd 611 mcf. Had the
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field remained under the straight acreage, 100% acreage,
based on their oﬁnership?in the field right here, they would
have received an allowabie of 2,540 mecf. In other words,
they received -- let's dgduct that -- 1,%03 mef, or loss

‘to Continemtal is 22.72%. Ofoourse, it started out 22.

Q Now, without going into &etail on the balance, for the month,
for the year, would you ?oint out on the exhibit what occurred
in regard to the allocation of allowable from the beginning
of prorationing with the deliverability factor in July 1958
to the latest allowable in June 195917

A Well, you actually see in Continental's non-marginal wells
each month you'll notice some variations depending upon
the amount of gllowable distributed to that particular
month., They received a total of 4,982,569 mcf. Had the
field stayed on acreage -- in other words, they received
as indicated by this blue line ~-- had the field stayed on
the straight acreage basis, they would have received
5,724,169 mcf as indicated by a continuation of the acreage
formula. |

Q What did they actually receive over that period of twelve
months?

A  They received this &4 -- under the deliverability formula?

Q Yes, sir.

4,982,569 mcf.

5
[
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What was the reduction total to Continental during that
twelve-month period?

741,650 mecf.

Now referring back to Exhibit 10, -~

THE COURT: Just a minute, Mr. Campbell.

MR. C AMPBELL: ?Yes, sir.

THE COURT: I pon't know that it's material but
you said "during that twelve-months period". The
gentleman has thirteen months included in his blue
chart. ‘

THE WITNESS: I have July, of course, which I
did not have produdticn figures for. In other words,
I come through here. I ended up --

THE COURT: All I meant was that there are 13
months shown there on the chart.

MR. CAMPBELL: Yes, sir.

BY MR. CAMPBELL:

Q

Now with regard to the #aleulation portion of the chart,
the figures are figures of actual allowable. What would
have been the loss to Cdntinental had their prediction
in Exhibit 10 in value had been correct?

It would have been 1,860,000 mef.

So that their actual 1043 differed from their anticipated
loss by what amount? ‘

1,118,350 mcf.
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Now, Mr. Martin, would ypu take the stand again. Now,
Mr. Martin, do you know of your own knowledge by examination
of any records of the Oil Conservation Commission whether
or not during the period from July 1, 1958 to Pebruary --
or to the end of the peﬁi&d shown as June on the blue mark
the records reveal any work over, work on any wells of the
Continental 011 Company?
Yeg, sir, I made a tabuiation from the schedule and from the
data obtained from the Federal, U. S. Geoclogical Survey
people of reports made to them. For instence, there are
twenty-six wells that I noticed that had an ndicated
increase in delivarability. The July test of these 26 wells
tabulated -- which are all of them that had any increase of
any material amount -- the daily deliverability of those
wells, disregarding the acre factor, was 44,802 mef.
This was what? | |
July 1958 proration schedule of deliverability would -~

MR. MALONE: What was that figurel
44,802 mcf. Thet figuré remained constant as far as these
wells are conceried uatil the February 1959 schedule
which accounts for thekﬁig increase, the jump-up of the
blue line there in Febrﬁary. In other words, in thsie it
falls down from Januaryfcf 17% down to 5% in February.
Because of the Fabruaryiachedule, the 26 wells that had
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a daily deliverability of 44802 mcf was increased to
69,880, or up to asbout Sk% incregse. Now that remained on
the schedule substantialhy until July 1959 when the new
proration schedule came Lut for this next year under the
deliverability formula. The same wells had a total daily
deliverability of 69,184 mcf compared to in February of
69,880, substantially no change between there.

Q Do you know from your testimony and your examination of
the records to which you are referring whether between the
commencement of the deliverability factor as a part of the
formula in July of 1958 any work was done on any of the
Continental wells in the Jalmat Gas Pool?

A  Yeg, sir, for instance, the Meyers B-22, Well No. 1, a two
unit well, meaning it covers two unitsg, 320 acres rather
than 160, on the July 1958 schedule it was ghown as 283 mcf.
On the February 1959, it was shown as 3,147 mcf. ‘On the
July 1959, it had increased to 3,728 mcf. Now the records
show that that well was reworked and tubing installed on
July 13, 1958, but this July achedule, of course, the tests
were made prior toc the work over. So this well has increased
tenfold for them.

And are there other wells that reflect similar information?
Yes, sir, there are six in number that I have here.

Q Now, Mr. Martin, have you made a study of the overall change

Rz
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in deliverability throughout the Jalmat Gas Pool during the
past year?

Yes, sir, we keep up with it monthly. The overall daily
deliverability of the Jalmat Gas Field accumulating all

of the 380~some-odd wells there, the July 1958 proration
schedule show a daily deliverability of 741,180 mecf per
day. Now then the August schedule, that moved up to
748,000 mcf per day to along in May 1959 it was up to
756,225 mef. In other words, the deliverability, daily
deliverability, of all the wells in the Jalmat Field
fluctuated from July 1958 through May, an eleven month
period, a total of -- plus of 1.90%. In other words, slightly
less than 2% increase. Some of that would be attributable
to the fact that far more wells were drilled in the field
during that time.

What was the deliverability then shown by the new deliver-
ability tests, Mr. Martin?

It shows a total deliverability for the field of 693,000 mecf.
Mr. —artin, then using that figure what is the oéerall
decline in deliverability in the Jalmat Gas Pool during
that period?

For the one-year period, there is an overall decline of
6-1/2%. 1In other words, the field declined 6~1/2% in one
year of deliverability.

2060
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Mr. Martin, did you prepare Respondents' Exhibit No. 5,
the chart referring to Continental, or did you prepare the
data?
I prepared all of it peraonally.
MR. CAMPBELL: I offer Respondents' Exhibit No. S.
MR. MALONE: No objection. |
THE COURT: It will be admitted.
MR. CAMPBELL: Yo further questions.

CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. MALONE:

Q

Mr. Martin, to be sure that I understood the basis on which
you have compared -~ let's refer first to the origingl
exhibit that you introduced here. In computing the gain
or loass of warlous companies resulting from the adoption of
the deliverability formula as indicated on Respondenta?
Exhibit 4, you used the deliverability shown on the July
1959 proration schedule?

Yes, sir.

Those were the ones that were taken in the 1958-1959, or
up to June 19592

Thatt's correct. That's the ones appearing on the last
schedule published in July.

Those delivergbility test results were not available to
Mr. Leibrock at the time he prepared the exhibits before
the Coomigsion back in 577

Certainly that's true.

20Ul
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would
In preparing his exhibit he, of course,/have teken the

deliverability tests shown by the Commigsion in 19577
That's true.

Now, I believe a witneas of T-P worked up a deliveragbility
schedule on the basis of the information available in '57,
did he not?

We did not submit a schedule showing gains or losses.

But you did work up a proration schedule on the information
then available?

That's true.

Which was the same information available to Mr. Leibrock?
That's right.

So that at least any part of the changes that might be
reflected between what Mr. Leibrock original exhibit showed
and what this exhibit shows would be accounted for by the
change in the results of deliverability as shown by the
“ommission's records?

That would be true as to the back part of it. That testi-
mony yesterday, of course, is in direct tontrast with this.
But as I understand it, you using the figures on these
latest tests still find that Gulf under the deliverability
schedule is gaining approximately 220,000 mcf a month

over what they received on the acreage formula?

That ia correct.

202
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At 10 cents an mcf, how much would that be?

About 22 thousand roughly.

About $22,000 a month., And you still find that Western
Natural was originally ~- at least they are a producing --
subsidiary of El Paso Natural Gas, was it not?

Well, I couldn't agnswer that question.

Do you know?

No, sir.

What ié their gain under the formula as it now exists? How
much? |

126,000,

And that would be?

$12,600 a month.

$12,6001

At 10 cents.

Then you found the Texas Pacific Coal & 011 Company had
gained a great deal more under the delivergbility formula
than Mr. Leibrock thought it was going to gain?

That is correct.

How much.did Mr. Leibrock originally indicate it was going
to gain?

He originally estimated TI-P would gain approximately
$5,000 or 50,000 mck.

And they actually gained how much?

"
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111,000 mcf.

At 10 cents per mcf, how much per month would that be?
$11,000.

Now let's move over to the other side of the schedule and
see the effect of the losses. You have indicated by your
testimony that Continental's loss Qas considerably less
than what was expected but its loss as reflected here is
how much per month?

69,000 mcf.

That would be how much in dollars?

$6,900.00.

Per month, Olsen Oil Company's loss is how much?

118,000 mef,

That'; how much in dollaers?

That's $£11,800 per month.

Let's see. Sinclair here. I see their loss is even more
than Mr. Leibrock had anticipated, did they not?

That 18 true.

How much have they lost?

They lose 62,000 mcf per month.

And Pan American and Phillips have lost even more than
Mr. Leibrock anticipated, have they not?

That 1is true.

And the variation between the testimony of Mr. Leibrock and
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his exhibit back in 1957 and this one we have said would be
partially accounted for by the changes in deliverability
shown in the reccrds of the Commission. It would alsc be
atffected, would it not, by the amount of the allowable for
the month that you were using to compute it?

It would if you would -- what I did was tske the 1958 which
was four last year, full year, of production. 1958 was

a year of production and was one of the high years. One of
the figures I have here represent the high side.

And the fact you divided that by twelve instead of taking
an actual monthly allowable figure as Mr. Leibrock did
would also result in a difference between those two, would
it notl

Yes, sir. I did not take the monthly figure as explained
because ~- taking the month of July, well multiplying that
by twelve, you'd come up with a figure -- you'd get twice
the production the field has ever had in one year.

Now, may I refer to Respondents' Exhibit 5, and I understand
your conclusions from your exhibit, from this exhibit, to
be that Continental's doing better under the deliverability
formula although they have never gotten back to where they
were had the formula remained as it was?

That's true. As of June, they were right at 4-1/4%.

Did you calculate the accumulated amountg that occurred over

that period?

&
o
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Yes, sir. It's right there, shown as 41,860 mcf for the
12-month periocd.

Now you testified, I believe, that during the time that
this was occurring there was a reduction in the total
deliverabilities of the pool cecurring?

No, sir. I testified there was a slight increase, an
increase of 1 and nine -~ in other words, we had an increase
from July 1958 up through May of 1959 of 1.9%. The field
as a whole increased slightly less than 2%. Daily deliver-
ability moved up from 741,000 mef to 756,000 mcf per day.
In other words, during that period, deliverability is going
up.

Just to get my own notes cleared up because I apparently
was confused. Why did the 6-1/2% decline figure come into
it?

?he following month, the month of July, when the new pro-
ration schedule came out, which will be in effect for the
next twelve months until the new deliverability -- that
reflects a reduction from 756,000 mcf to 693,000 metf.

lg that for July 19597

July 1959.

As against July 19582

That's right,

So I would be correct in saying there had been a reduction
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in deliverability of the fiseld between July !'58 and July '59
of about 6-1/2%?

If you are looking at it this way, the actual capacity of
the field had been reduced, that would be true, but your
chance to obtain allowable had not decreased. In other
words, the deliverability of the field had increased a
little bit to where it showed on there Continental had the
right to receive as much allowable from July on up on
acreage and deliverability.

How much was that increase in percentage?

1.90, slightly legs than 2%.

And during that period that the overall deliverability was
increasing 1.9% Continental's percentage of the allowable
was increasing a whole lot more than that, wasn't it?

That 18 true.

And somebody else was losing that allowable that Continental
was getting, weren't they?

Not being a -- this testimony is gtrictly mathematics.

You can't say who was losing but you'd sey it was lost by
soneone, wouldn't you?

The right to produce might be lost but I wouldn't say
Continental loses. N .t being an engineer, I couldn't answer it.
But then let's limit your testimony to the right to

produce it under the allowable schedule, and Continental
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gained more in its right to produce it under the schedule
during this period than the overall deliverability increased
during that period?

A That is true due to these changes in Continental's deliver-
ability on 29 wells -- 26 wells I testified here.

Q But someone had to lose the excess of increase if Continental
increased over what the pool increased, didn't they?

A ?hat is true. On the acreasge, the same thing is true.
1f you look back to the first part of 1958, Continental
started in over slightly more than 13% over due to re-align~
ments of acreage of units, and placing new wells. When
deliverability came in, they dropped down to 14.5%. They
had lost under the acreage formula. .That's true under any
formula when you have new wells coming into the field.

The allowables every year are judged on the 100% acreage
or deliverability or anything you want to use to measure it.

Q Well, your exhibit and testimony demonstrates that it has
occurred under the deliverability formula, doesntt it?

A And glso under the straight acreage. Of course, you had a
decline in the straight acreage and you had a decline --
and you had an increase ﬁndar the delivergbility. In other
words, you are losing on the straight acreage. Then you
were going up. |

Q There 18 no way that you can tell at this time what's going

£33 0o
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to happen on this next bar because of the changes in the
delivergbility tests on which it will be based, is there?
Well, sir, unless there is some changes, radical changes,
in the work over and stuff like that in the field, there
will be very little changes in the thing for another year.
In other words, as 1 have shown you here, July last year
started out with 741,000 and it only went up to 756,000 in
eleven months, less than a 2% change. Of coursge, I couldn't say
whether it would be up or down in the ensuing year.
Does the fact that there was a net 40% change in deliver-
abilities as shown by the '58 and '59 tests have any
bearing on that?
Well, sir, I do not concur with the method of preparing that.
If such a change occurred, it would affect the allowables,
wouldn't 1t?
That's right.

MR. MALONE: That's all.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. CAMPBELL:

Q

Mr. Martin, in what respect do you not concur with the
method of arriving at the 40% deviation?

Well, taking that exhibit, which I do not have in front of
me, you can take a small, some of the very small wells
there that have a 15% deliverability, in fact a stripper

well, and the next well shows a hundred -- the next well

L
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shows a 100% increase, well what does it amount to? You
put figures together like that and group them by degree of
increase, you're taking a well with degree of fifty
deliverability and you're putting it in here with a well
of 3,000 deliverability and you come up with percentages
that in =y opinion mean absolutely nothing.

MR. CAMPBELL: That's all.

MR. MALONE: That's all.

THE COURT: We will recess until 1:30,.

(WHEREUPON, trial of the cause was
recessed at the hour of 12:00 o'clock
noon and reconvened at 1:30 P.M,

resuming as follows.)

We ©C. KELLER, awitness called on behglf of
Respondents, having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. CAMPBELL!

o R S " R > B Y «

Would you state your name, please?
W. O, Keller.

Where do you live, Mr. Keller?

Fort Worth, Texas.

What ia your occupation?

I'm a consultant petroleum engineer.

What is the name of your f£irm?

A0
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Keller & Peterson.

Would you please give the Court a brief summary of your
education and professional background?

Yes, sir. I gruduated from Texas A. & M. College with a
degree in petroleum engineering in 1941 after which I was
employed by the Stanolind 0il & Gas Company, now Pan
American, as an engineer. I worked in various engineering
capacities with Stanclind until 19350, at which time I left
to enter into the consulting business. At the time of
leaving Stanolind, I was a Reserveir Engineering Supervisor
in their general offices in charge of all the reservoir
engineering work throughout the company'!s operations.

Are you the same Mr. Keller who mgde a study of -- I believe
the record in the case reflects 322 wellsin the Jalmat Gas
Pool and testified concerning your study before the 0il
Conservation Commission in this case?

Yeg, sir.

Mr. Keller, since the issuance of proration orders under
the deliverability formula put into effect by Orxrder 1092-C,
have you made studies in respect to migration which occurs
under that proration schedule as compared to migration that
occurred under the prior acreage schedule?

Yes, sir, I have made such type studies.

Does your study indicate that greater or less migration
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would occur under the Jalmat Pool under the deliversbility
formula as compared to the acreage formula?

My studies léad me to the conclusion that the migration in
the Jalmat Field would be less under the deliverability
formila than it would have been under the 100X acreage
formula. In other words, the operation of the July 1959
proration schedule would be to retard whatever migration
was taking place under the acreage formﬁla in existence
prior to the Commission order changing the allocation to
the deliverability formula.

MR. CAMPBELL: - That's all.

CROSS EXAMINA TION BY MR. MALOKE:

Q

Mr. Keller, was your study made on a regional basis or
tract to tract basis in the pool?

Well, sir, my studies were made using the data from each
of the wells.

Was it made for the purpose of determining migration as
between individual tracts or between regions of the pool?
Well, sir, the studies involved more than just a deter-
mination of the migration picture, and they involved the
determination of the distribution of the takes from the
field relative to the pressures in the various wells.
Was your study on a basis to determine the migration to

and from individual tracts or on a regional basis?
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Well my study ~- I'm not sure that I understand your question.
My study did not attempt to evaluate quantitatively the
amount of migration. It only attempted to evaluste the
change in the magnitude of the migration. In my opinion
there is insufficient data in the small time under which
the deliverability formula has been in operation to evaluate
in a quantitative fashion how much migration was taking
place from tract to tract.
So that, if I understand your answer, it is that you did
not make a study to evaluate the amount of migration from
tract to tract?
That is correct because such a study, in my opinion, cannot
reasonably be made to determine that amount of migration
now as compared to, say, a year ago.

MR. MALONE: Thank you. That's all.

MR. CAMPBELL: That's all.'

THE COURT: That's all, sir.

MR. CAMPBELL: That concludes our presertation,

your Honor,
THE COURT: Anything further, Mr. Malone?
MR. MALONE# I want to put two witnesses on, one

question each on rebuttal.
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PETITIONERS' CASE IN REBUTTAL

M R. ROBERT M. LEIBRGOCEK, a witness recalled
on behalf of Petitioners, previocusly having been sworn,
testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. MALONE:

Q You are the same Robert Leibrock who testified previously
in this case?

A Yes, sir.

Q You téatified, Mr. Leibrock, as to figures which you had

conmputed showing the changes in production in individusl

companies as between the acreage schedule and the deliver~
ability schedule. There you have an exhibit that you had
prepared for your own use which reflected the figures as
to which you testified?

Yes, sir, I do..

Will you produce that, sir, please?

I left it on the table.

c »» L& »

I hand you the instrument which has been identified as
Petitioners! Exhibit 9 and ask you if that -~ whether or
not that is the exhibit to which you referred?

A Yes, sir.

Q Are those the figures as to which you testified in the case
when you were on the stand earlier, on the witness stand

earlier?

5
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Yes, sir, they are.

How;what proration schedule was that computation based on?
These figures were taken from the July 1959 proration
schedule.

What deliverability test figures were used on that July
proration schedule?

From the July proration schedule I took the June allowables
which were based on the 1958 deliverability.

te that the same or a different set of deliverabilities
testified to by Mr. Martin in his exhibit?

That 18 a different set.

Then am I correct in understanding that the original exhibit
referred to here, which was introduced before the Commission,
was on the basis of deliverability figures available in
19577

That 18 correct.

That youwrexhibit was on the basis of the figures shown in
the proration schedule in June 14587

Yes, sir.

And Chat Mr. Martin's were on the schedule for July 19592
Yes, sir, that is my understanding,

And in your opinion does the fact that different proration
schedules were used substantially account for the variations

between your exhibit and that presented by Mr, Mgrtin?

op A T
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A Yes, sir, that is true, specifically with reference to
Cities Service where there is appreciable reduction in
deliveragbility between 1958 and 1959.

MR. MALONE: That's agll. We offer in evidence
Petitioners' Exhibit No. Y.

MR. CAMPBELL: We have no cbjection.

THE COURT: It will be admitted.

CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. CAMPBELL:

Q Mr. Leibrock, other than the difference you referred to in
comnection with the deliverability tests based upon the
1959 July tests, you find no quarrel with Mr. Martin's
exhibit?

A No, sir, I do not.

MR. CAMPBELL: That's all.

M R. VICTOCR T. LYON, a witness recalled on
behalf of Petitioners, previocusly having been sworn,
testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAM@N&EEON BY MR. MALONE:

Q You are the same Victor Lyon who testified in the case
previously?

A Yes, sgir.

qQ I hand you two sheets identified as Petitioners' Exhibits
7 and 8 and ask you to examine them and then state what they

are if you know.
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A These are Deliverability Test Calculation Sheets which are
referred to. They're the same as Forma C-122-C, Commission's
formg. They gre submitted to us by El Paso Natural Cas
Company as an independent calculation of the deliverabiiity
which they made.

Q Did your company receive those forms from El Paso Natural
Gas Company?

A Yes, sir, we did.

Q Do you have with you at this time similar forms that you
received on all wells in the Jalmat Pod§§%% Paso Natural
Gas Company?

A We have deliverability test forms or calculation sheets on
nearly all of our wells. We don't have any of their sheets
on wells other than those we operate.

MR. MALONE: That's all.

MR. GALATZAN: No questions, your Honor.

MR. MALONE: That's all for the Petitioners,
your Honor.

MR, CAMPBELL: If the Court please, may I make
ny motion? Come now Respondents and move the Court
to dismiss the Petition upon the ground that the
Petitioners have falled to prove by a preponderance
of the evidence that the order complained of is un-

reasonable, arbitrary or capricious or Is in any

respect unlawful.
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THE COURT: Do you gentlemen went to argue this
matter?

MR. MALONE: We are prepared to argue it, your
Honor, if the Court wishes to hear argument?

THE COURT: I will listen to argument.

MR. MALORE: The argument on behalf of the
Petitioners will be opened by Mr., Kellghin, and I will

follow, and then we will handle any rebuttal.

MR. KELLAHIN: If it pleases the Court, the principal portion
of my argument will be directed to the contention that the
order entered by the 0il Conservation Commission, being
Order No. R-1092-A as the former order, and No. R~-1092-C,
is vague, indefinite and uncertain in that it fails to set
up a standard which will guide the operator in the testing
of his wells. Nowthere has been considerable testimony
presented to the Court in regard to a directive issued by
the Commission. It is our position that this fails to
cure the deficiency in the order. The order itself defines
or directs that the allowable to be assigned to a well will
be based upon, in Part A, deliverability factor, which in
the order is referred to as the calculated deliverability
expressed in thousand cubic feet. This accounts for a

rortion of the allowable to be assigned to the well in the
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ratio of 75% acreage times deliverability plus 25% acreage.
The order t% Rule 6, subparagraph (c) states that:

"Arnnual deliverability tests shall be taken on all

gas wells in the Jalmat Gas Pool in a mamner and at

such time as the Commission may prescribe.m™
Obviously, on the face of that it does not set up the manner
in which the deliveragbility tests are to be made. Now the
Commission itgelf does not define deliverability in the
Rules and Regulations of the 0il Conservation Commigsion.
There is a similar word in use generally accepted as having
generally the same meaning, and that is the word, "potential®”.
The Commission's Rules and Regulations, as prefaced by a
section designated as "A", and in that Section A it defines
potential as meaning!

"The properly determined capacity of a well to

produce cil or gas or both under conditions

prescribed by the Commission,"
Obviously, on the face of it, the Commission realiged when
it entered order R-1092-A that some further action was
necessary in order to give meaning and effect to the
proration {f deliverability be included as a factor in the
Jalmat Pool.

But subsequent to the entry of the order, and on
February the 24th, 1958, the Commission promulgated a
directive which provided that a method for determining

deliverability on individual wells in the Jalmat Gas Pool



would be followed, and the provisgions of that order are
before the Court as an exhibit in this case introduced by
the respondents, s memorandum, I want to be specific

that it is not an order. Our statutes, and particularly
in Section 65-3-20, it is provided that the Commigsgion

can enter -- I prefer to read it to the Court briefly, if
you don't mind -- Section 65-3-20 provides that "except

as provided for herein, before any rule, regulation or
order, including revocation, change, renewal or extension
thereof, shall be made under the provisions of thisg Act, a
public hearing shall be held at such time, place and
manner a8 may be prescribed by the Commission.” I dontt
think it is contended by gnyone involved in this case that
the memorandum of February 24th, 1958, has the status of
an order, as an official action of the 0il Congervation
Commission and, certainly, in reading the statute, I can
find no exception which would bring it within the range of
that particular statute. But, assuming that the Commission
can. as an adminigtrative duty, and we submit it {s not an
adminigtrative duty; it is the duty devolved upon the
Commission to exercise discretion and judgment in establish-
ing a deliverability factor. As was testified by gr. Lyon
in his direct testimony, he said, "Yes," answering as an

answer there he could calculate the deliverability of a
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well on the basis of the information in Order 1092-A but
that not any two engineers would agree on the result.

That 1s the precise point that is involved in our contention
that the order is vague, indefinite and not certain.

Now, assuming that the memorandum i1s an effective item
in the enforcement of this order which is before the Court,
we again submit that it is vague, indefinite and uncertain.
As was testified by Mr. Lyon, on the basis of the deliver-
ability tests made in 1958 and in 1959, there was an
average difference of 40.327% for the pool as a whole. On
Continental operated gas wells, this average difference
was 40.18% and, incidentally there has been some testimony
about tubing. Thirty-one out of fifty-four wells were not
tubed on the Continental operated wells and yet their
average deviation from the pool as a whole was approximately
the same. |

Now, out of all the delivérability tests that were
made on the 359 wells testified to by Mr. Lyon only six
showed the same result, and yet Mr. Woodruff has testified
that if the directive is followed you should expect sub-
stantially similar results from subsequent tests. Certainly
I believe the evidence speaks for itself that those results
were not achieved on the wells operated by El Paso Natural

Gas Company in whoge behalf Mr. Woodruff was appearing.
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I think further that the exhibits that have been offered
by the respondents in this case further support cur con-
tention that deliverability as applied in the Jalmat Gas
Pool 18 not a fixed matter in any sense of the word.
Referring to Respondert s' Exhibit No. 4 that's just
been pointed out -~ if the’Court please, referring to the
evidence that is before the Court at this time, I'd like
to call attention to a couple of more items in regard to
the evidence as was shown by Exhibit No. 3, there was a
range or change in deliverability tests rumming from six
wells which tested the same up to a maximum of a change
of 28 ~ 80%, that being the percent number to Well -~ I
got Lanehart No. 1 well. Now I think the testimony which
was submitted by Mr. Norman Woodruff as to the factors
which determine g deliverability test in the Jalmat Gas
Pool certainly demonstrate that an accurate deliverability
test cammnot be achieved in this pool. Whether or not that
is inherent in the testing procedure itself or inherent
in the conditions which exist in the reservoir, it is the
practical application of the order, which is the significant
thing in this case, and I think'we have clearly demonstrated
that the.formula prescribed by the Commission will just
not give reasonably accurate results. Any order, rule or

regulation of a commission or administrative body must be



sufficiently definite and certain as to advise those gubject
to it as to their rights. The rule is stated in 73 C.J.S.
473, Sec. 142:
"The orders and awards of an adminigtrative agency
must state specifically what was determined; and they
should be clear, definite, and certain, particularly
in cases where there is no provision for appeal to the
courts. They should be sufficient to inform the parties
what they are required to do, and to protect persons
complying with them; and, where the violation of an
order will subject a person to a penalty, the order
is invalid unless it isg sufficiently explicit to
inform those who are subject to it what conduct on
thex part will render them ligble to the penalty."
In that connection I would call attention to a New Mexico
statute which provides for the violation of any rule, order,
regulation of the Oil Conservation Commisgion, there is
a penal provision in the amount of $1,000. I do not
believe that would be specifically applicable for failure
to tgke a deliverability test. The penalty for that is
prescribed in the order itself, which states that no
allowable will be assigned to the well unless an approved
deliverability test has been filed with the Commission.
That in itself is pemalty enough and would deprive the
operator of his right to produce oil and gas.
Again in 73 C.J.8. 418, Sec. 100, it is stated that:
"A rule or regulation of a public administrative
body or officer should be definite and certain and
should lay down adeguate legislative standards, and

should not vioclate constitutional provisions rela-
tive to form.

CHEZ Y
e 3’5;‘ * ’{*



226

A rule or regulation of a public administrative
body or officer should be definite and, likewise,
such rule or regulation should be certain. It ghould
not be subject to the objection that it fails to
lay down adequate legislative standards, since it
mist contain a guide or standard applicable to all
individuals similarly situated go that anyone
interested may be able to determine his ownrights
or exceptions thereunder.®
This rule 18 in accord with the well established rule in
New Mexico which was first stated in the case of Steward
v. D & RG Railroad, reported in 17 N. M, 557. I think the
Court will recall that was the case involving the State
Corporation Commission where the railroad had been ordered
to provide suitable facilities at a railroad station for
the comfort of the passengers, and the court held that that
was such a vague and indefinite direction they had no way
of knowing whether {t was right or not.
In the case of Tobin v. Edward 5. Wagner Co., 187
F. 2d 977, a Circuit Court of Appeals case from the Second
District, this was a wage-hour case where it was held that
the record did not show, and the face of the regulation
would not indicate, that certain activitiesg came under the
provisions of the regulation. The court stated:
"Were we interpreting a statute to gscertain what
power it conferred on an administrative officer,
much could be sald for such an argument."
And the argument being that the regulation should not be

construed too liberally.. And extending the quotation:
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“"Beginning at least with Aristotle, it has often
been recognized that, as a legislature camnot
foresee all possible particular instances to which
legislation is to apply, it must therefore be
reasonably so interpreted to fill in gaps. But

when the legislature delegates to an administrative

official the authority by 'sublegislation,' to

ingure regulations, in order to fill in those gaps,

then the regulations, precisely because they par-

ticularigze, ought not be as generously interpreted

as a statute. In fairness to the regulated, the

provisions of the regulations should not be deemed

to include what the administrator, exercising his

delegated power, might have covered but did not

cover."
I think that's precisely the situation here in that the
order does not cover the item of deliverability except in
general and indefinite terms, and the only attempt to
remedy that deficiency was to attempt to remedy without
notice of hearing in order to give full force and effect
to the order of the Commission.

In Miller v. Harmon Consgtruction Co., an Oklahoma
case, there was no finding by the State Industrial Commigsion
as to the degree of disability in a workmen's compensation
case. In that case the Court held that the findings were
deficient {n that there was no indication of how the court
or Commission had calculated the degree of disability.

I have one more case which I'd like to bring to the
attention of the Court before closing my argumemt. That's
the Lone Star Gas Co. vs. Kelly, a Texas case reported in

165 SW 2d 446. This wa# an action for damages, claiming
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negligence per se for violation of a statute, and the
Railrocad Commission order promulgated under the provisions
of that statute. The order required the addition of an
cdorant that would give the gas a distinctive odor when
present in concentrations of 1 per cent by volume, adding
the language:
"By thig is meant the gas shall be given an odor
by adding an agent that will vaporize, dissolve in
or be so mixed with gas as to produce an odor
readily perceptible to a normal or average olfactory
sense of a person coming from fresh, ungasified air
vhen gas is present not more than one pert to
ninety-nine parts of alr in cases of natural gas."
In holding this provision was so vague and indefinite as
to be impossible of enforcement, the court stated that:
"When the state, whether by statute or by order of
gome governmental agency, promulgates a rule of
conduct for the citizen, it must speak in specific

and definite terms so that he may clearly understand
what 18 required of him."

Quoting later in the opinion:
HA statute which either forbids or requires the doing
of an act in terms so vague that men of common
intelligence must ﬁacessarily guess at its meaning
and differ as to its application violates the first
essential of due process of law.”
I submit to the Court that we have established the vague
and indefinite nature oﬁ this order, and the fact that
because of its very vague and indefinite and uncertain

nature, it is unlawful and void.
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MR. MALONE: May it please the Court, it might be helpful if
we took a quick look at exactly where we are in this case.
The statute, as the Court recognizes, purports to grant
a de novo trial in the District Court on an appeal from
the 011 Conservation Commission. The question of the valid-
ity of that provision as regards the constitutional
prohibition and the separation of powers doctrine is un-
determined in New Mexico. If we should reach the point
of determining it in this case, it will probably turn on
the question of whether or not the function of protecting
correlative rights is ajlegislative function or a judicial
function. And, if it was a judicial function being per-
formed by the Commission, then a de novo trial. in the
District Court without éuestion is authorized and valid.
If 1t 18 a legislative ﬁunction, it 18, of course, invalid
in the respect that it seeks to provide for the de novo
trigl, and we would I think be left to the auﬁstantial
evidence rule, and the question of whether or not there
1s substantial evidence in the record to support the
decision of the Commission plus the question of whether
the order is unreascnabﬂe, illegal or arbitrary on the
bases which have been p&inted out by the testimony pre-
sented here. If there 1s not substantial evidence in the

record tc support the decision of the Conmission, we do not
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reach the question of whether a de novo trial is valid

or invalid. If there is substantial evidence that the order
is vaiid on additional grounds as to which evidence has
been presented, we may reach that point.

I would like to digcuss briefly three grounds set out
in thig petition for review, the first one of which is as
set ocut in Section 8(a)jof the Petition for Review of
Pan-American Petroleum Company, that the application of
Texas Pacific Coal & Oil Company, Case No. 1327, constitutes
a collateral attack upon the proration formula that was
originally promulgated by Order No. R-520 in Case No. 673
before the Commission. It is our position that the pro-
ration formula for the 3almat Pool, having been fixed in
the Order No. 520 of Case 673 of the Commission, and, if
it be conceded that the Commission had continuing authority
under which they could #hange that, or change the proration
formula, that it could only be done by an application £iled
in that case in which the formula was establighed, and
that an attempt to accaﬁplish that in an independent case
is exactly the same situation as if a separate suit was
filed in this Court to #atisfy a judgment which had been
rendered by this Court $n any ground by which that jadgment
might be set aside, and smc we think that the Commigsion

should not have entered in this application in a case in
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which it wasnt't filed, and we so pointed out to the
Commission.

‘ The second ground to which I would like to refer is
the proposition that, even if it be conceded for purposes
of argument, there is substantial evidence in the record
to support the finding of the Commission, that that
finding is still insufficiemnt to support the order which
the Commission has issued. That is based upon the proposition
that the only power given to the Commission for the pro-
ration of gas. allowable is given under the requirement
of the statute:

"1t shall so far as it is practical to do so afford
to the owner of each property in a pool the oppor-
tunity of producing his just and equitable ghare of
the oil and gas, ox both, in the pool, being an
amount so far as can be practically determined, and
so far as can be practically obtained without waste,
substantially in the proportion that the quantity
of the recoverable oil and gas, or both, under such
property hears to the total recoverable gas or oil,
or both, in the pool."
If that statute had not established such standard for the
exercise of the legislative power that is vested in the
Commission, the statute would have been void becaguse
obviously a delegation of legislative powers requires
legiglative standards for the application. The statute
vhich gives the Commission the power to prorate gas was

valid only becguse it contained that provigion, By the

same token, action taken by the Commission under that
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statute requires as a prerequisite for validity a finding
that that provision by the legislature has been met. In
other words, an order changing a proration formula in a
case of this kind, can only be valid, as we see it, if it
finds in the words of the statute that the order will
result in the owners of the gas in the pool recovering the
gas substantially in the proportion that the quantity of
recoverable oil or gas or both under the property bears to
all of the gas in the pool, and will do so to a greater
extent or to a better end than the pre-existing formula.

Row the legislature said this is a standard by which
you prorate. If the Commigsion was to exercise that power,
its got to find that that standard hss been met. And
there is a perfectly good reason for it because then we
have an opportunity to attack the question of whether there
is substantial evidence to support that conclusion. But
the Commission has not so concluded in this order. And,
lacking that vital provision, the order itself is valid
even if there is substantial evidence to support it -- it's
invalid; I beg your pardon.

Now, let's look at what the Commigsion did find in
this regard. That the applicant has proved that there is
a general correlagtion between the deliverability of the

gas wells in the Jalmat Pool and gas in plgce under the
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tracts dedicated to said wells. Now the Commission didn't
say the gas can be prorated under the -- correlated between
the deliversbilities and recoverable gas in place. It

sald it must be prorated on the basis of the gas under the
tract and the total gas in the pool. And lacking a finding
that thisg is occurring, the order, as we view it, is invalid.

Finally on this proposition the remainder of the
finding {s that the inclusion of a deliverability factor
in the proration formula for the Jalmat Gas Pool would,
therefore, result in a more equiteble allocation of the
gas production. Now, if the legislature of New Mexico
had said in this act, the Commission has the power to pro-
rate gas on an equitable base, the statute would have been
void because there would have been no legislative standards,
because the Commigsion's idea or my idea or one commissioner's
idea as against another's as to what an equitable standard
is may vary as far as the poles so that the legislature
could not have set an equitable basis. And yet that is
all that the Commission has found, and a finding by the
Commigsion which would have been inadequate as a delegation
of a legisliative power to the Commission certainly makes
invalid the attempt to exercise that power, and the finding
is wholly deficient.

As authority for that proposdtion, we cite the case of
Hunter vs. Hesey reported in %0 So. 2d, 429. This 18 a
Louisiana case decided in 1956 in which in comnection with
a water flood project in an oil pool in Louisiana the

wihd
Coumissioner, exercising his authority as he thought
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validly, issued an order transferring the allowable from
certain down-dip wells to certain up-dip wells with the
regult that, when the down-dip wells were shut in gnd
the water was injected, a portion of the up-dip wells were
going to be given two allowables as against one allowable;
the rest were going to be given the two allowables, being
to produce the oil for the oll that was assigned for the
wells that were shut down. The people objecting to that
came in and attacked it. The finding of the Commissioner,
on the basis of which he purported to act, was that
"a more efficient operation of the presgure main-
tengnce program in the whole Brand-May equivalent
resexrvoir can be accomplished with less reserveir
voldage and less reservoir energy by producing
from the more efficient wells the amount of oil
allotted from the wells of high gas ratios and

producing sn excesrive amount of oil which are
otherwise less efficient.”

A very lagudible purpose. They were going to make better use
of the reservoir emergy and going to increase the ultimate
recovery from the pool, but the court sald the statute

said, just as the New Mexico statute says:

that "the Commissioner shall prorate the allowable
production among producers in the pool on a reason-
able basis 80 as to prevent or minimigze avoidable
drainage from each developed area which is not
equalized by counter=-drainage, end sc that each
producer . . . "

almost in the words of our statute

", . . will have the opportunity to produce or
receive his just and equitable share subject to
the reagonable necessities for the prevention of

waste."
<32
And then the Louisiana statute in defining what the just
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and equitable share of a property owner was used substan-
tially the exact language that we do, and they said -~
getting down to the meat and the part which 1s substantially
in proportion =-- that:
"the quantity of recoverable oil and gas in the
developed area of his tract or tracts in the pool
bears to the recoverable oil and gas in the total
developed area in the pool insofar as these amounts
can be practically ascertained.”
So the standard there is substantially the same as the
standard here. The Court struck down the order of the
Commissioner, reallocating the allowable, on the ground
that a finding of general benefit to come from the issuance
of the orderdid not meet the requirement of the statute
which was that, if allocation was tc be made, it had to
be made on the basis of a man recovering his reasonable
share of the oil in place, and that that must be i{n relation
to the total amount in the pool.
The concluasion is this:
"In the gbsence of a finding by the Commissioner,
we are ungble to determine whether in adopting a
limitation upon the transfer of allowables the
Commigsioner applied the standard provided by the
legislature, which was that in prorating an allowable
production that the Commlissioner must not deprive
any producer of his just and equitgble share of

the production nor cause drainage to any developed
tract. It is not within the province of the courts
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to review the specialized evidence, and makes its
finding in the faglilure of the administrator's order
to include a finding of the basic facts condition-~
ing the power of the Commissioner to issue the
order."

And we say that the same thing is true here, and that the
basic finding that was required for eny order such as this
1s a finding that, in the words of the statute, the
correlative rights would be better protected, and no
such finding exists. At most, the finding ig that a more
equitable distribution would result.

The final proposition that I would like to mention
briefly ie the one which I discussed at some length at
the opening of the case, which is that there is no
substantial evidence in this record to support the decision
of the Commission under any circumstances. The new issue
of DATA FROM ADMINISTRATIVE LAW, at Page 118, in discussing
this question about what is substantial evidence, has this
rather learned observation:

"The meaning of gubstantisl evidence 1s about as
clear and about as vague as it szhould be. The
main inquiry is whether on the record the agency
could reasonably make a finding."
At Page 130, Section 29.03 of the sgme authority, there is
this further discussion of the review under the substantial

evidence rule:

"Does review of the whole record mesn that each
reviewant shall read each page of the administrative
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record? The answer is generally no, although the
courts have not explicitly answered the question
in formal opinion. The reviewing court must take
into account whatever detracts from ocur evidence
that he holds to be substantial and it is not the
same that every page must be read. One party normally
points out the evidence supporting the finding and
the other normally points out the evidence detract-
ing from the finding. By relying on the parties'
sifting, the judges may often review quite con-
sclentiously without reading the entire record."

And, finally, the brief observation on 145, Section 29.06:
PAdministrative determination of credibility is often
set aside because the reviewing court firmly believes
that the evidence supporting the determination {s
clearly less credible than the opposing evidence."

Probably those all add up to the fact that a scintilla is

not sufficient to support an administrative order, and the

fact that all of the evidence will be considered in deter-
mining whether affirmative evidence offered by the opponent
is actually substantial. In referring to the importance

of substantial evidence in a case of thisg kind, 1t is

obvious from the exhibits of the petitioner himself that

we are not playing with peanuts. When we talk about a

redistribution of the cwnership of $25,000 worth of gas a

month for one operator, which ig the effect of this order

insofar as Culf was concerned =-- in this case Gulf i{s the

beneficiary of the redistribution, but nonetheless a

redistribution -- we realizge the importance of the equities

that are determined by proration formula. They actually

read just the ownership of the gas in the reservoir because

Dan
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the ownership of gas, as the Court knows, is of no value
to anybody except he sees it, and he is entitled to produce
it.

The substantial evidence that is offered to the Court
in support of the finding in this order is all based upon
a determimation of the reserves of individual wells which
is reallocated to the well, assigned to the well, and those
reserves are determined not on the basis of the gas that is
under the tract but on the basis of all the gas that well
has produced throughout its history, and on the assumption
that it is entitled to continue to produce that same amount
and that that right is reserve and that that is re-
allocated to the tracts in question. Now, that wholly
ignores the requirement of the statute with reference to
proration orders. It wholly ignores the definition of
correlative rights. The statute has said that the order
must prorate the gas on the basis of the recoverasble gas
in place under the tracts, and it has been admitted that
there is no evidence presented as to recoverable gas in
place other than by the redistribution of reserves. It has
also been admitted that the redistributibn of reserves
glves effect to all of the drainage that has occurred in
the entire life of thset well and perpetuates that drainage

for the remainder of the life of it.
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On that basis, if it please the Court, we respectfully
submit that there is no substantial evidence supporting
the order, and that the oxder is arbitrary, capricious
and void,

On the one other proposition which I wanted to
mention, and will mention briefly, as to the confiscation
of property, which is also under this formula, the testi-
mony showed that a number of the factors that determined
the deliverability in these tests, and in particular the
amount of gas that & man is going to get on a proration
schedule, 18 entirely out of the control of the operator
and is contrclled by the El Paso Natural Gas Company or
the pipeline company purchasing the gas. Any formula which
predicates the right toc obtain an allowable upon a factor
which is beyond the control of the well owner and in the
complete control of a pipeline company is a confiscation
of the property of the well owner and void without question.
We, therefore, suggest and submit to the Court that the
order is invalid and should be struck dowm.

MR. WARD: If it please the Court, Mr. Campbell
and I will divide the argument.
THE COURT: Very well, Mr. Ward.

MR. WARD: While it is fresh {n my mind, I would like first to

take up this question of confiscatiocn that Mr. Malone
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mentioned. He says that the pipeline companies have control
over certain of the factors, ?h& relationship between the
pipeline company and the operator is a matter of contract
entered into betweanthem. If I recall Mr., Woodruff's
testimony right, that operator may at any time protest,

has a right to complain amd, while Mr. Woodruff didn't say
that, 1f the pipeline company does not comply with his
contract, he has a right to go to court and enforce them.
And so I don't believe there is any validity whatsoever to
that argument.

In any event -~ gnd I am going to come back to this
from time to time ~- that was a matter that was not raised
before the 0il Conservation Commission in the motion for
rehearing, and our sgtatute specifically provides that no
matter may be ralsed here which wasn't raised before the
Commigsion. But certainly the operator can't complain
because he entered into a contract governing his property.

Returning now to Mr. Kellaghin's argument that the
order 1s vague and indefinite. It appears to me that there
are actually two parts to that argument. One, that because
on two different occasions when the pressure tests were
taken and the deliverabilities determined there was a wide
variation, that there is a defect in the formula.itself.

Your Honor, that just is not so. I believe that testimony
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has been shown to be completely without weight. Br. Woodruff's
testimony -~ I believe he backed it up -- was this, that,
if the operator complied with the rules of the Commission
by putting in pipe and put his well in proper condition for
the test as he is required by the order of the Commission
itself, and is required by any prudent operator, then on
two occasions reasongbly related in t ime they will bear a
very close relationship in the result reached. Now, of
course, he didn't testify that that same close relationship
would exist from year to year but, because cf the many
other changes that can take place in the well, the rework
jobs they do and will continue to do and all of these other
factors, plus the gradual depletion of the pool. Those will
all affect and make a difference between an order taken
this year and taken next year. But that isn't the question
that there's been a change in the well itself from year to
year. ?he question itgelf, the test, is whether , within
raasonaﬁly close proximity, they can achieve two tests
which are reasonably close and which are both valid and
both show the same thing. That's all, your Honor.

This matter of deliverability as a test is nothing
new. The record shows that they have been using deliver-
ability as a test iﬁ?gan Juan Basin ever since they started

prorationing, and they have been able to do it without
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complaint so there is nothing wrong in the formula itself
8c now I think it is apparent that the operators in this
area are learning what they should do in order to present
the best picture they can and have the highest delivergbility,
and I think the situation undoubtedly will improve. But
that is no defect in the order. That is a defect, or the
failure of the operator to do those things which both the
Commission and his own pocketbook require. We have sort
of an anomaly here maybe. I certainly don't think it has
been done, and yet you have that situation that ordinarily
the best interest of the operator is tc have his tests show
the highest possible deliverability but now that may not
have been true this last year with Contirental and thesge
cther Petitioners because of the very fact this case is
pending.

Now, your Honor, 1 believe that the testimony of
Mr. Woodruff completely eliminated the validity of that
argument. I believe that argument was an argument made
before the Commission but now this other argument, the
failure to define deliverability in Order 1092-A in itself
renders the order vague and indefinite, that question was
not presented to the Commission. The directive about which
they complain was dated or issued February 24,1958, and

the hearing in the Commigsion did not take place for some
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three weeks so that, if they had a complaint that that
directive was not sufficient, that that was the place to
have made that objection and, had they so requested, it
could easily have been incorporated in the order issuing
out cf the hearing, 1092-C. That was not done. But, in
any event, your Henor, it is not necessary that technical
terms be defined, matters more peculiar to lawyers. We
don't feel chat such a woré "rape", for instance, has to
be defined. |
THE COURT: You got quite a ways off the subject
Just then I believe.
MR. WARD: I think I feel kind of more on home
ground on that kind of matters.

MR. WARD (continuing): These Orders 1092-~A and 1092-C, like
most orders of the 0Oil Conservation Commisgion, are filled
with technical terms. It is a matter of necessity. And
certainly they have been talking about all kinds of technical
terms here today which have not béen:iefined in the formsl
orders of the Commission, such as this matter of slope
that was raised. The orders would be so voluminous 1f gll
those technical terms were defined in the order itself that
they would be unworkable. As a matter of fact, the original
order setting up the acreage basis for proration did not

contain similar definitions. The law does not require that
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an order of the Commission contain within its four corners
the definition of each and every term used therein.
Respondert ¢ admit that the intent and meaning of the order
of the Commission must be sufficiently clear to apprise

the reader of the order but certainly thig does not mean
that one is precluded from going outside the four corners

of the particular order to find the definition of the terms
ugsed therein. The theory under which certain laws which
from time to time have baen declared void for vagueness is
that the individuals affected thereby cannot be required

to speculate or guess as to what the law requires or forbids,
which i{s certainly good law and with which we gll agree.

In other words, the statute must be definite. The principle,
however, does not require that the law in question contain

a definition of the terms. (See Mumm vs. Singer, a Florida
case, 64 So., 261; and the People vs. Hessler, 155; Inter-
state Trucking Co. vs. Dammond, a Wisconsin case, 1 NW 125.)
On the contrary the test applied was whether the

class of persons affected by the statute have a sufficient
understanding of the statute and the terms contained therein
to correctly apply the same. (Joseph Trainer Corp. vs.
McNeil, an Illinois case, 2 NE 2d, 929, affirmed by the

U.S. Supreme Court in 299 U.S. 183.) It is immaterial

from whence this understanding comes. The purpose of the

AN
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rule 18 to permit an individual to know what hig rights
and duties are and, once he knows that, the law doesn't have
to go any further. |

This part I want to come back to. In the argument
that Mr. Kellghin made, he pointed out there was &
criminal provision under this statute and that it would be
possible for his client to be prosecuted under that criminal
provision and, if that be so, then his constitutional rights
might be prejudiced. Well, your Honor, I don't think there
is no proposition better founded than that a person cannot
come into this court and complain that a statute is uncon-
stitutional unless he is then aend there complaining that he
is being hurt thereby. He certainly can't complain that the
vagueness of the statute which might result in some criminal
offense when he hasn't been so charged. In the Trainer
cage, the court held that the statute would not be declared
void for vagueness or uncertainty where the meaning of
technical terms used therein were well enough known to
engble persons within the reach of the statute to apply them
correctly. Well, the same rule must apply here. In this
particular situation «- and here we have a very poor case
for the petitioners to complain of be:ng hurt or they
didn't know what this mesns. Back in 1954, the Commission

issued an order which is a part of the record. I'm mistaken.
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It is a directive dated March 15, 1954, in which deliver-
ability was defined ané%&hich the -~ gll the field that
produces in the Jalmat Field was required to follow the
procedure outlined to make deliverability tests each year.
They did make these tests at least once. In addition, a
committee was appointed, created by the Commission, to
study the sole question of deliverability and, according to
the testimony here.yesterday, at least three members of
Continental were on that committee. That method was some-
thing that was knbwn to all of the producers. That defini-
tion was something that was known to them and ha§ been in
force since 1954, ?here was a slight change mad%%the 1958
directive or memorandum which, as I understand, merely
changed the length of time over which the test be taken
from 24 hours I believe or 48 hours from 72 hours. But
other than that, they have known all this time what that
order meant so they are not in a position to say, "Well
here is something we don't know anything gbout.”" They
cannot complain of the statute -- of the order being vague
and indefinite when they knew exactly what it meant, when
the orders of the Commission or the directives of the
Commission had been in force all of that time.

The Petitioners in their petition have kept asserting

that this order, No. R-520, established the acreage basis
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for the Jalmat Field. That is not, strictly speaking,
correct. There were two orders preceding that establiehing
that basis. And, in those orders, which were in force at
all times until the adoption of the 1092-A, it was specifi-
cally stated that the proration was a temporary matter and
that further study would be made snd the questiocn of deliver-
ability would be considered for further use. So that at
all times they had notice that this question of deliver-
ability was coming back. Here is the exact language:

"that a well testing procedure should be gdopted as

soon as poesible so that operators, purchasers and

the Commission can determine the fairmess and

feasibility of an allocating factor for the pool

which employs the factors of deliverability, pressure

and other factors relating7gas well productivity."®
And that was incorporated in R-368~A and ~369-A which
established the acreage basis of proration.

Now Mr. Malone said he wae going to raise three questions.
Hig first question was that the application of Texas
Pacific was a collateral attack on the previous order of
the Commission R-520. I believe he should have referred
to these other orders which in turn in part were superseded
by that order, R-520. Certainly an administrative order
will -~ like any other order, is not subject to collateral
attack. However, in all of the cases setting out that

doctrine of a commission or regulatory body as being attacked
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in a separate proceedings, in a judicial proceedings. In
cther words, there is an order of the Commigsion. The
individual doesn't like it so he goes into the Court and
seeks to enjoin the enforcement, and the courts say that
is a collatergl attack and cannot be done. This isn't the
case here. The application of Texas Pacific Coal & Oil
Company seeks a change in the proration formula with a
direct attack which is certainly authorized. This appli-
cation was instituted for the express purpose of correcting
and modifying a previaus order of the Commigsion. It was
not an attempt to avoid the previous order. It was an
attempt to go ahead, to take that next step upon which ﬁhe
Commigsion and all of the parties had been talking. It is
certainly submitted that, if a party to this, a person
actuaglly ! interest, could not at a later time come back
in and say, "Now look, we have had a chance to study the
operation of this order," then the Commission couldn’t act
and both the Commission and all parties would be helpless
from that time on to correct injustices that occurred in
the meantime. I don't believe that any such result could
have been contemplated by thée legislature. It certainly
would have been strange if it did. The legislature
specifically imposes upon the Commission the duty to pre-

vent waste and protect correlative rights. I call the
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Court's attention especially to Section 65-3-20 of the
New Mexico Statute, 1953, Annotated, which 18 as follows:
"Except as provided for herein, before any rule,
regulation or order, including revocation, change,
renewal or extension thereof, shall be made under
the provisions of this Act, a public hearing shall
be held."
In other words, the legislature by its very laws itsgelf
hag provided that these orders can be changed. In the case
cof the Railroad Commission vs. Humble Cil Co., a Texas case
coming up from Texas, 67 §.C. 1523, 331 U.S. 791, the
facts were these. The Ragilroad Commission had in effect
a proration order in the Hawkins Field under which allow-
ables were based under what was termed a 50/50 base. That
is, one~half of the daily allowable was allowed on the well
base, and the other half was based on surface acreage.
The spacing unit was twenty acres. Under this formula, a
well on less than one acre was given one~-half of the dlowable,
on twenty acres. Under the amended basic unit, the tract
was raised to forty acres and the allowable of one well on
a tract of more than twenty acres was given 5% additional
for each additional, thus one well on the forty-acre tract
had an allowable of twice that on the twenty-acre tract, or
four times that on a tract of one acre or less. There the

Supreme Court of the United States salid this that the

Commission in the interest of pruduction and protecting
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correlative rights, its proration orders are subject to
change, modification or change at any time, and either upon
notice of hearing or upon application of any interested party.
This principle is so well establighed as to establish no
citation of authority. It shall also be noted that each
of the proration orders regarding Hawkins Field contain the
following proviso: that

"This cause be held open on the docket for such

other and further orders as may be necessary,

supported by evidence of record.®
That order carried down is face notice to each and everyone
who had properties on the field that it was subject to a
change. Just as the order establishing the acreage basis
put the parties on notice that deliverability was going to
be congidered. I have a detgiled discussion on those
orders but I am going to omit it. The Texas Supreme Court
sums up the whole problem in the Texas Training Co. vs.
Stanolind, 161 SW 2d 1046. There the plaintiff appealed
from an order of the Commission which cancelled appellant!s
permit which gave them permission to drill an additional
well within a unit. The plaintiff contended that as a
matter of law it was entitled fa drill an additional well
because under the gpacing rules and regulations in existence
that the subject land was segregated and that when it
was acquired and leased the plaintiff had a right to drill
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an additional well. The Court salid, the contention is
overruled. Spacing rules must be subject to change from
time to time to permit an equitable adjustment of the
machinery of oil prcration to meet changing conditions.

If the lease owner could acquire the right to arrest the
spacing rules then the Commigsion would be powerless to
act. Certainly this fact gives authority, as contemplated
by the Statute, to modify the order of the Commission made
at a time when they didn't have sufficient information to
go into such a thing as a testing procedure based on
deliverability.

Now Mr. Malone's next argument was to the effect, as
near as I can understand it, each owner being entitled to
produce his fair share of the oil produced, that thig order
is bad because it does not use the language in any instance
contained in the statute. What this order of the Commission
1092-C provides is that:

"After considering all the evidence presented at

the original hearings, and the rehearing in this

case, the Commission reaffirms its finding that

Texas Pacific Coal & Oil Company has proved by a

preponderance of the evidence that there is a

general correlation between the deliverabilities of

gas wells in the Jalmat Gas Pool and the recoverable

gas in place under the tracts dedicated to said wells.”
In other words, what the Commission has done is recognize
that language made in the statute, and gone the next step

further by stating that there is a necessary relationship

#hot
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between the deliverability and the gas in place. But that
is not the only section about law relating to this question.
While Section 65-3-14 provides that the owner of property
in a pool will be given an opportunity to keep and

produce his just and equitable share of oil and gas, or
both, in the pool and f£inds that’the just and equitable
share is an gamount -- that's a definition there too -- as
far as can be practically determined, and as far as can be
practically obtained without waste, substantially in the
proportion that the quantity of recoverable oil or gas, or
both, under a property bears to the total recoverable gas
or oil, or both, in the pocl, and it appears to me that the
basis of this argument is that they used "general correla-
tion" instead of the words "substantially in proportion”.
But Section 65-3-13(¢) of the statute provides that in
allocating an allowable of production according to wells
in the gas pool, the Commission may conseider aéreage, pres-
sure, open flow, porosity, permeability, deliverabiiity
and quality of gas and such other pertinent factors as

may from time to time exist. That is exactly what the
Commiggion has doﬁe now. Those two sections must of
necessity be read together. Each of the factors was con-
sidered by the Commission in the instant case before

determination was made that the best evidence that they
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had before them indicated that recoverable gas in place

was in reasonable relation or general correlation to general
deliverability. And it should be remembesmdthat the Commis-
sion not only has this deliverability in this formulae but
also acreage, 25% acreage times deliverability. Thus, I
think the most all we would be doing is quibbling as to

the meaning of terms. And certainly there is that relation-
ship that, if the Commission was authorized to find that
relationship between deliverability and recoversble gas in
place, which it did f£ind, then it has protected those cor-~
relative rights as required by the statute.

Now Mr. Malone has argued that there 18 no substantial
evidence to sustain the order of the Commiggsion, Your
Honor, yesterday morning, Mr. Malone and Mr. Campbell read
to you short excerpts from the testimony of the witnesses.
There seemed to be quite a play on words but I don't see
as it makes any difference whether Mr. Keller in making his
engineering study first determines the reserves of a well
and from that figure determines the recoverable gas in place
or whethex he is able to make that determination in one
step. It ig only a matter of degree so, 1if, as an engineer-
ing matter, he must first détermine the reserves before he
can determine the gas in plaee, then there certaiﬁly is

nothing wrong with his testimony or the conclusion that he
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reached that there was a reagonable relationship between
the deliverability of the well and the recoverable cil ==
or gas in place, and further that the tests would tend to
minimize drainage, or, in other words, protect correlative
rights. It was, in any event, much better in the protection
of those rights than a straight acreage formula. I'm not
an engineer and I'm certainly not an expert on these oil and
gas matters, but I sat down and I read that testimony of
those witnesses contained in the transcript -- there is

some thousand pages of it -~ and those witnesses did not

get on the stand and merely recite conclusions. They had
these theories worked out, they set those theories out in
detail and then gave the other parties an opportumity to
cross examine and then thereafter applied those formulas

to the actual facts and found them to be valid. This
deliverability formula which Mr. Keller testified is in

the San Juan Basin amd other places, and which he figured
this formula which had a deliverability factorto it was the
fairest method of allocating the gas in that it would pro=
tect correlative rights best, includes such matters as
thickness of pay, the pressure, the porosity and permeability
and the conant water. W¥hat he concluded was that many of
these with certain limitatione, the same factors which

determine the deliverability of the well also determine the
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amount of gas in place under a tract. Now, your Honor, as
I say, I am not an engineer, but it geems obviocus tc me that,
if you take two tracts of lagnd of 160 gcres each, and one
has a pay thickness of ten feet, the other one has a pay
thickness of forty feet, all other factors being equal,
this one over here with forty feet is going to have more
gas in it even though the surface acreage is the same. It
seems 8> obvious that I couldn't help but follow his line
of reasoning. The deliverability formules does take that
into account and, of course, the straight acreage did_not
Now the same is true, other factors being equal, 1f you own
640-acre unit which has a pressure twice as high as the
other 640~-acre unit, other factors being equal, that one
with the high pressure of a necessity has to have more gas
in place in that particular unit. As the Court will have
noticed in the testimony here, this test pressure is of
most impértance and thege tests are made on the basis of
these pressure tests and the changes and so on and the
various conditions. Now, the well with the high deliver-
ability is the well with the high pressure,and it is a
matter of common knowledge that, if you have gas under high
pressure in one place and under low pressure in the other,
that it would always migrate from the high pressure area

to the low pressure and never the reverse. Take two balloomns.
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Fill one all the way up and one half way up and attach
the ends together, they will equalize their pressure by the
gas going from the high pressure to the low pressure. Of
course that works much more slowly in this formation but
that principle is always there. Therefore, when the Com-
mission comes up with a formula whereby the high pressure
well is given the high allowsable, it cammot cause drainage
because in it it has the high pressure. All it can do is
produce the gas that is there and prevent the neighbor
with the low pressure acreage from draining off that gas.
Mr. Malone made quite a 1:5.15}«%:= the fact that the that
there was lots of money involved here, and that Continental
as of June '59 is losing 4.25% of that, but the mere fact
that Continental in the past has been able tc obtain an
advantage because of the neceéssary result of the acreage
formula resulted in drainage to Continental's wells doesn't
give them the right to continue that for all future time.
But the thirg I want to get at, this substantial
evidence proposition, your Honor, is this that there is this
evidence in there. It*'s abumdant. And, certainly, it would
be unfair to ask this Court to, based on the statement of
counsel or just reading those excerpts from the record, to
congider that the Court was in a position to rule whether

there was subsgtantial evidence before the Commission or
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whether the order of the Commission was falr and reasonable.
It certainly would be grossly unfgir in view of the fact
that there was nc attempt made here to develop that testi-~
mony. I think maybe this case is a good example why these
regulatory powers are vested in commissions and administra-
tive bodies rather “han the courts. I feel certain that
the Petitioners here had more evidence available and for
one reason and another didn't put it on, perhaps of putting
it on in rebuttal. I know the Respondents had additional
evidence. It was not put on here because, if they did, it
opens the door for additional testimony on rebattal. So
the Court itself is not in the position, based on merely

a few excerpts read by counsel, to weigh the validity of
all that testimony taken before the Commigsion and the
technical testimony that was there and attach a reasonable
bagis, that I can understand.

I believe.thatts all, your Honor,

MR. CAMPBELL: If the Court please, I would like very briefly
and with as little repetition as possible to present my
views on gome of the matters that have been raised here in
argument,

I would like to say first that all of the legal argu-
ments raised in the petition for rehearing and the petition
on review have not been discussed by Mr. Malone or Mr.

Kellahin. There are a large number of matters which were
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raised. I do not concur exactly with Mr. Ward on some of
these matters which were raised in the petition for review.
I can't think of anything that wasn't raised in the petition
for rehearing before the Commission on the petition for
review hexre. I believe the petitioners have raised every
legal objection to the Commigsion's order. We have
prepared and would like to furnish to the Court a trial
brief in which we have briefed the legal questions, and
all of them, that have been raised in all of the petitions
for rehearing and the petitions for review. There are some
questions that were ralsed in some petitions and not raised
in others. These cases have been consclidated, and we feel
that, if we are not going to present oral argument on all
of them, that at least the Court should have the benefit
of what legal references we may have to each of the legal
questions that have been raised. I shall not go into each
of them becuuse I assume that the Peﬁitioners do not intend
to. I shall confine myself to what they have raised and
do it very briefly.

I think that perhaps some of us here, including
Mr. Dippel and perhaps Mr. Smith and Mr. Kellghin and myself,
have survived thug far through about seven years of «- gix
years at least -- of the stormy history of gas prorationing
in New Mexico. The statute was adopted, changed, in 1949

to include gas. Up to that time, it involved only oil,
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The regulatory powers of the Commission. It wasn't until
1953 that we actually got under way in trying to establish
gas prorationing. It is a rdlatively new method of regula-
tion, not only in New Mexico but in many places. We are
here discussing not only new grounds of law but we are
here digcussing new grounds insofar as regulation of the
production of gas is concerned. I think all of us recog-
nize that. Since 1953, however, I think it 1s fair to

say from all of the hearings that have been held that
deliverability as a term and as a possibility is nothing
new. In 19533, in October, when the first hearings were
held to set up gas prorationing, at the very first hearings,
deliverability was proposed, and at those hearings it was
the concensus of opinion ~- Mr. Smith was there; Mr.
Dippel was there; Mr, Hinkle was there for some of the
petitioners here; Mr. Kellahin was there; some of the
representatives for El Paso Natural Gas Company were there
-~ and at that hearing it was the concensus of opinion,
and statements were made to the Commission, that what we
wanted to do was gtart gas prorationing, and the simplest
way to do it was to do it on a straight acreage basis, and
deliverability, if it was tc become a practice, should be
taken up at a later date. I can read from the record that

is before the Court here now the statements made by various
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attorneys for the companies at that time. I shall not do

it in detail. However, I would call attention to the fact
that at the hearing in February 1854, Mr. Hinkle, who was

representing Amerada, & petitioner here, said:

"These rules are going to have to be amended from
time to time."”

Mr. Woodard, who was then representing Amerada, says:

"We think it is spparent that thig is a problem
requiring continuing study. However, it has been
under study for nearly a year now., These orders now
that purport to be the final orders are not the last
word, They probably are not the best rule that
could be written."

Mr. Dippel, representing Continentsl said:
"Any time that anybody feels that his interests are
being jeopardized or already has sustained this
injury, this Commission is always open to them."

Mr. Vicary, representing Atlantic, a petitioner here, said:

"Atlantic is aware that changes in the orders may be
necessary from time to time."

And recognizing that & tuation, the Commission designated
an Industry Committee to work with the Commigsion staff, and
in the order arising out of that very hearing, they said:
"We are setting up the allocation formula on an
acreage basis, but we are appointing & conmittee to
study the possibility of including other factors
includinrg deliverabllity as part of the proration,
gas proration, in the future.”
It was on this proposition that Continental and other

petitioners here served for a period of several years

improving as they went along the methods of testing for
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deliverability purpose, even though then deliverability was
not a‘factor in the proration formula, and it seems to me
that to come back here now before this Court and urge that
Texas Pacific Coal & Oil Company, or anyone else, is estopped,
or is making a c¢ollateral attack upon an order of the
Commission, certainly doesn't jibe with what the history

of gas prorationing in New Mexico and before the 0il
Conservation Commission indicates.

I think further that the facts that I have mentioned
make it apparent that the term deliverability is neither
vague nor uncertain nor indefinite to anybody who has had
any contact as an engineer, Or as an attorney, or as a
field man for anybody in the gas business in ﬁew'Mexico
because the tests have been taken since 1954, and they were
taken under exactly the same order as the order, that direc-
tive, that 13 being taken gt this time. And the order of
the Commigsion, any order of the 0il Conservation Commissgion
or other technical commigsions, 18 going to contain words
that to the layman may not be ones that he could take and
apply, but certainly anybody in the business who is acquainted
with prorationing of gas in the Huggeton Gas Field in
Kansas, Oklahoma and Texas as these transcripts all read,
or in the San Juan Basin or i{n cther areas of the country,

knows when you talked about deliverability what you are
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talking about. He may not know what the shut-down periocd
may be, he may not know what the slope curve may be, but
those are technical aspects of taking deliverability tests,

and they vary from place to place, but the term deliverability

is a term which 18 generally known in the c¢il and gas
industry.

Now, one other point that I would like to make with
regard to substantial evidence. Mr. Malone and I tried to
go through these veluminous transcripts and point out to
the Court our difference of opinion about what the witnesses
were testifying to. I want to say this. I have been
through those transcripts I know three times prior to this
hearing. I am sure Mr. Malone has too. This is an honest
difference of opinion asbout what the witnesses were saying
I am sure, but there is no doubt in my mind but that Mr.
Keller in his testimony constantly, after this question
was first raised about this relationship between reserves
and distribution of reserves and recoverable gas in place,
that there is a definite and reasonable relationship in
the Jalmat Gas Pool between the deliverability of gas wells
and recoverability of gas in place under those wells. He
doé%%%ay it was direct. He did not say it was proportional.

He said there is a relationship.

Now is that enough under the statute that we have

FTe
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relating to correlative rights to sustain an order of the
Commission? I believe it is for this reason. The statute
that Mr. Malone constantly refersg to defining correlative
rights requies that a man be given an opportunity so far
as is practical and can be practically obtained without
waste to recover substantially in proportion the oil or gas
under his tract to the oil or gas in the entire pocl. The
statute regarding gas prorationing says in protecting the
correlative rights the Commisgsion may consider permeability,
porosity, pressure, acreage, any number and any other perti-
nent factors, so all the Commission ig doing here is trying
to protect the correlative rights that are there defined
by a formula based upon some of the factors, the authority
for which 18 provided to the Commission in the statute.
Certainly every order of this Commission doesn't have to
contain the language of the finding of the definition of
correlative rights. That is simply the general opportunity
that anyone has under spacing, under gas allocation, under
method of completion. He hag a right to get that oppor-
tunity but that doesn't have to be the basis or the language
in the order because the statutes permit the Commiusion, in
establishing and protecting correlative rights, to consider
thegse various factors in gas prorationing.

Now, finally, with regard to confiscation. The

transcripts contain a large amount of testimony that there
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18 no forumula that can be devised, if you are going to
have gas prorationing at all, that will fully protect the
correlative rights of all the people in the field; there

is not any way in which you can definitely measure accurately
the amount of gas that each man has at any one time under
his tract. I think that is aspparent from the very nature
of the underground reservoirs containing oil and gas.
Nonetheless, Mr. Keller testified time after time in his
opinion that, while it was true it would not be a perfect
formula, that this formula would more nearly permit a
person to recover his fair share of the recoverable oil and
gas under his tract than does the ac?eage formula. Why?
Because it containsrecognition of the conditions of the
well, which indicate and are related to the amount of gas
in place under that tract. And that to me, that, in
relation to the present formula, which all witnesses admit,
does not give recognition to the amount of gas except as

to the surface acreage but not to the difference of quality
of pay, or the amount of the pay, or pressure in the well,
or any of the other factors that relate to how much gas a
man has at any time under his tract, that is the test here,
and that's the test the Commission applied. They found
that this formula would more nearly meet the defintion of

correlative rights, and they had the right to consider
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deliveragbility under the very terminclogy of the statute
that sets up gas allocation.
As I indicated when 1 started, there are many legal

arguments raised in this case that apparently are not going
to be argued orally. I'm pleased that they aren't. But
they are seriocus legal problems, some of them, and if we

may be permitted to do so, we would like to submit to the
Court a trial memorandum brief which we have prepared setting
out our legal views on the other legal questions and the

questions that we are here arguing orally.

MR, MALONE: If it please the Court, I will not unduly extend
the argument. The Court has been very gracious about
listening to argument in the case. I would like to refer
briefly to this history of prorationing problems to which
Mr. Campbell referred, and I have no difference with him
as far as the fact that the Commisgion and the Industry have
been looking for means of better allocating‘and more fairly
allocating production of both gas and cil, and will always
be looking for it.

We have an unique situation here in which one company
out of an entire pool decided that a particular formula met
that requirement. It is interesting to me that as you look
at the companies that are lined up here as against the people

who are opposing here and the additional people who are
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opposing the adoption of this formula, that they are on
both sides of the fence; it doesn't matter what the effect
of it is on them individually in the Jalmat Pool. They are
sufficiently convinced as to the ingtability, the unwork-
ability and the unfairness of deliverability in a formula
if they are uniformly in opposition to its adoption here.
Now the argument that Mr. Campbell made with reference
to increase not reflecting different conditions herein the
formation is an old problem. We have had oil production
here in New Mexico now for almost twenty-five years and
oil allowables are uniformly assigned on the basis of acreage
and acreage alone, and natural gas allowables in southeastern
NeW'Mexiéo, since the begimning of proration, have likewise
been assigned on the basis of acreage, and acreage alone,
and these lacks of uniformity in the potential production
of oil wells are just as great as they are in gas walls
but it has been concluded and fought out and the conclusion
reached long since that oil should be allocated on the
basis of acreage. In certain instances, depth is involved,
but it has nothing to do with the problems here, that it
is an economic consideration. And that same consideration
prevailed with reference to the prorationing of gas in
southeastern New Hexico, and here for the first time in

opposition to all of the rest of the operators who expressed
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themselves in this pool the Commission has injected a
deliverability formula in here which, as the evidence

has shown in this case, as it has actually operated, has
had ~- well, I can hardly conceive less stability when you
consider the fact that the ownership of the gas under the
ground is actually being redistributed by this proration
formula. When you look at those exhibits that Mr. Lyon
prepared as to the fluctugtion in deliverability between
the three tests that have so far been taken, I think that
it clearly and beyond any doubt establishes the proposition
that Mr. Kellahin was urging that this basis for the
allocation of the ownership of gas in the ground, which is
what theformula does, is sc vague and indefinite, uncertain
and unstable as to constituteé, without any question of
doubt, a lack of due process of law and the confiscation

of the gas of the people whose allowables are affected by
it.

Now reference was made to the San Juan Basin in New
Mexico and to the fact that deliverability was in the
formula up there, and that's true, and it was pointed out
in the testimony there before the Commisgsion in this case
that that was put in.there at the time those pools were
first being developed up there, and that the situation was

entirely different than in the southeastern New Mexico
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where the development has been going on over thirty years
and wells, hundreds and thousands of them, have been drilled
under conditions which mgke the injection of deliverability
inta the formula gross and rank injustice so far as correla-
tive rights are concermed.

I regret that apparently I have wholly failed to
make clear, at least to my opposition, the proposition
that I was urging with reference to the gtandards that an
order must live up to if it is to be valid under the
delegation of legislative authority. 1I'd like very
briefly to have oremore try at it. Maybe I can get some
help from some other courts.

This Hunter case from which I read earlier and in
which they held that an order re-gllocating allowables was
invalid because it did not find that the re-allocation was
in cloger relationship to the proportion to the gas in place
under the tract and the total gas in the pool, which is
exactly what this order, if it was valid, would have to
say and would have ﬁo have substantigl evidence to support.
And, in pointing out the necessity 1# that order, the
court said:

"We have been through'ths entivre volumes of records

in the case, and they say, 'this effort has convinced

us of the wisdom of the judicial doctrine that an

order is invalid when the basic or essential findings
to support that part of the order are lacking. The
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case is invalid, being an administrative order, for

failure of the adminigtrative agency to make a basic

or jurisdictional finding."
Now this is a basic or jurigdictional finding. We had a
situation in which the allocation of gas had been made for
some four years under an acreage formula. There is no
waste question involved. It is strictly a matter of
correlative rights and who's going to produce how much gas.
Having established that formula, and it having been in
effect, and people having made investments on the basis of
it, and bought and sold properties on the basis of it, the
Commigsion then changes the formula. Now the only power
they have got to change that formula under the statutes of
New Mexico is if correlative rights will be better protected
under it than under the other formula, and that is a juris~
dictional finding to any order that finally is the order,
and, if they contend that is the case, then they have got
to have a finding to that effect, and they're going to put
us in a position there so we can attack that for substantial
evidence to support it, and that finding is wholly absent
from this order. And the order is predicated entirely upon
a finding that it will be more equitable in the opinion
of the Commigsion.

Now, as I said awhile ago, if the legislature passed

this act and said the Commission shall prorate gas on an

P
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equitable basis, I don't think there is a lawyer in tlis
room that would contend that such an act would be valid.
The legislative standards have got tc be erected, and when
they are erected as they are in this case, they have got to
have findings to show they have been met, they have got to
be incorporated in the order, and they've got to appear in
the order before an order exercising that power is valid,
and I can't say it any other way.. That's'my proposition.
whether it is right or wrong, I hope at 1ean£‘that the
opposition understands it.

To return again to the question of the testimony of
Mr. Keller and the question of whether or not it constitutes
subgtantial evidence to support this order, I think it is
a cruclal question in this case and I would like to close
my discussion by reverting to it briefly.

The finding is that thgre is & general correlation
between the deliverabilities between the gas wells in the
Jalmat Gas Pool and the gas in place that was changed in
"C" to the "recoverable gas in place" under the tracts
dedicated to gald wells. It is contended that there 1is
substantial evidence to support that finding. It is admitted
by the witness by whom the evidence is presented that he
made no computation of the recoverable gas in place under

the individual tracts, that is evidence with relation to

? e C.2
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what gas might or might not be available there. It was
based on a redistribution of well reserves which gives
effect, not to the gas that is in place under the tract
but to the producing history of the well and all of the gas
that it may have drained from acres and even miles around
it during the entire history of the well. The reason for
the great injustice in such a situation in southeastern
New Mexico is the fact that some of these wells have been
producing for years and have drained tremendous areas
prior to proration when it was begun four years ago, and

to take the reserves on the basis of an extrapolated curve,
which merely says that they are entitled to produce in

the future what they have produced in the past, is to give
effect and put under the tracts surrounding each well, not
the gas that's there, which the statute says is the basis
for the protection of correlative rights, but the gas which
would have been there when nature laid it down it had
crowded under the tract not only the gas that was there
but that from all around it and came cut through the well
bore. That is the reason that I have no hesitation in
saying that there is no substantial evidence in this record
to support the finding because, in the sbsence of evidence
as to recoverable gas in place, thére cannot be evidence

of a correlation which exists.

s
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And I'd like to refer in that comnection then to the

only evidence in the record as to the recoverable gas in

place under the tracts and the relation to deliverability,which
is the evidence that was prepared by the Fetitioners and

which shows a complete lack of correlation.

Now, under the statements from Davis which I read at
the outset, which permits, snd in fact requires, the Court
to consider gll of the evidence in the case and to weigh
it in determining whether or not substantial evidence exists,
if it can be said that substantial evidence exists in this
record in the face of the conditicn that I have just out-
lined, then this substantial evidence rule means absolutely
nothing.

1f the finding falls, as we think it inevitably musgt
fall, the other twe grounds which were included in the
original order, and which counsel now contend are no
longer in effect, must fall also. They were an attempt
by the Commission to issue an order because, as they said
in Paragraph 6, the inclusion of a deliverability factor
in the proration formula for the Jalmat Cas Pool will result
in the production of a greater percentage of the pool
allowable, and that it will more nearly enable the various
gas purchasers tc meet the market demand, a consideration

which i{s wholly foreign to any power which the Commission
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exercigses. Now this Cormisgsion isn't in the business to
help purchasers meet market demand; it i{s in the business

to help ocwners protect rights, correlative rights in the
pool, and as T-P's statement is now it has dropped out of
the final order. Now whether that is the effect of the final
order I have considerable doubt.

So that we feel that without a question of a doubt
there is no substantial evidence to support the proposition.
There is a complete absence from the order the finding
which would benecessary for a valid order to change the
proration formula, and that this Court should hold the
order to be invalid.

Thank you very much.

THE COURT: Gentlemen, I will not attempt to dispose
of the matter at this time. I am going to ask Mr. Malone
and his coherts to supply me with a brief, and a copy to
¥Mr. Campbell, and you will reply to it in ten days. The
matter will be taken under advigement.

Now, gentlemen, I am busy, and I would be glad if you
will refer to the testimony in support or the lack of it
because you will save me the trouble of reviewing this

record as a whole, which I prefer to escape.
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(THEREAFTER, to-wit: On July 27, 1959,
the Court wrote a letter which is as

follows.)

JULY 27, 1959

Mr. Ross Malone Mr. A. B. Tanco
Mr. Jason Kellaghin Mr. C. W. Proctor
Mr. Harry G. Dippel

Mr. Willis L. Lea, Jr.

Mr. Manuel A. Sanchez Mr. Jack Campbell
Mr. John S, Miller Mr. Morris Galatzan
Mr. J. K. Smith Mr. Ray C. Cowan

Mr. Frank L. Heard, Jr. Mr. Robert W. Ward
Mr. E. L. Hughston Mr. Lawrence I. Shaw
Mr. Alfred 0. Holl Mr., Jack Cooley

"Re: Continental 011, et al
\C. N.M.OOCOCO’ Qt al

Gentlemen:

At the conclusion of the trial of this matter, I requested
briefs. I have now concluded, however, that the Petitions
should be dismissed, and the Order of the 0il Conservation
Commigsion confirmed. This letter is intended to acquaint
the parties with my reasons for so holding.

I am ﬁnable to sey that the Order of the Commission is
vague or uncertain. Implemented by the Directive or Memorandum,
it gives a method of determining "“deliverability" which is
evidently comprehensible to those affected. One witness asserted

that the large discrepancies in deliverability test results taken
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at different times made it manifest that it was not possible

to make accurate tests using the new formula. The validity

of the method of testing was not challenged from an engineering
or mathematical view point, and no reason was given for the
failure of one test to approximate the result to another test.
But, when it is remembered that the new progfgm has been in
effect less than two years, and that the potential capacity of
a well to produce varies from time to time because of numerous
factors, some governable by the cperator and some due to natural
or fortuitous changes in conditions, the apparent discrepancies
become understandable. And, as was done, to add all the "plusg®
percentages for one column and all the "minus" for another, and
assert that computation of the result shows an average total
discrepancy between tests of more than 40%, is to present an
absurdity, apparent on its face, and which proves nothing of
value.

As to the claim that the reason for the adoption of the new
formula was unsupported by any substantial evidence and hence
was arrived at capriciously or arbitrarily, I fail to agree.

It was argued that the finding of the Commigsion to the effect
that there is a general correlation between the deliverabilities
of the gas wells and the gas "in place" under the tracts dedi-
cated to saild welln.is unsupported, because there is no testi-

mony as to the recoversble gas in place under the tracts



involved, -~ that the testimony pertains instead to the reserves
of the wells -~ hence, the conclugion reached, that the inclusion
of a deliverability factor in the proration formula would

result in a more equitable allocation of the gas production,

is untengble, that the testimony, on the contrary, showed that
there is no correlation between the amount of gas a well may
produce at a given time, and the amount of gas which is in the
formation underlying the tract assigned to the well.

The owner's share of the gas is that amount which he can
obtain in the proportion that the recoverable gas under his
property bears to the total recoverability, not the amount in
place but the amount recoverable. It does not depend on the
proportion which the area of his tract bears to the area of the
pool, or sclely upon the quantity of gas in place under his
tract in such propertion. I find aubstantial testimony to the
effect that there is a general correlation between deliverability
of gas wells and gas in place under the tract dedicated to such
wells. The fugacious nature of gas must be taken into account
and cannot be ignored.

There was substantial evidence that the 100% acreage
formula permitted drainage from strong to weak wells, thus
denying one group of operators the right to appropriate their
gshare of the gas in place under their tracts to their detriment

and to the unjust benefit of the other group. Under such type
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of allocation, the inefficient operator might be allowed to
produce more gas than his prudent and efficient neighbor with
equal dedicated acreage, because of factors in the producing
strata over which neither could have control. The field produced
for years under this program which gave to each operator the
right to produce quantities of gas dependent solely on the
proportion which his acreage bore to the total field area, with-
out regard to the many other conditions affecting the potential
productivity of the tract. This was & simple method of arriving
at allocations and required no complicated formula or tests to
achieve, but, as I see it, forced inequities and was inherently
unfair to some. It may be that allocation of allowable pro-
duction based entirely on the operators ability to produce is
the ideal method to follow in fields where output is restricted.
The Commission has adopted a compromise between the two methods
and, in my opinion, has arrived at a more just and fair
division than the former method afforded. It was in evidence
that (as to one month) in round figures, eight operators had
lost the right to produce $40,000 worth of gas while four others
had gained $50,000 worth. This can mean, however, that a
previous and po:siblf greater inequity has been corrected.

I feel, too, that a program which rewards gocd and prudent
operation and discourages the contrary sort, contributes to the
prevention of waste and the better utilization of the natural
resource, and that the present plan is designed to further that

result.
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Counsel shall have thirty days in which to submit requested

findings of fact and conclusions of law.

Yours very truly,

JOHN R. BRAND
JRB/cv
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EXHIEITS

Reporter's Note: All originel exhibits forwarded to Supreme
Court of New Mexicc in aceordance with Stipulation and

Order entered herein. See Volume I, Fage 130 and 1334

also Index to Exhibits.

deoke weded *%
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
: ss. REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE
COUNTY OF LEA )

I, Clarence V. Johnson, Official Court Reporter of the
Fifth Judicial District of the State of New Mexico, in and for
the County of Lea, do hereby certify that I reported the pro-
ceedings had at the trial of the above entitled end numbered
causes] that the foregoing 277 pages of typewritten matter,
being numbered 1 te 277, inclusive, Volume II, constitute a full,
true and correct transcript of the testimony taken at said trial,
objections of counsel thereto, rulings of the Court thereon, and
exceptions taken, together with a record of sll exhibits, if any,
introduced at said trial.

WITNESS my hand on this the 30th day of June, A. D. 1960.

7/
A/ )

/" Clarence V. JoHr

' Officisl Court Keporter

Fifth Judicial District
Division (II
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT UF LEA COUNTY
STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CONTINENTAL OIL COMPANY 16213
AMERADA PETROLEUM CORPORATION 16214
PAN AMERICAN PETROLEUM COMPANY 16215
SHELL OIL COMPANY 16217
THE ATLANTIC REFINING COMPANY 16218
STANDARD OIL COMPANY OF TEXAS 16219
HUMBLE OIL &REFINING COMPARY 16220
Petitioners Consolidated
~ve- Under No. 16213

OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION OF
NEW MEXICO, Composed of John
Burroughs, Member and Chairman,
Murray Morgan, Member, and A. L,
Porter, Secretary;
TEXAS PACIFIC COAL AND OIL COMPANY,
a fordgn corporation;
EL PASO NATURAL GAS COMPANY,
a foreign corporation;
PERMIAN BASIN PIPELINE COMPANY,
a foreign corporation;
SOUTHERN UNION GaS COMPANY,
a foreign corporation,

Respondents

ORDER SETTLING BILL OF EXCEPTIONS

NOW on this day come the Petitioners, Appellants in the
above entitled and numbered causes, and comes the 0il Conservation
Commission of New Mexico, Cross-Appellant in the above entitled
and numbered causes, and move the Court that th§ official tran-
script now on file of the Official Court Reporter's notes taken
by him in the progress of the trial of said causes be signed,

sealea, settled and delivered as Petitioners' Bill of Exceptions
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and Cross-Appellant's, Respondent 0il Conservation Commission of
New Mexico, Bill of Exceptions, to be used in the sbove entitled
causes on appesal to the Supreme Court of the State of New Mexico;

And the Court, after carefully exsmining sgid transcript,
finds the same to be true gnd correct in forwm and in fact, and
is duly certified, according te law, by the court reporter who
reported the evidence upon the trial of sald causes;

And it appesring by the record that the attorneys fcr the
various appellees have waived the gtatutory five days' notice of
intention to apply for this Order, and no ohjection being made;

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that said transcript, consisting
of Volume II, Pages numbered 1 to 27&, i{nclusive, being 277 pages
duly certified by the Officisl Court Reporter ss aforesaid, be
filed as Petiticners' Bill of Exceptions and as Cross-Appellant's,
Regpondent New Mexico 01l Conservation Commission, Bill of
Exceptions in sgid causes, and that said trgnscript be, and the
same hereby is, signed, sealed, settled and delivered by the Court
who was the Trigl Judge therein as Fetitiomers' and Cross-Appellant's
Respondent New Mexicoc 01l Conservation Commission, Bill of

Exceptions.

DONE cn this the ___ >/  day of C:jtgﬁ'écd/?i' » A.D. 1960,

j
(/

r/ » N
{ / AR
/é// \7£2~«czz;/é' ) 5%7’94§7
7/ bistriet Judge ‘
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
! 88, CLERK'S CERTIFICATE

COUNTY OF LEA )

I, W. M, Beauchamp, Clerk of the District Court of the
Pifth Judiciael District within and for the said County and State,
do hereby certify that the above and foregoing, comsisting of
595 pages in two volumes of typewritten matter, constitutes and
is & full, true and perfect transcript of the record and pro-
ceedings in Csuses Wo. 16213, 16,214, 16213, 16217, 16218, 16219,
and 16220 on the Civil Docket of said Court, wherein CONTINENTAL
OIL COMPANY, AMERADA PETROLEUM CORPORATION, PAN AMERICAN PETROLEUM
COMPANY, SHELL OIL COMPANY, THE ATLANTIC REFINING COMPANY, STANDARD
OIL COMPANY OF TEXAS and HUMBLE OIL & REFINING COMPARY, respectively,
are Petitioners, and OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION OF NEW MEXICO,
TEXAS PACIFIC COAL & OIL COMPANY, EL PASO NATURAL CAS COMPANY,
PERMIAN BASIN PIPELINE COMPANY gnd SOUTHERN UNION GAS COMPANY gre
Respondents, as called for by the Praecipe for Record appearing
in Volume I on Page 135 of the foregoing, all as shown from the
files and records of my said office.

WITNESS my hand as Clerk of the said Court, and the seal

therecof, at Lovingggn. Lea County, New Mexico, on this the

- _ day of /,/Z./a(z.f“,g?/ s A. D. 1560.

W. M. BEAUCHAMP e

A

Clerk of the District Court

(/324¢C/ 4// e ,AZV /C~f4&4%/5é?i7/14/
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
! ss. CERTIFICATE OF COSTS
COUNTY OF LEA )

I, W. M, Beauchamp, Clerk of the District Court of the
Fifth Judicial bistrict, within and for the County and State
aforesaid, do hereby certify that the total costs in Caguses
No. 16213, 16214, 16215, 16217, 16218, 1621% and 16220 on the
Civil Docket of sald Court, wherein CONTINENTAL OIL COMPANY,
AMERADA PETROLEUM CORPORATION, PAN AMERICAN PETROLEUM CQMPANY,
SHELL OIL COMFANY, THE ATLANTIC REFINING COMPANY, STANDAKD CIL
COMPANY OF TEXAS and HUMBLE OIL & REFINING COMFANY, respectively,
are Petitioners, and OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION OF NEW MEXICO,
TEXAS PACIFIC COAL & OIL COMFANY, EL FASQO NATURAL GAS COMPANY,
PERMIAN BASIN PIPELIRE COMPANY gnd SOUTHERN UNION GAS COMPANY are

amount _
Respondents, in the aggregate/to the sum of §___ /.2 ~7 5,

itemized as follows:

Paid by Paid by
Petitioners Respondents
Clerk's Fees $. S Z 55 %
Sheriff's Fees
Court Keporter's Fee : B
(Transcript Preparation) LE2G5 29
Certification Fees S

All as shown from the docket in said causes.
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WITNESS my hend and the seal of said Court, at Lovington,
Lea Couhty, New Mexico, this 2. day of (/LL4<7-LL,J2K

»

A, D. 1960.

[seal) / e

W. M. BEAUCHAMP
Clerk of the District Court



